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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

VISION

» Be a dominating player in Salt and Bromine Industry & Allied Products

MISSION

» To produce/supply good quality of salt & value added products.

» To accelerate the process of modernization/mechanization of manufacture of
salt and allied products.
Make available quality iodized salt to weaker sections through public

distribution system.

Efficient utilization of resources.

Increase the market share of HSL/SSL.
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Chairman’s Statement
At the 64" Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders,

| welcome you all to the 64" Annual General Meeting of your company. The Boards’ Report on the
working of your company and the Audited Accounts for the financial year 2022-23 and also the Auditor's
report thereon and comments of C&AG have been with you. With your permission, take them as read.
| would like to underline a few salient features regarding the achievements, constraints and tasks ahead:

1.

4.

Marketing Scenario:

Market scenario is currently favourable with enhanced Bromine price. Magnesium Chloride, Rock
Salt and Common Salt also contributing considerably, your company was able to sale 447 MT of
Bromine, 2858 MT of Magnesium Chloride, 14525 MT of raw salt and 482 MT of Rock Salt in FY
2022-23. The company produced 12364 MT of common salt, 447 MT of Bromine, 445 MT of Rock
Salt and 2858 MT of Magnesium Chloride.

. Financial Highlights:

The performance in FY 2022-23 is attributable to robust performance of Kharaghoda and Mandi Unit
and ability to control the operational cost by restructuring mode of operation. The topline of the
company during FY ending 31.03.2023 was Rs. 2926.92 Lakhs compared to Rs. 2412.61 Lakhs in
the previous year and profit during FY ending 31.03.2023 was Rs. 821.01 Lakhs compared to profit
of Rs. 151.71 Lakhs in previous year.

. Exports:

There was no export during the financial year 2022-23. However, in the current year your company
in association with another CPSE and Private Parties is exploring the possibility of exporting products
of the company as well as of the subsidiary.

Industrial Relations:

The Industrial relations in your company remained cordial during the year.
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5. Projects and Programmes during the year.
Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat)

(a) Salt Production:

To enhance the salt production, company explored various avenues of utilizing the untapped huge
infrastructure. These efforts will ensure sufficient quantity of bittern for running of Bromine plant
at optimum capacity.

(b) Installation & Operation of Bromine and Magnesium Chloride Plants:

HSL had awarded the long term contract through open tender on 01.11.2021 for up gradation of
operation by adoption of modern and efficient technologies, wherein all the investment for
development and operation is in the scope of agency engaged in revenue sharing model.

(c) Installation of Salt Refinery of 1 lakh TPA:

The installation of Salt Washery cum Refinery of 100,000 MT capacity awarded in 2014 to M/s Gujarat
Technical Cell Pvt. Ltd., Vadodara at a total cost of ¥ 773.12 lakhs. The work order was cancelled
in FY 2020-21 due to delay in execution. Now the Salt Refinery will be completed under the Long
Term contract awarded by company in FY 2023-24.

(d) Installation of 1000 MW Renewable Energy Project:
HSL has awarded a contract for Installation & Operation of Solar and other Renewable Power Plant(s)
like Solar Power / Wind power / Hybrid / Round-The-Clock Renewable Energy (RTC) etc. of 1000

MW capacity. Green Hydrogen and Green Ammonia can also be produced after completion of
1000 MW Renewable Energy Projects.5000 Acers of land has been provided for Project as per
Contract and additional land upto 2000 Acre can also be provided as per terms of contract for
expansion of project. No lease for land shall be executed by the HSL in favour of the successful
bidder i.e. there is no change in Land control / ownership status.

Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh):

Extraction of Rock Salt from Drang Mines:

Company has awarded Long Term Contract with duration of 20 years for Designing, Construction,
Mine Development, Production, other Allied Works Processing including Sale of Salt and Allied
Chemicals at Drang, Gumma, Maigal Rock Salt Mines and other Mines in Mandi Area on Mine
Development & Operator Basis Comprising Concession Consideration based on Revenue
Sharing. The work is under progress as per the contract.

HSL has initiated a pilot project at Kharaghoda and Mandi units to establish “Centre of
Excellence” in Algae Farming with an aim to address Air and Soil Pollution hazard’s and earn
carbon credit Co2 sequestration with the help of Organic food supplement, fertilizers Pharma and
Nutraceutical.

6. Future Outlook:

(@) Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat) :
HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender for following works on 01.11.2021
for up-gradation of operation by adoption of modern and efficient technologies, wherein all the
investment for development and operation is in the scope of agency engaged in revenue sharing
model. Expansion of existing capacities and Installation of Salt Refinery is planned during the
year under the contract.
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Company has issued Letter of Acceptance for Installation of 2000 MW Solar PV and Renewable
Energy Project at HSL-Khraghoda on 19.08.2022. Progress of the contract will be monitored.

Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh) :

HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender in May-2021 for large scale
commercial mining of rock salt at Mandi, wherein modern underground mining techniques is
proposed to be used to enhance production. This proposal forms a part of Hon’ble PM’s vision of
Atmanirbhar Bharat wherein it is planned to produce adequate quantity of Himalayan Rock Salt
so that complete import of Rock Salt both from Iran and Pakistan gets stopped at the earliest.
Company also intends to install Salt Refinery for processing of Rock Salt with latest technology
as part of contract.

HSL has initiated pilot projects at Kharaghoda and Mandi units to establish “Centre of Excellence”
in Algae Farming with an aim to address Air and Soil Pollution hazard’s and earn carbon credit
Co2 sequestration with the help of Organic food supplement, fertilizers Pharma and Nutraceutical.
Progress of the project will be monitored.

7. Corporate Governance:

Company has complied with all stipulated conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in
the guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises.

. Acknowledgement:
| take this opportunity to thank the Government of India, various State Governments, officers of the
Ministry of Heavy Industries, DPE, Niti Aayog, Bankers, business associates, Salt Commissioner’'s
Office and major customers for their advice and continued support extended. | am also thankful to
all my colleagues on the Board for their valued guidance and counsel. The officers, staff and workers
of the company also deserve thanks for their dedicated work and cooperation.
In conclusion, | would like to thank you for sparing your valuable time and to participate in the
proceedings as shareholders of the company. | look forward to receive continued inspiration, help,
cooperation and assistance in the coming months.
I now move to the Directors Report as well as the audited balance sheet and the statement of profit
and loss for the year 2022-23. It is requested that Directors Report as well as the Annual Accounts
be approved and adopted.

Sd/-
(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
(Chairman & Managing Director)
Place: Jaipur
Date: 02.11.2023
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To the Members of Hindustan Salts Limited,

Your Directors are pleased to present their Sixty Fourth Annual Report on the business and
operation of Hindustan Salts Limited (hereafter referred as the “Company” or “HSL”) along with the
Audited Financial Statement and the Auditors’ Report thereon and the review of the same by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year ended 31t March 2023. Consolidated
performance of the company and its subsidiary has been referred to wherever required.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED)

1.1 Financial Results:
During the year under review, performance of your company and consolidated performance
of the company and its subsidiary as per consolidated financial statement is as under:

(in Lakhs)

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

2022-23

2021-22

2022-23

2021-22

Revenue from Operations

2926.92

2412.61

7435.65

6603.01

Other Income

909.21

551.56

870.19

594.34

Total Income

3836.13

2964.17

8305.84

7197.35

Less: Accretion and Decretion of stock (+)/(-)

73.43

(62.42)

(496.74)

157.77

Less: Expenditure for the year after net appropriation
to Subsidiary company M/s Sambhar Salts Limited
excluding depreciation and Interest

2419.90

2598.03

5921.40

5238.99

Profit before depreciation and interest

1342.80

428.56

2881.18

1800.59

Depreciation

53.56

72.52

426.19

362.12

Profit after depreciation

1289.24

356.04

2454.99

1438.47

Interest

241.25

270.56

241.25

270.73

Profit after depreciation and interest

1047.99

85.48

2213.74

1167.74

Adjustments relating to prior period

1.18

57.54

6.71)

60.70

Profit Before Tax

1049.17

143.02

2207.03

1228.44

Tax expense

228.16

(8.69)

256.17

(8.69)

Profit after Tax

821.01

151.71

1950.86

1237.13

Adjustment for Minority Interest

451.94

434.16

Profit / Loss for the year

821.01

151.71

1498.92

802.97

Total Carry forward Losses / Profit

47.79

(781.86)

(1166.26)

(2664.37)

1.2

1.1.2 During the year 2022-23, turnover of the company has increased from ¥ 2412.61 lakh in
previous year to ¥ 2926.92 lakh.

1.1.3 With the current year’s profit of T821.01, the carry forward losses of your company as

on 315t March, 2023 have been cleared.

1.1.4 Dividend

In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has been proposed for the year 2022-23.

Financial resources:
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1.2.1 Capital structure:
Your company’s authorized share capital is T 6,000 lakhs and paid up share capital is ¥
5205.96 Lakhs.

1.2.2 Amount transferred or proposed to transfer to any reserves:
Your Company has not transferred or proposed to transfer any amount to any reserve as
on 31.03.2023.

Borrowing
The total Plan and Non-plan loan including interest accrued thereon from Government of
India stood at ¥ 1241.29 lakhs as on 315 March, 2023.

State of Company Affairs and Physical Performance
HSL was incorporated to take over the salt sources at Sambhar, Didwana, Mandi and
Kharaghoda earlier managed by the Salt Department, Government of India. It is presently
engaged in the in production of Common Salt, Liquid Bromine, Magnesium Chloride
(MgCly) at Kharaghoda, District Surendranagar, Gujarat.

Comparison of the physical performance of your Company vis-a-vis previous year is as
under:

S. No. Particulars Quantity in M.T.
2022-23 2021-22

0] Production:
Common Salt 12364 22599
Rock Salt 445 286
Bromine 447 437
Magnesium Chloride 2858 3553
Sales:
Common Sallt 14525 20359
Rock Salt 482 361
Bromine 447 437
Magnesium Chloride 2858 3553
Inventory at the close of the year after
adjustment:

Common Salt

Rock Salt

Bromine

Magnesium Chloride

Production

(i) The production of rock salt during the year was 445 MT against 286 MT in the previous
year.

(i) The production of Bromine and Magnesium Chloride during the year was 447 MT,
2858 MT against 437 MT and 3553 MT respectively in the previous year.

Sales
The sale of Bromine and Magnesium Chloride in the current year was 447 MT and 2858
MT respectively.
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Exports
The company has not exported during the financial year 2022-23.

Inventories

Inventory of common salt and bromine at the close of year was 79 MT and Nil MT as
against 2241 MT and Nil MT in the previous year respectively. Inventory of Magnesium
chloride is Nil MT compared to Nil MT in previous year. The inventory of Rock Salt at the
close of year was Nil MT against previous year 38 MT.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED (SSL)

The audited statement of accounts along with report of the Board of Directors and Auditors
and Statement pertaining to the holding Company’s interest in the subsidiary company,
Sambhar Salts Limited (hereafter referred as the “Subsidiary Company” or “SSL”") at the
close of the financial year are attached.

3.1 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
3.1.1 Financial Results:
The highlights of financial performance of our Subsidiary Company for the year 2022-23
along with comparison with the previous year is as under:-
(Zin lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 4517.02 4190.40
Other Income 323.77 471.96
Total Income 4840.79 4662.36
Less: Accretion (+), Decretion of stock(-) (570.17) 220.19
Less: Expenditure for the year excluding depreciation and | 3452.92 2640.97
interest (Net)
Adjustments relating to prior period (7.89) 3.16
Profit before depreciation and interest 1950.15 1804.36
Less: Depreciation 363.12 289.60
Profit after depreciation 1587.03 1514.76
Less: Interest 429.18 429.35
Profit before Tax 1157.85 1085.41
Tax Expense 28.00 -
Net Profit for the year 1129.85 1085.41
Total Carry forward losses (3082.69) (4212.54)

3.1.2 During the year 2022-23, turnover of the subsidiary company has increased to ¥ 4517.02
lakh against ¥ 4190.40 lakh in the previous year.

3.1.3 With this year’s profit, the carry forward losses of the subsidiary company as on 315t March,
2023 are T 3082.69 lakhs in comparison to previous year’s loss of ¥ 4212.54 lakhs.
Subsidiary was able to leverage the favourable market condition and accordingly the salt
prices were increased which along with effective cost cutting measures and main focus
was on enhancing the retail market share, have contributed towards better performance in
FY 2022-23.
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3.1.4 Dividend

In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has been declared by the subsidiary company
for the year 2022-23.

Physical performance

Comparison of the physical performance of the subsidiary Company vis-a-vis previous year

is given as follows:-

Particulars Quantity in M.T.
2022-23 2021-22

Production:
Common Salt 273256 214039
Processed Salt 32909 26431
Sales/ Issues:
Common Salt 160742 194143
Processed Salt 33695 26796
Inventory at the close of the year after adjustment:
Common Salt 126993 77175
Processed Salt 26 17
Refined Salt 2743 3513

PRODUCTION

The production of common salt in FY 2022-23 is 273256 MT as against previous year
214039 MT, which is a increase of 27.66 %. The production of processed salt has
increased by 6478 MT which is 24.51% increase.

Sales

The Company sold 160742 MT of common salt during the financial year as against 194143
MT in previous year and sold 33695 MT of processed salt during the financial year as
against 26796 MT in previous year.

Exports
The subsidiary company has not exported salt during the financial year 2022-23.

Inventories
The physical inventory of common salt of the company was 126993 MT at the close of the
year against 77175 MT in the previous year.

Deposits
The subsidiary company has not accepted any deposits during FY 2022-23.

PROJECTS AND PROGRAMMES DURING 2022-23

Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat)

Salt Production

To enhance the salt production, company explored various avenues of utilizing the
untapped huge infrastructure. These efforts will ensure sufficient quantity of bittern for
running of Bromine plant at optimum capacity.
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(b) Installation & Operation of Bromine and Magnesium Chloride Plants
HSL had awarded the long term contract through open tender on 01.11.2021 for up
gradation of operation by adoption of modern and efficient technologies, wherein all the
investment for development and operation is in the scope of agency engaged in revenue
sharing model.

Installation of Salt Refinery of 1 lakh TPA:

The installation of Salt Washery cum Refinery of 100,000 MT capacity awarded in 2014 to
M/s Gujarat Technical Cell Pvt. Ltd., Vadodara at a total cost of ¥ 773.12 lakhs. The work
order was cancelled in FY 2020-21 due to delay in execution. Now the Salt Refinery will
be completed under the Long Term contract awarded by company in FY 2023-24.

Installation of 1000 MW Renewable Energy Project :

HSL has awarded a contract for Installation & Operation of Solar and other Renewable
Power Plant(s) like Solar Power / Wind power / Hybrid / Round-The-Clock Renewable
Energy (RTC) etc. of 1000 MW capacity. Green Hydrogen and Green Ammonia can also
be produced after completion of 2000 MW Renewable Energy Projects.5000 Acers of land
has been provided for Project as per Contract and additional land upto 2000 Acre can also
be provided as per terms of contract for expansion of project. No lease for land shall be
executed by the HSL in favour of the successful bidder i.e. there is no change in Land
control / ownership status.

Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh):

Extraction of Rock Salt from Drang Mines:

Company has awarded Long Term Contract with duration of 20 years for Designing,
Construction, Mine Development, Production, other Allied Works Processing including
Sale of Salt and Allied Chemicals at Drang, Gumma, Maigal Rock Salt Mines and other
Mines in Mandi Area on Mine Development & Operator Basis Comprising Concession
Consideration based on Revenue Sharing. The work is under progress as per the contract.

HSL has initiated a pilot project at Kharaghoda and Mandi units to establish “Centre of
Excellence” in Algae Farming with an aim to address Air and Soil Pollution hazard’s and
earn carbon credit Co2 sequestration with the help of Organic food supplement, fertilizers
Pharma and Nutraceutical.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details of the conservation of energy,
technology absorption, expenditure on research and development, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy
a) Energy Conservation measures taken:-
The following steps were taken to minimize the energy consumption.
- Steps taken to exchange Centrifugal Pumps by Mount Piller Pumps.
- Replacement of oil driven pumps with electric driven pumps.
- Creating awareness at all levels.
- Eliminating the idle running of motors and other electrical appliances as well as
mechanical equipment.
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Mechanization of activities.

Optimizing the standardization of pumps & motors.

Old PHE at Kharaghoda is being replaced with latest technology to save energy.
Steps taken to change Furnace oil boiler into multi fuel boiler.

Installation of Electric centrifuge for automatic operations of lights.

Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy additional investments and proposals,

if any, being implemented for reduction of energy consumption-

(i) Energy report prepared by PCRA, Mumbai has been implemented for saving in energy
consumption. The Energy Audit of the company is conducted by M/s Ascertiva India
Private Ltd. for further savings in energy consumption.

(i) Planning to install Solar power generation plant on rooftop and available land for
captive consumption.

In production of common salt, at Kharaghoda, natural solar energy is used. Rock salt is
mined manually at company’s Mandi unit. The company is extracting Bromine at
Kharaghoda from left over mother liquor “Bitterns” with Glass Tower Technology which
resulted in less energy consumption. Efforts are made to develop downstream products
from waste of bromine plant.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL

Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of Production of
Bromine

Sl. No. [Description 2022-23 2021-22

1 Electricity
(A) Purchased Unit (Lakh KWH)
Total amount (% in Lakhs)
Average Rate / Unitin T per KWH
(B) Own Generation
(i) Generated Unit (Lakh KWH)
KWH Unit Generated per Ltr. of Diesel
Cost per Unit?
(*) Increase in cost is on account of increase in prices
(ii) Through Steam Turbine Generators Units
Generated Unit (Lakh KWH)
Fuel Oil / Gas Cost / Unit
Coal / Brigquettes (Tonnes)
Total Cost (in Lakhs)
Average Cost of Fuel (Per MT)
Furnace Qil (F.0.)
Qty. (Lakh Ltr) - -
Total Amount (T in Lakhs) - -
Average Rate (T Per Ltr.) - -
Other / Internal Generation Not Applicable
Qty. (Ltr.) Mobil QOil - -
Total Cost - -
ii) Consumption Per Unit (MT) of Production:
Sl. No. [Description 2022-23 2021-22

1 Bromine
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- Production (MT) 447.23 436.80
- Electricity (KWH) 640 632
- Briguettes (MT) 3.0 3.0
Magnesium Chloride **
- Production (MT) 2857.80 3552.50
- Electricity (KWH) 4.5 4.3
- Other Fuel (MT) 0.710 0.700

Note: Since salt manufacture is done through “Solar Evaporation” method, therefore, energy
consumption figures have been taken only in respect of Bromine Plant and magnesium
chloride.

Expenditureon R & D (Tin Lakhs)
Capital : Nil
Recurring : Nil

Total : Nil

Total R & D expenditure as a Percentage of total turnover : -

Technology Absorption Adaptation and Innovation

Efforts made for Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. products improvement,

cost reduction, product development import Substitution etc.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned

from the beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished:-
a) Technology imported.

b) Year of import.

¢) Whether imported technology has been fully absorbed?

d) Areas where absorption of imported technology has not taken place, if any.

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
Activities relating to export initiatives taken to increase exports, development
of new markets for products and services and exports plans. NIL
Total foreign exchange used and earned.
- Earnings in Foreign Exchange. NIL
- Foreign Exchange outgo. NIL

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

The Company has continued its efforts to improve and optimum utilization of its human
resources and development activities in line with the changing corporate vision,
Government policies, technology etc. The Company is committed to improve the quality of
life of its employees and is also committed to fulfil the social obligations towards the
national as well as of the living and working environment of the places where the
Company’s Units are located.

Emphasis is now given to develop and provide in-house training to employees at all levels.
Company has invited experts for imparting training to employees for skill development,
motivation etc.

MANPOWER

Your company has 71 employees consisting of 25 executives and 46 Non-Executives at
the close of this financial year.
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RESERVATION OF VACANCIES

Your company is implementing the guidelines issued by the Government with regard to
reservation of posts for SC, ST, OBC, Physically handicapped (PH) and Ex-Servicemen
(Ex-S) as well as for any other concessions /facilities. The number of SC/ST/OBC/PH
employees at the close of the financial year, in the various categories remained as under:

roup | Total No of SCs | No of STs | No of | No of PH | No of Ex-
strength as | as on 31%t | as on 31t | OBCs as | as on 31% | Servicema
on 31st | March March on 31st | March nason 31
March March March
202 | 202 02 | 202 02 02 | 202 | 202 02 02 | 202 02
3 2 2 3 2
25 22 1 5 5
7 15 2 4 6

2

5

1

4 6 1 1
35 |39 27 129
71 |82 0 37 |41

VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT SCHEME:
During the year no employees/ workers has voluntarily retired under Voluntary Retirement
Scheme

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The industrial relations during the year remain cordial. Grievances of the employees were
discussed mutually and as far as possible settled. Joint Councils /Plant Councils which
have been constituted under the Workers Participation in Management Scheme are
functioning satisfactorily.

11. WELFARE ACTIVITIES

Various welfare measures introduced in the company were continued during the year. These
includes maintenance of accommodation in the form of township at units, provision of
medical facilities and provision of drinking water for labourers engaged in the production of
salts in the Run area as well as also for rural population of the village near Kharaghoda.
Further efforts are being made to improve the residential facilities at Kharaghoda in
planned manner. The Company has hospital for workers and general public at
Kharaghoda.

ACHIEVEMENT, AWARDS AND MOU

The MOU for the financial year 2023-24 with Ministry of Heavy Industries is under
finalization at the end of DPE.

HSL & SSL awarded with given Top Most Manufacturing Company & Best Employer Brand
Award- 2022 by World Manufacturing Congress & World HRD Congress on 22.06.2022.

OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR 2023-24
Company has geared up its production and sales network of Kharaghoda and Mandi unit.
The activities which are under progress are as under:

Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat) :

HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender for following works on
01.11.2021 for up-gradation of operation by adoption of modern and efficient
technologies, wherein all the investment for development and operation is in the scope

17
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14.

15.

of agency engaged in revenue sharing model. Expansion of existing capacities and
Installation of Salt Refinery is planned during the year under the contract.

Company has issued Letter of Acceptance for Installation of 1000 MW Solar PV and
Renewable Energy Project at HSL-Khraghoda on 19.08.2022. Progress of the contract
will be monitored.

Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh) :

HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender in May-2021 for large scale
commercial mining of rock salt at Mandi, wherein modern underground mining techniques
is proposed to be used to enhance production. This proposal forms a part of Hon’ble PM’s
vision of Atmanirbhar Bharat wherein it is planned to produce adequate quantity of
Himalayan Rock Salt so that complete import of Rock Salt both from Iran and Pakistan
gets stopped at the earliest. Company also intends to install Salt Refinery for processing
of Rock Salt with latest technology as part of contract.

HSL has initiated a pilot projects at Kharaghoda and Mandi units to establish “Centre of
Excellence” in Algae Farming with an aim to address Air and Soil Pollution hazard’'s and
earn carbon credit Co2 sequestration with the help of Organic food supplement, fertilizers
Pharma and Nutraceutical. Progress of the project will be monitored.

PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVES
No Presidential Directives has been received during the year.

FRAUD REPORTING
No fraud on or by the company has been noticed/reported during the year.

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE (HINDI)

The Official Language Implementation committee constituted at the corporate office and at
the units continued their efforts to overcome from the difficulties in the progressive use of
Hindi in the Company. Hindi Pakhwada was observed from 14.09.2022 to 28.09.2022.
Various programs and competitions were held during Pakhwada to create interest among
employees in Hindi. The company has actively participated in the various activities being
organized by NARAKAS, Jaipur during the year 2022-23.

VIGILANCE

Vigilance branch has been closely monitoring the system in vogue, policies and procedures
of the company and giving suggestions for system improvement from time to time. The
Vigilance Department lays considerable emphasis on Preventive Vigilance and is
promoting the use of the IT to bring about greater transparency. Instead of punitive
vigilance, surprise checks and inspections are carried out and suggestions for system
improvements, transparency in work, simplification of rules and regulations and usage of
technology is promoted. The Vigilance department is headed by Chief Vigilance officer
(common CVO for REIL, ILK, HSL & SSL) and assisted by Vigilance Officer. Vigilance
Awareness Week-2022 was observed from 315t October 2022 to 6" November 2022. The
Vigilance department follows policies and circulars issued by Central Vigilance
Commission to build and strengthen a culture of transparency.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

As per the requirements of RTI Act, the names of Appellate Authority, Central Public
Information Officer and Assistant Public Information Officer of the company are posted on
the website. Queries received are replied within the stipulated time. During the year the
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company has received 39 RTI applications and 6 first appeals and addressed all
applications and appeals.

REDRESSAL OF PUBLIC GRIEVANCES

Your Company is committed for resolution of public grievance in efficient and time bound
manner. In order to facilitate resolution of grievances in transparent and time bound
manner, Department of Administrative Reforms & Public Grievances, Department of
Personnel & Training, Government of India has initiated web-based monitoring system at
www.pgportal.in.

As per directions of GOI, public grievances are to be resolved within two months’ time. If it
is not possible to resolve the same within two months period, an interim reply is to be given.
Your company is making all efforts to resolve grievances in above time frame. Having
regard to the fact that company is operating at minimum manpower, effort has being made
that in the grievance committee sufficient representatives of SC/ST and OBC are
represented.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF
PARLIAMENTARY COMMITTEES

The company has not incurred expenditure on foreign travel. Expenditure incurred on
Business Promotion and Entertainment was T 2.29 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 4.64 Lakhs)
which works out to 0.08% of the turnover. Expenditure on advertisement and publicity
was 7 Nil Lakhs (Previous year  Nil Lakhs).

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

During the year under review, the contribution / provision made by the company in the
form of various taxes / interest to the National Exchequer, both Central and State, was of
7 3197 lakhs as against T 515 lakhs in the previous year.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS
The information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 are as under:

AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India have appointed M/s R. K. Malpani & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Jaipur as Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2022-23.

MANAGEMENT COMMENTS ON STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

The company has received the Auditors’ Report from the Statutory Auditors. M/s R. K.
Malpani & Associates, Chartered Accountant, Jaipur on the Standalone financial
statement of the Company for the year ended 315t March, 2023.

Statement showing Management Reply of HSL Statutory Auditor observation on
Standalone Accounts for the year 2022-23 is as under:

S.No. | Audit Observations Management Reply

Qualified Opinion- Annexure-A
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It has been observed that large balances in following cases
are being brought forwarded from earlier years. It is
suggested that the matter may be finalized and necessary
adjustments be made in this regard at the earliest:-

S. Account Particulars Amount in Rs.

No. | Head

Note- 13
Long

Amount
outstanding
term from M/s Gujarat
Loans & | Tech Cell Pvt.
Advances | Ltd depicted
under sub head
"Other loans &
advances"

1,98,88,958.00/-

Capital
Reserve

Amount  being
depicted  from
last many
years. Nature
& details not
made available

10,26,28,293.41/-

The amount of
Rs.1,98,88,958/- with GTCL is
under sub-judice with the
MSME court, Ahmedabad and
we are perusing for finalizing
the matter. As and when it will
be finalized, necessary
adjustment will be made.

The amount of
Rs.10,26,28,293.41 is related
with adjustment of loan waived
by Govt. of India and necessary
adjustment  whatsoever in
nature will be made in current
financial year.

As pointed out in the previous year's supplementary audit,
the company has not disclosed the cost formulae used for
valuation of inventory / salt in progress and accordingly AS-
2 for. Valuation of Inventory issued by ICAl has not been
properly complied with.

After observations of AG Paras,
company disclosed the cost
formulae as cost means
DIRECT COST.

The numerator and denominator used for computation of
various accounting ratios have not been explained as
required by the Revised Schedule Ill of The Companies Act,
2013.

Noted for compliance.

As per the practice followed by the company, the head office

on behalf of its units makes payments to different vendors
and also receives payment from various parties. The units
make adjustment entries in this regard in accounts of the
parties as and when the relevant intimation is received from
head office. It is observed that the date of actual receipts
and payments are not available with the units and thus
period wise outstanding of such parties cannot be evaluated
properly from the books of accounts of the units. Therefore,
we are unable to comment on the ageing schedule of
debtors and creditors as depicted in the financial
statements.

Noted for compliance.
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The company has deducted GST TDS (as required by the
provision of section 51 and 52 of the CGST Act) in the month
of March 2023 instead of deducting the same on monthly
basis. Due to non deduction of GST TDS monthly basis,
liability of GST Interest is understated by the company.

Noted for compliance.

The company has taken Overdraft facility from State Bank
of India of Rs. 2880.00 Lakhs secured against FDR’s. The
Company has shown the above loan facility in Note-9 Other
Current Liabilities instead of the showing the same in Note-
7 Short Term Borrowings.

Noted for compliance.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Para 1.10 (ii) of Note No. 1 and Note
No.6 to the financial statement regarding Retirement
Benefits (Gratuity), which states that liability for gratuity
was depicted as on 31.03.2023 for 18.27 lakh in the books,
but no Investment was made as required under AS-15.

In the case of confirmed labour provision for gratuity has been
made on the basis of length of service and wages payable
but not on the basis of actuarial valuation as required in terms
of AS-15.

Company has taken the policy
for Gratuity from LIC and paid
premium regularly. In respect
of Investment company has
taken necessary action during
current financial year.

Attention is also invited to Note no. 30 "Contingent
Liabilities and Capital Commitments to the extent not
provided for", wherein liabilities for substantial amount
which -may materially affect the financial statements of the
company, on various accounts have not been provided for.

The liabilities shown in Note
No. 30 are contingent in nature
and not payable in view of
pending court cases and
position explained of each item
at Note 30.

We draw attention to the Note No. 12 "Non-Current
Investments"” wherein no provision for loss has been made
in respect of the investment of Rs. 60.00 lacs made in
subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Ltd. in the books of
accounts in view of much higher net worth of the
subsidiary company calculated on the basis of the market
value of fixed assets which was last assessed by the
Certified Assets Value in the year 2001.

The market value of fixed
assets of subsidiary company
was assessed in 2021 by the
Protocol Valuer for Rs.40.62
crore excluding value of lease
land hence provision for loss in
investment  in  subsidiary
company is not required.
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There is a Pending Litigation going on between the company
& Railway Corporation of India regarding a Lease rent
agreement. The company has taken a land on lease in
Ramnagar Unit but the company is not making any payment
to the Railways due to the dispute but the company is

Company is following up the
Accounting on accrual basis.
We are booking all the due
expenses on the same related
Financial Year based on past

charging rent in its books.

agreement.

Railway is demanding higher
charges as compare to agreed
terms and conditions. So
litigation is in process with
Railways.

Reply to observation made under Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 under Annexure-B.

(i) (@) (A)

According to information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not maintained reasonable records
showing particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets register will be completed
after completion of physical verification
work in current financial year

(i) (@) (B)

According to information and explanations given to
us, the company has not maintained proper records
of intangible assets.

The company will prepared proper

record in current financial year

(i) (b)

As explained to us, the company has no written policy
and procedures for physical verification of the fixed
assets at reasonable intervals. Fixed assets have not
been physically verified by the management. No
comment therefore can be made on discrepancies, if
any.

Noted for compliance however
company is in process for making the
policy for physical verification of Fixed
Assets.

(c)1

(i) (c) 2

According to the information and explanations given
to us and as per records examined by us, we found
following discrepancies in title deeds of immovable
properties. The details of such discrepancies are as
under:-

Freehold property at Kharagodha Village, District-
Surendar Nagar, (Gujarat) Area 23596 Acres — Rs.
24.54 lakh. However, as per records of fixed assets
maintained at the unit the total land area is 23449
acres. The details of land holding as provided to us is
as under:-

Area

22768 Acres
326 Acres
25 Acres

Particulars

Run side land
Village land
Miscellaneous land
Land acquired back by Govt. 330 Acres

Total 23449 acres

Title documents in relation to Run side Land which is
under salt manufacturing area were not provided to
us. It has also been explained that the state Govt. of
Guijarat has disputed the above land as lease hold in

(i) (c), 1 & 2 Land measuring 23596
Acres at Kharaghoda Gujarat belongs
to company as the cost of land was
paid to Govt of India by issuing the
shares at the time of formation of
company

The matter is sub-judice in the Hon’ble
High Court of Gujarat for correction of
record

22




151

HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

64" Annual Report
2022-23

place of free hold land and claim of * 272.80 lacs on
account of agriculture and non-agriculture
assessment has been raised. The matter is presently
sub-judice.

(i) (c) 3

Title documents in form of copy of 7/12 for land
measuring about 132 acres are available on record.
The name of owner of property is mentioned as
“Hindustan Salt Woks, Kharaghoda” instead of
“Hindustan Salts Limited”

The action for correction the name of
property will be taken with revenue
department of Govt of Gujarat

(i) (c) 4

() (c) 5

Title documents in respect of freehold property at
Mohal Khaliyar, Mandi having area of 702.25 sq. mtr.
Rs 37.92 Lakh were not made available.

Leasehold Property at Maigal Salt Works, Gum
Mines, Drang Mines, Himachal Pradesh having area
133.116 Acres. A photo copy of lease deed executed
on 31.08.2007 in the name of Hindustan Salts Limited
is available and no other document was provided by
the company to verify the title in the name of the
Company. Out of above, title documents in respect of
land measuring 74 acres at Guma, were not available
on records.

() (¢ ) 4. The free hold property at
Khaliyar was acquired for purpose of
office and residence after paying the
compensation to the owner of the land
however the entries for the same are to
be corrected for which already the
proceedings are under process

(i) (c), 5 There was a land dispute
regarding entries being reflected in
revenue papers for which entries
regarding land at Maigal and Drang
have been completed also entries of
land at Guma is partially carried out.

(i) (c) 6

Leasehold Property at Ramnagar District Nainital with
Area of 4712.61 sqg. mtr. Original titte Documents were
not made available for verification.

Land has been leased by Railway for
setting up lodization plant and
warehouse. There is a dispute
regarding fixation of rent with
Railways.

It is observed that the provision of CSR is applicable
to the Company for the year, however the company
has made provision for the amount of Rs 1414000/-
and has not spent applicable amount on any of CSR
activity. Therefore there are unspent amounts towards
corporate social responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects which is transfer to a fund specified
in schedule VII to the companies act in compliance
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
said act

(xx) (b)

There amount remaining unspent under sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the Companies act is Rs.
1214000/- pursuant to any ongoing project has not
been transferred to special account in compliance
with the provision of Sub Section (6) of the section 135
of the said act

(xx) (a) & (b)

Till last financial year CSR was not
applicable due to accumulated loss.
This is reason so that we have created
provision for CSR. No expenditure
incurred during the year. The company
is in process for opening a separate
bank account for unspent amount of
CSR. The unspent amount of CSR wiill
be transferred in such account during
current financial year
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Reply to Qualified opinion made under internal Financial Controls under Annexure-C

The company has no proper policies and procedures for
periodical physical verification of fixed assets and
inventories of the company. During the year under
consideration no physical verification of fixed assets has
been conducted by the company. The company’s internal
control over existence, completeness, valuation &
allocation of fixed assets is not operating effectively. As
reported to us, physical verification of inventory was not
conducted at any unit but however, the management has
written off inventory at its Kharaghoda Unit.

Company has taken necessary steps
for preparation of policy on verification
of Assets, However company will
finalize the policy of physical verification
conducted by committee of officers at
regular interval in current financial year.

The internal audit of the Company is being carried by the
independent firm of Chartered Accountants and looking to
the size, nature and volume of transactions, the same
needs to be strengthened.

Chartered Accountants Firm has
already been appointed as an Internal
Auditor and being asked to do the work
of internal audit as per the size nature
and volume of transaction of the
company

The company lacks in obtaining third party balance
confirmations for various advances & liabilities and
accordingly does not reconcile the periodic balances with
the confirmations, which could potentially result is material
misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements.

Noted for compliance, however
Company has issued written letters to
the concern parties but till date
company has not received confirmation
letter as reply from the parties.

The Statutory Auditors has given a qualified report on Consolidated Financial Statement
of the company and its subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Limited for the financial year

2022-23, has drawn attention under “Emphasis Matter”

and qualified opinion on Internal

Financial Controls. The reply to Qualified Opinion on Consolidated financial statement is

as under:

Auditor Observation Management Reply

Emphasis of Matter:-

We draw attention to Para 1.10 (ii) of Note No. 1 and | Company has taken the policy for Gratuity
Note No.6 to the financial statement regarding | from LIC and paid premium regularly. In
Retirement Benefits (Gratuity), which states that liability | respect of Investment company has
for gratuity was depicted as on 31.03.2023 for 121.19 | taken necessary action during current
lakh in the books, but no Investment was made as | financial year.

required under AS-15.

In the case of confirmed labour provision for gratuity has
been made on the basis of length of service and wages
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payable but not on the basis of actuarial valuation as
required in terms of AS-15.

Attention is also invited to Note no. 30 "Contingent
Liabilities and Capital Commitments to the extent not
provided for", wherein liabilities for substantial amount
which -may materially affect the financial statements of
the company, on various accounts have not been
provided for.

The liabilities shown in Note No.29 are
contingent in nature and not payable in
view of pending court cases and position
explained of each item at Note 29.

We draw attention to the Note No. 12 "Non-Current
Investments" wherein no provision for loss has been
made in respect of the investment of Rs. 60.00 lacs
made in subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Ltd. in the
books of accounts in view of much higher net worth of
the subsidiary company calculated on the basis of the
market value of fixed assets which was last assessed
by the Certified Assets Valuer in the year 2001.

The market value of fixed assets of
subsidiary company was assessed in
2021 by the Protocol Valuer for Rs.40.62
crore excluding value of lease land hence
provision for loss in investment in
subsidiary company is not required.

There is a Pending Litigation going on between the
company & Railway Corporation of India regarding a
Lease rent agreement. The company has taken a land
on lease in Ramnagar Unit but the company is not
making any payment to the Railways due to the dispute
but the company is charging rent in its books.

Company is following up the Accounting
on accrual basis. We are booking all the
due expenses on the same related
Financial Year based on past
agreement.

Railway is demanding higher charges as
compare to agreed terms and conditions.
So litigation is in process with Railways.

We draw kind attention to Analytical Ratios disclosed in
the Financial Statements by the company in which no
proper explanation /commentary was given by the
management of the company while preparing the
financial statements.

Company has disclosed detailed ratios in
point no 37 of Note No 30" Additional
Notes”

We draw your kind attention to Point No. 29 of Note No.
30 Other Notes of Accounts whereby company had
written off the old credit balances amounting to Rs.
75.36 Lakhs during the FY 2022-23.

The old out standing amount write off
after given the proper time to party for
claiming the amount through notice
publish in newspaper.

Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020

According to information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not maintained reasonable records
showing particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets register will be completed
after completion of physical verification
work in current financial year.
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According to information and explanations given to us,
the company has not maintained proper records of
intangible assets.

The company will prepared proper record
in current financial year

As explained to us, the company has no written policy
and procedures for physical verification of the fixed
assets at reasonable intervals. Fixed assets have not
been physically verified by the management. No
comment therefore can be made on discrepancies, if
any.

Noted for compliance, however, company
is in process for making the policy for
physical verification of Fixed Assets.

Freehold property at Kharagodha Village, District-
Surendar Nagar, (Gujarat) Area 23596 Acres — 24.54
lakh. However, as per records of fixed assets
maintained at the unit the total land area is 23449 acres.
The details of land holding as provided to us is as
under:-

Area

22768 Acres
326 Acres
25 Acres
330 Acres
23449 acres

Particulars

Run side land

Village land

Miscellaneous land

Land acquired back by Govt.
Total

Title documents in relation to Run side Land which is
under salt manufacturing area were not provided to us.
It has also been explained that the state Govt. of Gujarat
has disputed the above land as lease hold in place of
free hold land and claim of * 272.80 lacs on account of
agriculture and non-agriculture assessment has been
raised. The matter is presently sub-judice.

() (c), 1 & 2 Land measuring 23596 Acres
at Kharaghoda Gujarat belongs to
company as the cost of land was paid to
Govt of India by issuing the shares at the
time of formation of company

The matter is sub-judice in the Hon’ble
High Court of Gujarat for correction of
record.
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Title documents in form of copy of 7/12 for land
measuring about 132 acres are available on record. The
name of owner of property is mentioned as “Hindustan
Salt Woks, Kharaghoda” instead of “Hindustan Salts
Limited”

The action for correction the name of
property will be taken with revenue
department of Govt of Gujarat

Title documents in respect of freehold property at Mohal
Khaliyar, Mandi having area of 702.25 sg. mtr. Rs 37.92
Lakh were not made available.

(i) (c) 4. The free hold property at Khaliyar
was acquired for purpose of office and
residence after paying the compensation
to the owner of the land however the
entries for the same are to be corrected
for which already the proceedings are
under process

Leasehold Property at Maigal Salt Works, Gum Mines,
Drang Mines, Himachal Pradesh having area 133.116
Acres. A photo copy of lease deed executed on
31.08.2007 in the name of Hindustan Salts Limited is
available and no other document was provided by the
company to verify the title in the name of the Company.
Out of above, title documents in respect of land
measuring 74 acres at Guma, were not available on
records.

(i) (c), 5 There was a land dispute
regarding entries being reflected in
revenue papers for which entries
regarding land at Maigal and Drang have
been completed also entries of land at
Guma is partially carried out.

Leasehold Property at Ramnagar District Nainital with
Area of 4712.61 sq. mtr. Original titte Documents were
not made available for verification.

Land has been leased by Railway for
setting up lodization plant and
warehouse. There is a dispute regarding
fixation of rent with Railways.

As explained to us, company has not revalued any
of its property, Plant equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year

Noted for compliance

According to information and as explanation given
to us, Company has no procedure and policy for
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

Company has taken necessary steps for
preparation of policy on verification of
Inventory however in subsidiary company
a Chartered Accountants Firm  has
appointed for physical verification of
inventory during the financial year.

In respect of loans of Rs. 5835.05 Lakhs to
subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Limited, no
regular recoveries have been made of principal or
of interest. There is no proper schedule of
repayment of principal and interest. The company
has also given advances in nature of loan to its

It is not possible to recover the loan and
outstanding interest from subsidiary
company i.e Sambhar Salts Limited due
to accumulated losses. However,
necessary steps are being taken by
subsidiary company for increasing the
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employees which are recovered regularly together
with interest if applicable as per company policy.

In respect of loans granted by the company to
subsidiary, the total outstanding amount of
principal and interest as on 31.03.2023 is Rs.
5835.05 Lakhs i.e. principal Rs. 3576.50 Lakhs and
interest Rs. 2258.55 Lakhs which is overdue by 90
days. The company has not taken necessary steps
for recovery of loan along with interest from its
subsidiary company Sambhar Salts Limited.

production of common salt and process
salt etc., make profit to pay the amount of
outstanding loan and interest in phase
manner to holding company

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial
institution or bank except default in repayment of
loan to Government of India (including interest of
2869.37 lakh). Repayment of interest to
Government of India has been made by the
Company in month of March of Rs. 2869.37 lacs. The
Principal amount is still unpaid by the company of
Rs. 1241.29 lakhs.

The company has paid outstanding
interest up to Dec 22 in the month of
march 23 and in respect of principal
amount Rs 12.41 Crore the matter for
conversation of loan in to equity is in
process

The company has an internal audit system. Internal
audit of the Company is being carried by the
independent firm of Chartered Accountants and
looking to the size, nature and volume of
transactions, the same needs to be strengthened,;

Noted for compliance

It is observed that the provision of CSR is applicable to
the Company for the year, however the company has
made provision for the amount of Rs 1414000/- and has
not spent applicable amount on any of CSR activity.
Therefore there are unspent amounts towards
corporate social responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects which is transfer to a fund specified in
schedule VIl to the companies act in compliance second
proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said act

Till last financial year CSR was not
applicable due to accumulated loss. This
is reason so that we have created
provision for CSR. No expenditure
incurred during the year. The company is
in process for opening a separate bank
account for unspent amount of CSR. The
unspent amount of CSR will  be
transferred  in such account during
current financial year

As per the information and explanation given to us
the company has no written policy and procedures
for physical verification of the fixed assets at

reasonable interval. As per information and
explanation given to us physical verification has

1 (b) Company has taken necessary
steps for  preparation of policy on
verification of Assets however company
has appointed a Chartered Accountants
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Firm for physical verification of Assets
during the financial year.

According to the information and explanation given
to us and the records examined by us and based on
the examination of the title deeds of freehold and
leasehold immovable property situated at Sambhar
Lake as at the balance sheet date, we found the
discrepancy details are as follows: -

Particu
lars

Titles of
Property

Area

Present Status

Remarks

Land

Lease hold

(1).2648 Acres of
land is under
dispute with Govt
of Rajasthan, (2)
424.80 acres of
land is Encroach
by Pvt salt
producer.

No original
documents
provided, but
only
photocopies
provided

Freehold

(1) 16.41 Acres of
land under dispute
at Rawan tibe
sambhar lake,
matter is pending
with court

No original
documents
provided, but
only
photocopies
provided

(2) 18.12 Acres of
land under dispute
at Bag shed,
matter  pending
with railway
jodhpur

(3) 23.71 Acres of
land under dispute
at shaadpur
Gudha salt,
matter with
pending with
Nawa court for
correction

No lease deed has been executed by Govt. of
Rajasthan for allotment of said leasehold land, but
the company has provided only photocopies
relating to V.T. Krishnamacharya award in which it
is a mention that Govt. of Rajasthan has given the
land for 99 years lease to the Govt. of India for
Sambhar Salts Limited on Annual lease rent of Rs.
5.50 lakhs per annum and Govt. of India should set
up a company namely Sambhar salts Ltd. and
Sambhar salts Itd, will be allotted free shares in
favor of Govt. of Rajasthan to the extent of 40% of
the paid-up capital of the company from time to time,
no lease agreement has been executed so far with
Govt. of Rajasthan, hence not commented on the
title of land in name of company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the record of

Noted for compliance
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the company, the company has not revalued its Fixed
Assets (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets or both during the year.

In respect of its Inventory and Working Capital Limits

(i) The inventories have been physically verified during
the year by the management at reasonable intervals
except that of Salt. Physical Verification of spare parts
was done on sample basis only.

(li)y The coverage and procedure of physical verification
of inventory followed by the management is not
reasonable, adequate and appropriate in relation to the
size of company and the nature of its business.

(lii) The company has maintained proper records of
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on such
verification between the physical stocks and book stocks
were not material for each class of inventory and the
same have been properly dealt with in the books of
accounts.

Noted for compliance, however,
Company has taken necessary steps for
preparation of policy on verification of
inventories. During the financial year,
company has appointed a Chartered
Accountants Firm for physical verification
of Assets & inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the company, there are some instances noticed
where transactions of Rs. 1.57 Lakhs were wrongly
recorded in the books of account have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961). There is no previously unrecorded income
which has been required to be properly recorded in the
books of account during the year.

The income related to previous year
which is notice in current financial year
has been recorded in the books of
accounts during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has defaulted in
the repayment of loans or borrowings from its Holding
Company i.e., Hindustan Salts Ltd

Nature Name Amount
of of not paid on | principal days
Borrow | Lender due date or interest | delay
ing or
includi unpaid
ng debt
Securit
ies

Whether No. of | Remarks

,if any

It is not possible to repay the loan and
outstanding interest to holding company
Hindustan  Salts Limited due to
accumulated losses. However, necessary
steps are being taken by increasing the
production of common salt and process
salt etc., make profit to pay the amount of
outstanding loan and interest in phase
manner.
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Hindust Rs. Principal
an Salts | 5686.45.67 (Rs.
Limited Lakhs 3427.90
(Holding Lakhs)
Compa
ny)

Interest
(Rs.
2258.55
Lakhs)

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings
from financial institutions, bank or government and has
not issued any debentures.

The Company has not proper Internal Audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

Noted for compliance however The
company has appointed a chartered
accountants firm for internal audit during
the year

As per the information and explanation given to us
and on basis of books and records examined by us
we report that the company had made donation of
rs 9.10Lakh to its holding company in respect of

expenditure incurred by Hindustan Salts Ltd at its
unit . Further the company had made provision of
Rs 18.12 Lakh in respect of CSR expenses which
shown that the company had unspent CSR amount
of rs 18.12 Lakh related to other than ongoing
projects and the same was not transered to a fund
specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013
till the date of our report. However the time period
for such transfer Il,e, six month of the expire of the
financial year as permitted under the second
proviso to sub section (5) of section 135 of the Act
has not elapsed till the date of our report

The company is in process for opening a
separate bank account for unspent
amount of CSR. The unspent amount of
CSR will be transferred in such account
during current financial year

Reply to qualified opinion made under Internal Financial Control under Annexure C

a

The company has no proper policies and
procedures for periodical physical verification of
fixed assets and inventories of the company. During
the year wunder consideration no physical
verification of fixed assets has been conducted by
the company. The company's internal control over
existence, completeness, valuation & allocation of
fixed assets is not operating effectively. As reported
to us, physical verification of inventory was not
conducted at any unit.

Noted for compliance, however,
Company has taken necessary steps for
preparation of policy on verification of
inventories. During the financial year,
company has appointed a Chartered
Accountants Firm for physical verification
of Assets & inventory in subsidiary
company i.e. Sambhar Salts Ltd
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The internal audit of the Company is being carried | Chartered Accountants Firms has already
by the independent firm of Chartered Accountants | been appointed as a Internal Auditor and
and looking to the size, nature and volume of | being asked to do the work of internal
transactions, the same needs to be strengthened. audit as per the size, nature and volume
of transactions of the company.

The corporation lacks an appropriate control | Noted for compliance, however, company
system for obtaining third party balance | has issued letter to the concern parties
confirmations for various advances & liabilities. | but till date company has not received
Further, the corporation does not reconcile the | confirmation letter from parties.

periodic balances with the confirmations, which
could potentially result is material misstatement of
the financial statements & may lead to fraudulent
activity resulting in financial losses. The
corporation’s internal control over existence,
completeness, valuation & allocation of fixed assets
is not operating effectively.

The Corporation has no comprehensive model for | Company will take necessary action
internal control over financial reporting | during the current financial year.

incorporating risk assessment, control process and
gap tracking along with the description of objective,
process and risk associated thereof, as per the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The internal control system for identification & | Company will take necessary action
allocation of overheads to inventory was also not | during the current financial year.

operating effectively. These could result in material
misstatements in the corporation’s assets &
liabilities, inventory & expense accounts balances.

The corporation’s internal control system lacks | Company will take necessary action
formal reconciling the balances of the banks/ third | during the current financial year.

parties, which could potentially result in material
misstatement in regard to carry forward of balances
in the financial statements.

The corporation’s internal control system of | Company will take necessary action
accounting on real time basis is not operating. during the current financial year.

The corporation’s internal control system with | Company will take necessary action
regard to matters described in the Basis for | during the current financial year.
Qualified Opinion paragraph to the Independent
Auditor’s Report for the FY 2022-23 is not operating
effectively.
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The company lacks in obtaining third party balance
confirmations for various advances & liabilities and
accordingly does not reconcile the periodic
balances with the confirmations, which could
potentially result is material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Noted for compliance, however, company
has issued written letter to the concern
parties but till date company has not
received confirmation letter from parties.

Statement showing the management reply on Statutory Auditors’ observations for the year

2022-23is as under:-

It has been observed that large balances in following
cases are being brought forwarded from earlier
years. It is suggested that the matter may be finalized
and necessary adjustments be made in this regard
at the earliest:-

S. Account Particulars Amount in Rs.

No. Head

Note- 13
Long term
Loans &
Advances

Amount
outstanding from
M/s Gujarat Tech
Cell Pvt. Ltd
depicted under sub
head "Other loans &
advances"

1,98,88,958.00/-

Capital
Reserve

Amount being
depicted from last
many years.
Nature & details
not made available

10,26,28,293.41/-

The amount of Rs.1,98,88,958/- with
GTCL is under sub-judice with the MSME
court, Ahmedabad and we are perusing
for finalizing the matter. As and when it
will be finalized, necessary adjustment
will be made.

The amount of Rs.10,26,28,293.41 is
related with adjustment of loan waived by
Govt. of India and necessary adjustment
whatsoever in nature will be made in
current financial year.

As pointed out in the previous year's supplementary

audit, the company has not disclosed the cost
formulae used for valuation of inventory / salt in
progress and accordingly AS-2 for. Valuation of
Inventory issued by ICAI has not been properly
complied with.

After observations in AG Paras, company
disclosed the cost formulae as cost
means DIRECT COST.

The numerator and denominator used for
computation of various accounting ratios have not
been explained as required by the Revised
Schedule Ill of The Companies Act, 2013.

Noted for compliance.

As per the practice followed by the company, the
head office on behalf of its units makes payments
to different vendors and also receives payment from

Noted for compliance.
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various parties. The units make adjustment entries
in this regard in accounts of the parties as and when
the relevant intimation is received from head office.
It is observed that the date of actual receipts and
payments are not available with the units and thus
period wise outstanding of such parties cannot be
evaluated properly from the books of accounts of the
units. Therefore, we are unable to comment on the
ageing schedule of debtors and creditors as
depicted in the financial statements.

The company has deducted GST TDS (as required
by the provision of section 51 and 52 of the CGST
Act) in the month of March 2023 instead of
deducting the same on monthly basis. Due to non
deduction of GST TDS monthly basis, liability of
GST Interest is understated by the company.

Noted for compliance.

The company has taken Overdraft facility from State
Bank of India of Rs. 2880.00 Lakhs secured against
FDR’s. The Company has shown the above loan
facility in Note-9 Other Current Liabilities instead of
the showing the same in Note-7 Short Term
Borrowings.

Noted for compliance.

Long-Term Borrowings of Rs. 148.60 Lakhs (Note
No. 4)

We draw your kind attention to Note No. 4 of Financial
Statements whereby nature of Long-Term Borrowings
has not been sub-classified as secured and unsecured
in each case which is in deviation with the compliance
of Division | of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

Loan has been given to SSL by holding
company Hindustan salts limited, Jaipur &
Same is treated as unsecured loan.

Short Term Borrowings of Rs. 5686.45 Lakhs (Note
No. 7)

We draw your kind attention to Note No. 7 of Financial
Statements whereby nature of Short-Term Borrowings
has not been sub-classified as secured and unsecured
in each case which is in deviation with the compliance
of Division | of Schedule 11l of Companies Act, 2013.

Loan has been given to SSL by holding
company Hindustan salts limited, Jaipur &
Same is treated as unsecured loan.

Staff and CSR Expenditure of Rs. 68.82 Lakhs (Note
No. 25.4)

We draw your kind attention to Note No. 25.4 of
Financial Statements whereby the expenditure amount
of Rs. 68.82 Lakhs was shown as Staff & CSR and the

amount of same was not bifurcated separately as Staff
Expenditure and CSR Expenditure. Also, the company

Records of staff expenditures and CSR
has been separately maintained but
combined figures have been shown in the
financial statements. Staff expenditure is
Rs. 41.60 Lacs and balance Rs. 27.22
lakh are related to CSR. Same
information has been communicated to

34
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has not complied with the Disclosure requirement of
CSR Expenditure of as per Division | of Schedule Il of
Companies Act, 2013.

We would also like to highlight that company had
made donation of CSR Expenditure amount of Rs.
9.10 Lakhs to its holding company i.e., Hindustan
Salts Limited which is in deviation from the CSR
Activities classified in Schedule VII of Companies
Act, 2013 and the same was also not disclosed by
the company in Notes to Accounts. Also, company
had an unspent CSR amount of Rs. 18.12 Lakhs
which was neither transferred to special account
not disclosed by of notes to accounts

the statutory auditor in the sheet

attached.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
expenditure is governed by the
Companies Act, 2013, in India. According
to the Act, companies meeting certain
financial criteria are required to spend a
specified amount on CSR activities in the
financial year immediately preceding the
financial year in which the profit is earned.
The profit earned in the financial year
2022-23 will be considered for calculating
average profit to incur CSR expenditure
2023-24. The company has incurred
expenditure as per statutory
requirements.

The holding company has incurred CSR
expenditure of Rs. 9.10 lac on behalf of
the company and company has made a
provision of amount on average profit
including the profit earned during FY
2022-23. It will be spent during the
financial year 2023-24.

Financial statements have been prepared
as per the companies act as per
knowledge of the company staff.
However, if there are any non-
compliances related to disclosure and
classification, company will take advise
for next financial year and take care.

Expenditure of Rs. 95 Lakhs

We draw your kind attention to payment of Rs. 95 Lakhs
made to M/s Sanbros Spares Pvt Ltd towards canvas
roofing and the same was shown under head CWIP.
However, as per our opinion canvas roofing is only a
process which stops leakage of roofing and does not
increase the life of building. Hence, the same cannot be
treated as Capital Expenditure.

Due to erroneous treatment of revenue expenditure
as capital expenditure resulted in understatement

Work is not completed yet, Life of present
roofing has almost finished. Canvas
Roofing has the life of more than one
year, company has also giving the
guarantee of 2 years and a life of more
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of profit before tax by Rs. 95 Lakhs and
overstatement of capital work-in-progress by Rs. 95
Lakhs.

than 20 years hence cannot be treated
as revenue nature expenses.

Trade Receivables of Rs. 7.42 Lakh (Note No. 16)
We wish to draw your kind attention to Note No. 16,
Trade Receivables of Rs. 7.42 Lakhs whereby company
has not followed appropriate procedure to obtain
confirmation for their balances featured for the FY 2022-
23. Also, we have been provided with ledger of 2 parties
which was having Nil balances and the same was
signed by some personnel which seems to be
inappropriate procedure of obtaining confirmation.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the
realizability of such trade receivables, due to
uncertainty involved.

The Company follows the system to
obtain the confirmation of debtors
annually. The accounting department of
the company send mail to the commercial
department to take confirmation from the
debtors and then the commercial
department do the needful.

Trade Payables of Rs. 655.04 Lakhs (Note No. 8)
We draw kind attention to Note No. 8 of Financial
Statements, where Rs. 206.44 Lakhs of Trade Payables
are outstanding for more than 3 years. Company has
not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation of
their outstanding balances featured for the FY 2022-23
as there is no system of seeking confirmation from such
parties. Therefore, we are unable to comment on the
liability of such dues, due to uncertainty involved.

Company is being to implement a system
to confirm the debtors and creditors
balances.

Contingent Liability ( Note No 29)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 23 of Financial
Statements. The Company had not disclosed the impact
of Pending Litigations on financial Statements.

Due to absence of information and uncertainty
involved, we unable to comment on same.

We have pending court cases where we
believe that the claims against the
company are without merit, and we are
vigorously defending our position. Given
the uncertainty surrounding the outcomes
of these legal proceedings, we have been
hesitant to disclose the impact of the
same in our financial
statements.Financial impact of these
contingent liabilities on our overall
financial  statements is  relatively
negligible. We believe that disclosing
them would not provide meaningful
information to our stakeholders regarding
our financial health or performance.




151

HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
64" Annual Report
2022-23

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for Salt
Production, infrastructure development, extraction,
haulage and transportation at SSL central stores
including maintenance of existing salt production
infrastructure (Kyar No. 9-10) to M/s Mahadev
Contractor and Suppliers. Work Order dated
22/08/2022.

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above
Works

a. Sambhar Salts Ltd (SSL) floated a tender on 8th July
2022 for Salt Production, infrastructure development,
extraction, haulage and transportation of minimum
quantity (2.25 lakh MT) at SSL central stores
including maintenance of existing salt production
infrastructure (Kyar No. 9-10). Tender was opened
on 19th July 2022 and subsequently High Tendering
Committee (HTC) approved to open bids for only
three eligible bidders out of five bidders.

. The bid was opened, and M/s Mahadev Contractor
and Suppliers quoted % 8.59 crore at rate of ¥
382.00/MT and emerged as L-1 as being lowest
bidder. Subsequently company resorted to reverse
auction to obtain better price. In the reverse auction,
rate of M/s Mahadev Contractor and Suppliers was
¥380.00/MT against the estimated rate of
%370.00/MT.

. Due to higher rate, Negotiations Committee was
formed by the Group General Manager (Operations)
and final rate obtained was ¥350.00/MT. The SSL

subsequently approved a separate Rate for
developments works at ¥ 291/MT for the five years.

. The cost was subsequently revised to ¥ 14.42 crore
at rate 641/MT (Production Rate 350/MT+
Infrastructure Development Rate 291/MT). The letter
of intent was issued to M/s Mahadev Contractor on
22.08.2022.

(@) Sambhar Salts Ltd (SSL) floated a
tender on 8th July 2022 for Salt
Production infrastructure development
extraction haulage and transportation of
minimum quantity (2.25 Lakh MT) at SSL
central stores including maintenance of
exising salt production infrastructure
(Kyar No 9-10) . Tender was opened on
19th July 2022 and subsequently High
Tendering Committee ( HTC) approved to
oen bids for only three eligible bidders out
of five bidders.

(b) The bid was opened and M/s
Mahadev Contractor and Suppliers
quoted Rs 8.59 crore at rate of Rs 382.00
IMT and emerged as L-1 as being lowest
bidder. Subsequently company resorted
to reverse auction to obtain better price.
In the reverse auction rate of M/s
Mahadev Contractor and Suppliers was
Rs 380.00/ MT against the estimated rate
of Rs 370.00/ MT

(C &D)

Please refer Tender Document Clause
7.0 PAYMENT TERMS FOR
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
Sub Clause 7.5 :The cost in relation to the
infrastructure development will be paid in
Rupees per MT from first year onwards
based on the quantity of salt production
(i.e. along-with the payment of salt
production submitted by contractor). The
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e. As per the Tender Document, the bidder shall have

at least three-year experience in carrying out similar
nature of work (Similar nature of work shall mean
common salt production & infrastructure
development activities like Borewell construction,
Desilting of area, Salt extraction, labour contract and
transportation) within seven years ending on
31.05.2022. However, we have observed that the
bidder had submitted the experience certificate of
“Swastik Salt Works” which was from a contractor
without any identification number, contact number or
email id. Also, the tender committee had not done
any type of verification of genuineness and
authenticity of such experience certificate.

rates on which cost of infrastructure
will be paid is Rs.290/MT.

In view of the above the cost of
Infrastructure  Development  already
mentioned in Tender Document. Lol
includes both cost components in terms
of cost of ((Production Rate 350/MT+
Infrastructure Development Rate
291/MT). Therefore no subsequent
approval of rates was given to the
contractor and there was no _revision
of any cost whatsoever.

(e) M/s Mahadev Contractor & Supplier
submitted following certificates:

Experience Certificate from Swastik Salt
Works, Morbi Gujarat, mentioning that
M/s Mahadev Contractor & Supplier,

Degan, Rajasthan was awarded a
contract for Production, Extraction
and Transportation of salt at our
production unit Jajasar, Maliya Miyana,
Gujarat .The work period was from Jan-
1, 2017 to May 30" 2021.

Experience Certificate for Construction of
Arable Tanka from Executive Engineer,
Watershed Development and Soil
Conservation, Merta (Nagaur).

Experience Certificate for Construction of
CC Road from Executive Engineer, PWD
Division ,Degana.

The experience certificate from Swastik
Salt Works, Morbi Gujarat, was
telephonically verified by company after
taking the Telephone No. of the party.
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f.

Further, as per Tender Document Point No. 3
“Documents Required” of Section Il of
Qualification, “In case of lease of equipment,
the period of lease must be valid till end of
contract period i.e., till 30" Sept 2027

however, the bidder had simply submitted the
agreement of an equipment and not lease
agreement which was also valid till 13/07/2027.
However, the management of the company had

requested the bidder on 25/07/2022 to submit
shortfall document i.e., “Required Machinery
and Equipment to carry out all activates
development, production ext and ftran”. In
response to request for shortfall documents
bidder had submitted an agreement of an
equipment and not lease agreement on Stamp
Paper dated 25/07/2022 vide S. No. 1588 duly
notarized on dated 25/07/2022 and also as per
S. No. 2 of agreement, the vehicle was handed
over to the bidder on dated 31/12/2022.
Therefore, to get themselves technically
qualified, the bidder had submitted
manipulated/fabricated documents and
since the bidder had submitted backdated
agreement i.e., after the date of last date of
submission of bid, the same cannot be
accepted by the management.

The experience certificate from Executive
Engineer ,Watershed Development and
Soil Conservation, Merta (Nagaur) and
Executive Engineer, PWD Division
,Degana were from Government Agency
, therefore was considered as such.

In view of the above the party M/s
Mahadev Contractor & Supplier, was duly
qualified as per prescribed Technical
Quialification criteria in the tender.

(f) As per the Prequalification criteria
mentioned in Tender Document:

The Bidder shall have possession
through ownership/Lease of required
machinery and equipment to carry out
activities for development, production,
extraction and transportation of Salt.
Bidder should have under his possession
through  ownership/Lease at least
following : i) Back hoe Loader with Front
& Back Arrangement for Loading &
Excavation-1 No ( Capacity = 350 HP ) ii)
Tractor with Trolley- 1 No. ( Capacity =
240 HP ) In case of lease of equipment,
the period of lease must be valid till end
of contract period i.e. till 30th Sept 2027.

The main contention of the above criteria
was continuous availability of machine
with successful bidder to remain focused
on salt production as required till end of
contract period i.e. till 30th Sept 2027

Through the Agreement bidder was able
to ensure the continuous availability of
machine with him during contract period,
therefore bidder was qualified.
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g. However, to give undue favor to the bidder, the

management of the company had accepted the
fabricated/ manipulated documents of the bidder
and considered the bidder as Technically
Qualified for the bid.

h. We would also like to highlight that as per Manual for
Procurement of Works 2019, the applicant should

have successfully completed or substantially
completed one similar completed work costing not
less than the amount equal to 80 (eighty) percent of
the estimated cost i.e., ¥11.89 crore. However, the
NIT does not have any such clause which is in
contravention of Manual for Procurement of
Works 2019.

The bidder had already submitted the
agreement on Stamp Paper No. 1511 dt.
14/07/2022, which was prior to the last
date of submission of tender.

The shortfall documents were requested
for tractor trolley. Therefore agreement
for JCB submitted with shortfall
documents was not considered and the
agreement  submitted with original
documents was considered for
qualification of party.

() The bidder had submitted the
documents as per the Technical
Quialification criteria mentioned in Tender
documents.

Please refer submission of SSL against
point no. e above.

Experience certificate submitted for salt
production was duly verified
telephonically and Experience Certificate
for similar works was considered as such,
as they were from Government Agencies.

As explained above management of the
company had not accepted the
fabricated/ manipulated documents of the
bidder.

Bidder was Technically Qualified for the
bid as per the valid documents submitted
against prescribed eligibility criteria
mentioned in the bid document.

(h) As per the FOREWORD of Manuals
for Procurement of Goods 2017 and
Works 2019, these Manuals shall be
taken as generic guidelines for deciding
the prequalification criteria and Pre-
qualification criteria to be decided as per
local / specialized needs.
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The Manual for Procurement of Goods,

2017 stipulates that Pre-Qualification
Criteria must contain i) past experience of
similar contracts, ii) performance

capability and iii) financial strength.

Salt Production is a dynamic activity,
which is directly related with climatic
conditions wherein major Technical skill
and monitoring is essentially required for
higher yield and good quality salt
production. Therefore past experience in
activities related to the salt production is
the major factor for successful
performance of the contract.

However, major Civil works (i.e. De-
silting, Excavation etc.) related with
contract are of simple nature and does
not involve the complex construction
works. If there is regular availability of
required machinery and other material
then contractor having general
experience in Civil Works can reasonably
perform the works mentioned in the
tender within the specified time frame.

Therefore the Pre-qualification criteria
for the current tender involving Salt
Production is designed considering
the local / specialized needs to get
best possible salt output from the area

The Manual for Procurement of Works,
2019 mentions Pre-qualification criteria
(both Financial & Technical) only for
Construction related works.

The criteria mentioned in Manual for
Procurement of Works, 2019 i.e. the
applicant should have successfully
completed or substantially completed one
similar completed work costing not less
than the amount equal to 80 (eighty)
percent of the estimated cost i.e., ¥11.89
crore, will be of restrictive nature for
this case of tender which involves Civil
Works of simple nature and may deny
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Also, as per clause 5.1 of NIT, Bidders should quote
inclusive of all applicable GST, taxes, duties, levies,
insurance, transportation, Infrastructure
Developments (ID)etc., for entire scope of work.
However, the management had separately awarded
the work for infrastructure work on additional
payment which resulted in excess expenditure/
undue favor to the contractor amounting to ¥6.54
crore.

the opportunity to the bidders which
are having experience in salt
production and otherwise qualified to
perform the works mentioned in
tender.

In view of the above there is no
contravention of the prescribed
guidelines for Qualification Criteria in
the contract.

(1)

(1) .As per Clause 5.1 of BID
EVALUATION CRITERIA which is
partially referred in Audit Query (i),
Bidders should quote their rates/prices in
Indian Rupees only which shall be
inclusive of all applicable GST, taxes,
duties, levies, insurance, transportation,
Infrastructure Developments etc., for
entire scope of work as per this bidding
document or an Price bid format
included of this tender document.

As Per the Price Bid Format, the rates
are to be quoted as per Details mentioned
in Bid /Tender

Documents for, “Purchasing of Raw Salt
after Salt, Extraction, Haulage and
Transportation at SSL Central Stores
including Maintenance of Existing Salt
Production Infrastructure (Kyar 9-10)”

Therefore the complete criteria was not
mentioned in Audit Query and only partial
clause was considered.

Further as per Clause 5.2, Bidder shall
quote the rate in Rs/ MT for sale of salt
production, extraction, haulage and
transportation at SSL Central Stores
including maintenance of salt production
infrastructure in Kyars. per Scope of
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Work, terms and conditions etc.,
described in this tender document.

2. Existing Salt Production infrastructure
available in the area is mentioned in
Section VI

For maintenance of above existing
infrastructure / newly developed
infrastructure, some development
works are required to be
undertaken and such costs are to
be included in the quote submitted
by the bidders.

It was again clarified in Clause 2.3.1 and
2.3.2 of Section VI as follows:

2.3.1 Bidder shall quote the rate per
MT for salt production, extraction,
haulage and transportation at SSL
Central Stores including maintenance
of salt production infrastructure in
Kyars.

2.3.2 The contractor is required to
develop infrastructure as per details
mentioned in Table 5.2 of Section —-V.

It was clearly stipulated in the tender
Document that , Cost of development
works are mentioned to be reimbursed
as per the Payment Terms i.e. Sub
Clause 7.5 :The cost in relation to the
infrastructure development will be paid
in Rupees per MT from first year
onwards based on the quantity of salt
production  (i.e. along-with the
payment of salt production submitted
by contractor). The rates on which
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j. As per Point No. 6 of Section VIl General Conditions

of Contract of Tender Document, successful bidder

has to furnish Security Deposit of 3% of awarded

contract value which should be remain valid for a

period of 60 days beyond the date of completion of

all contractual obligations of the supplier. However,
we have observed the following:

i. Bidder had submitted the SD of Rs. 23.62 Lakh
only against total work order of value of Rs. 14.42
Crore instead of SD of Rs. 43.26 Lakh which
resulted in short receipt of Security Deposit of Rs.
19.64 Lakh.

ii. Also, the FDR submitted by the bidder as
Security Deposit is valid for a period of 1 year
i.e., till 05/09/2023 only. However, as per
Tender Document the security deposit should
be valid till 29/11/2027.

cost of infrastructure will be paid is
Rs.290/MT.

In view of the above the cost of
Infrastructure Development to be paid
in terms of actual salt production was
already mentioned in  Tender
Document.

For maintenance existing infrastructure /
newly developed infrastructure, some
development works are repeatedly
required to be undertaken and such costs
are to be included in the quote submitted
by the bidders.

As explained above, no additional
payment will be given to contractor
Infrastructure Development, other
than mentioned in Clause 7.0 of
Section VI of Tender Document and
there was no undue favour to the
contractor.

(J) 1. As per the contract, the successful
Bidder has to furnish 3% of the awarded
contract value as Security Deposit.

Contract Value is defined in the Tender
Document Section —VII Clause 1.6
equally for all bidders as follows :

1.6 “CONTRACT VALUE": Quoted rate
inclusive of all taxes and duties in price
bid X Quantity of Salt Produced in the
total Pans finalized as a result of this
tender notice during the Contract period.

Since salt production is the main objective
from tender, so the Contract Value was
also linked with Salt Production:




HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
64" Annual Report
2022-23

k. During the period from 01/09/2022 to 31/03/2023 no

goods were supplied by Mahadev Contractors and
Suppliers. As reported to us, no civil work is started
by the bidder till now. In absence of required civil
work as shown in bid documents or inadequate
experience of M/s Mahadev Contractor and
Suppliers (clearly seen from fake experience
certificate of salt production submitted at the time of
bidding) no production was done. During the FY
2022-23 around 20517.292 MT of Salt production
was done which was extracted from Kyar 9-10
between the period Sept 2022 to Dec 2022 for which
additional Rs. 104.10 per MT was additionally paid to
the bidder.

All the Infrastructure Development is
done for Salt Production, therefore
Payment Terms even for Infrastructure
Development & Penalties are linked with
Salt Production from the area.

The Contract Value as per award of work
to L-1 party is as follows :

225000 MT X Rs.350 / MT =
78750000.00

3% of Contract Value = Rs. 78750000.00
X 0.03 = Rs. 2362500.00

The above value of Rs. 23.62 lakhs
through FDR has been deposited as
Performance Security by the contractor.
Therefore there is no short receipt in
Performance Security.

Contractor shall renew the validity of
FDR before the closing date of validity of
presently submitted FDR , so that it can
remain valid as per the duration
mentioned in tender document.

(k) At the time of handing over of the area
to successful bidder in Sept 22, salt was
already available in the area which was to
be taken out before fresh salt production
can commence. Therefore contractor had
first taken out the already salt available in
area, extracted the same and supplied to
the company, so that the same does not
get wasted. For the extraction purpose
the existing prevailing rate of Rs 104 / MT
( i.e. the similar rate which was paid to
other contractors) was paid to this
contractor also.

After removal the

of existing salt,
contractor had cleaned the Kyars and
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To encourage the GST tax evasion management

of the company had issued the work order for

Purchase of Salt, however, work includes
infrastructure  development, salt  production,
extraction, haulage and transportation and even
main raw material i.e., water for production of salt is
also provided by the company. Hence, it is covered
under works contract which attract GST @18%.

commenced other development works
alongwith Salt Production.

The Salt from the area is estimated to be
extracted in the month of Sept-Oct 2023.
Therefore after extraction of Salt the
acceptable quantity of salt received at the
prescribed stores will be purchased by
the company and payment for the same
will be done as per contract.

The cost of on-going infrastructure
development works will be paid to the
party after they are completed and
accepted by company based on salt
production as per contract.

Therefore there is no absence of required
civil work as shown in bid documents or
inadequate experience of M/s Mahadev
Contractor and Suppliers.

() 1t is submitted that achieving higher
Salt production and purchase of salt is
the main objective of this tender.

As per the tender terms and conditions

Contractor is mainly responsible to
provide the salt of appropriate quality and
quantity to SSL and infrastructure
development would only enable
contractor to achieve the production
target as per the terms of the contract.

Neither contractor nor Company will
achieve anything from the contract, if only
work of infrastructure development is
carried out and no payment would be
made to contractor if production of salt is
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m. As per point no. E of work order dated 22/08/2022,
it is mentioned that presently salt is exempted from
GST, however if any GST gets applicable in future,
then it will be borne by SSL. It is not clear that if tax
is imposed on salt will be borne by SSL or any GST
tax liability arises due to classification of work order
as works contract will be borne by the company or
the bidder.

not done and even penalized if production
of salt is below targets.

Therefore Payment Terms for entire
scope of Contractor & Penalties are in
terms of appropriate quality & quantity of
Salt purchased by company from the
contractor.

As explained above the contract is based
on purchase of goods i.e. Salt which is
covered under the HSN Code 250100
from the contractor and not on works
which attracts 18% GST.

Classifying the contract as Works
Contract will fail the entire purpose of
company to award the tender for
achieving higher business from enhanced
salt purchase and sale.

(m) Please refer submission of SSL at
above point no n, the contract is based on
purchase of goods l.e, Salt from the
contractor. There is presently no GST on
Salt., However if any GST gets applicable
in future on Salt then it will be borne by
SSL

In view of the above there is no
inadvertent assistance to a particular
vendor and SSL has complied to all
prescribed rules and regulations.

In addition to the above point wise
submissions of SSL. It is submitted the
points raised are note for systemic
improvement and compliance in the
future tenders
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n. Also, the company had highlighted the fact that

“Classifying the contract as works contract will
fail the entire purpose for company to award the
tender for achieving higher business from
enhanced salt purchase and sale”.
The above contention of company apparently
exhibits that management of the company is
interested to do the GST Tax evasion by
classifying the tender for salt production as
Purchases of Salt instead of works contract.

On the basis of above facts/documents available on
record and observations of such documents, prime
facie it seems that the Tender for Salt Production,
infrastructure development, extraction, haulage and
transportation at SSL central stores including
maintenance of existing salt production
infrastructure (Kyar No. 9-10) to M/s Mahadev
Contractor by the management of the company to
give the inadvertent assistance to a particular
vendor by avoiding all the rules and regulations
prescribed under Manual for Procurement of Works
2019.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

(n) The company is a Public Sector
undertaking of the Indian Government
.The management does not have any
financial interest if GST tax evasion is
there

Deficiency in allotment of Work for Engagement of
Chartered Accountants Firms for Compilation of
account of Sambhar Salts Limited for the FY 2022-
23 to M/s AJRG & Associates (Further converted to
M/s AGRS & Associates)

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above
Works

a. EOI for aforementioned work was floated by the
company, however, no record was available where
the same was published or how the intimation was
sent to the prospective bidders. Last date of
submission of bid was 23/06/2023.

. Two bidders i.e., M/s AJRG & Associates (Further
converted to M/s AGRS & Associates) and M/s
Khandelwal Rakesh & Associates have
participated in the aforementioned bid.

. As per technical documents submitted by the
bidders, we have observed that both the bidders
have submitted dissimilar duly signed EOI. EOI
was provided by the company to the bidders.

(@) Same is Displayed on our Notice
board and inform about this to parties
through telephones.

(b) Yes

(c) EOI was revised and circulated to all
bidders along with publication on notice
board. By mistake while submitting the
bid, first bidder attached old version of

48
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. Scope of Work is also different in the EOI's
submitted by both the bidders.

. As per Qualification Criteria mentioned in Tender
Document “Bidder must have 5 years of experience
after its registration”, however the same
qualification criteria were not mentioned in the EOI
submitted by the other bidder.

During verification of Technical Documents, we
have observed that both the bidders have simply
submitted an Application Format containing basic
details only duly signed by CA. Ruchi Gupta/ Ruchi
Goyal for M/s AJRG & Associates and CA. Rakesh
Khandelwal for M/s Khandelwal Rakesh &
Associates.

. We have scrutinized the documents submitted by
the bidders and observed the following:

Qualification M/s AJRG & | M/s Khandelwal
Criteria as per | Associates Rakesh &
Tender Associates

Document

Firm must | Documentary Documentary
have proof office in | proof office in
registered Jaipur District | Jaipur District was
office in Jaipur | was not | not submitted
District submitted

Registered - Evidence of | - Evidence of
with ICAI and registration registration
have PAN and with  ICAI with ICAl i.e.,
GST ie., Firm Firm Card or
. . Card or Firm Firm

Registration Registration Registration
Certificate Certificate not
not submitted by
submitted by the bidder
the bidder - Copy of PAN
Copy of PAN Card not
Card not submitted by
submitted by the bidder
the bidder - Copy of GST
Copy of GST Registration
Registration not submitted
not by the bidder
submitted by
the bidder

EOI, though bid submission was for the
revised EOI, accordingly work contract
was given on basis the new EOI only and
accepted by bidder Please refer page
no.218 to 220 in the respective file.

(d) Scope of work was as per revised EOI
only. Please refer our reply for point (C.)
above for more details.

(e)Please refer our response in point (C.)
above, EOI evaluation was for revised
EOI.

(f) The form is self attached along with
CA seal with FRN NO

(g) Documents were evaluated on the
basis of revised EOI only and all
documents submitted were duly self
certified by responsive bidders.

If you review the TIME PERIOD OF
ENGAGEMENT ,its shows that CA firm
will act as a compiler of accounts for one
accounting year.
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Minimum
experience of
5 years after its
registration

Documentary of
date of
registration of firm
was not
submitted by the
bidder

Even the bidder
had not
mentioned the
PAN No. of the
firm in Application
Firm

Documentary  of
date of registration
of firm was not
submitted by the
bidder

Have at least 3
years of
experience in
compilation of
accounts

Bidder had not
submitted any
documentary
evidence in
respect of 3 years
of experience in
compilation of
accounts

Bidder had not
submitted any
documentary
evidence in
respect of 3 years
of experience in
compilation of
accounts

Even after all the above deficiency in technical
documents of bidders, both the bidders have been
technically qualified by the Committee and financial
bids were opened.

After opening of financial bid M/s AJRG & Associates
were awarded the work at Rs. 50,000 per month for
3 months and the same was extended on quarterly
basis for further 3 quarters. Also, provision of
extension was not available in EOI.

. On scrutiny of documents was have also observed
that the envelope in which the Technical Documents
was submitted by both the bidders does not contain
any addressing authority i.e., envelope was not
addressed to any official and is blank. Also, envelope
does not contain any name from whom the same was
received i.e., Name of bidder on envelopes who
submitted the Technical Documents was not
mentioned.

On the basis of above facts/documents
available on record and observations of such
documents, it seems that the Tender for
Engagement of Chartered Accountants Firms
for Compilation of account of Sambhar Salts
Limited for the FY 2022-23 to M/s AJRG &
Associates by the management of the company
without any technical documents/fallacious
documents of the bidder as set out in the EOI
to give the inadvertent assistance to a
particular vendor by avoiding all the rules and

(h) Envelops was submitted by parties
physically in our office
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regulations & by making collusion with some
specific bidders.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

Deficiency in allotment of Work for Stock Audit/
Physical Verification of Fixed Assets/ Physical
Verification of Spare Parts of Sambhar Salts Limited
for the FY 2022-23 to M/s AGRS & Associates /
AJRG & Associates.

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above

a.

Works

NIT of the aforementioned work was not available on
record.

. Also, it was not clear how the communication was

sent to the prospective bidders.

. No technical parameters and eligibility criteria were

available on record for floating such NIT if any.

. Financial bids of only 2 bidders namely M/s

AGRS & Associates and M/s Namit Vatsa & Co.
were received by the company through single
email (Financial bids of both bidders were
attached in a single mail L1 bidder) -on-email id
amit.jha@indiansalt.com and
sunil.bhandari@indiansalt.com under CC to
ajrgassociates@gmail.com from email id
“gupta_ruchi31@yahoo.in”.

. Finally, the work was allotted to M/s AGRS &

Associates.

. As per offer letter dated 28/03/2023 given to M/s

AJRG & Associates (CA Ruchi Gupta), physical
count of stock of raw salt, refined salt and WIP at
Sambhar, Nawa & Gudha, Physical Verification of
Fixed Assets and Physical Verification of Spare Parts
as on 31/03/2023 to be done by the firm. However,
as per Physical Verification Report submitted by M/s
AGRS & Associates (converted name of M/s AJRG
& Associates), it has been mentioned that the M/s
AGRS & Associates have provided assistance in
the work of physical verification and the physical
verification was on sample basis only.

. Company was of the impression that

work will be done in below

Rs.25000/-

. By verbal

. No NIT floated, in our opinion a CA

qualified is competent enough to
carry out the physical verification
work.

. We may check / verify with M/s Namit

Vatsa, whether they quoted or not, if
any doubt is reported

. Yes

This is up to the party to decide the
sample size and extent to which they
want to carry out the physical
verification. As per work contract
they certified the overall physical
stock for the company.
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On the basis of above facts/documents available on
record and observations of such documents, it
seems that the Allotment of work for Stock Audit/
Physical Verification of Fixed Assets/ Physical
Verification of Spare Parts of Sambhar Salts Limited
for the FY 2022-23 to M/s AGRS & Associates /
AJRG & Associates by the management of the
company without any technical
documents/fallacious documents to give the
inadvertent assistance to a particular vendor by
avoiding all the rules and regulations & by making
collusion with some specific bidders. Also, the
management of the company had not considered
malpractice done by the L1 bidder in acquisition of
the respective work of physical verification.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

Deficiency in allotment of Work for Forensic Audit | We estimated the cost below 25000/-
of Sambhar Salts Limited to M/s AGRS & | hence no NIT is circulated. Finally, we
Associates. received the cost more than 25000/- but
proper committee was formulated for the

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above | same. Due to small work there is no need
Works of NIT.

a. NIT of the aforementioned work was not available
on record.

b. Also, it was not clear how the communication was
sent to the prospective bidders.

. No technical parameters and eligibility criteria were
available on record for floating such NIT if any.

. Open Financial bids of only 3 bidders namely M/s
AGRS & Associates, M/s Vishal Gupta & Co and
M/s Bansal AV & Associates were received by the
company on dated 21/11/2022, 21/11/2022 and
19/11/2022 respectively.

. Finally, the work was allotted to M/s AGRS &
Associates

. No other documents were available on record.

. It was surprising that the management had allotted
the work of forensic audit without floating the NIT,
Technical Criteria’s and Eligibility of bidder.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements is not

unascertainable.
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a.

b.

Allotment
strengthening of existing roofs to M/s Sanbros
Spares Private Limited

of work for leak proofing and

Work of Rs. 4,12,14,800 was allotted to the
aforementioned bidder without verification of
experience certificates submitted by the bidder.

Partial work of Rs. 95,00,000 was executed by the
bidder in the month of Feb 2023 and requested for

new sites for completion of remaining work.
However, vide letter no. 01-Works/2022-23/2157
dated 02/03/2023 GM (Works) had refused to give
the remaining sites stating the reason that aforesaid
work was required to be completed before the rainy
season which could not be executed from your site
on time, hence, the effects of the rain on the work
could not be checked. Therefore, remaining sites will
be provided after upcoming rainy season.

. In the month of June 2023 several complaints related

to roof repair conducted by M/s Sanbros Spares Pvt
Ltd was received from users of buildings. On receipt
of such complaint letter no. 07-Works/2022-
2023/540, 541, 5578, 5579 dated 04/07/2023 was
also issued to M/s Sanbros Spares Pvt Ltd. No

As per the work tender, 01 year of past
experience required for the same/similar
service to be submitted by the bidder and
the bidder had submitted the experience
certificates on the GeM portal which were
duly verified at the level of UTC and HTC.
Also experience certificates submitted
includes following works executed in
Government of India undertaking:

B.No. | Issued by Completion

Certificate No.

IRCON/2065/Katni 2
Months

Ircon
International
Ltd.

@

Sirgrauli/14/46/886
date 25.08.2021

IRCON/2059C/CG 4

RP.EC.EXECU/BS | Months
P-35/188/10139
date 13.03.2021

Ircon
International
Ltd.

DCE/CON/IV/HWH
IWTIT72 date
19.09.2019

Eastern
Railway

IRCON/14/1014/C
oncrete
Canvas/548 date
30.06.2020

Ircon
International
Ltd.

RVNL/RKSH/QUO
T
(AGM2)/11/2020/C
iVil/RKSH/1695
dated 13.01.2021

(b) The office letter no. 1-
Works/2022-2023/2157 dated
03.03.2023 issued by General Manager
(Works) had maintained that “no effects of
rain on the executed work of concrete
canvas could be checked” and is clearly
stating that “remaining sites will be

provided after upcoming rainy season”.

(c ) The said period is completed of R Y
2023-24 and not of 22-23 the same will be
examined as per the laid down regulation
however No refusal of remaining work is
mentioned in the letter.
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repairment was done by the bidder up to the date of
audit.

d. No penalty was imposed on delayed completion of
work and improper execution of work by the bidder.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

As per the work tender, Guarantee of 730
days was given by the contractor
accordingly, Office letter No. O07-
Works/2022-2023/651, 652, 6485, 6486
dated 27.07.2023 has been issued to M/s.
Sanbros Spares Pvt. Ltd. for providing
solution / remedial measures /
rectification for the complaints. Following
the intimation initial inspection has
already been done by the contractor and
repair work would be executed post rainy
season.

(d) Only partial work is executed at the
Site and the contract is under observation
stage for the impact of rainy season.
Penalty for delayed completion / improper
execution of work, if applicable, will be
imposed in final payment to the bidder in
accordance to the terms & conditions of
the Bid Document.

The contract has not been closed thus for

Undue favor to M/s Vipin Salt Company in granting
discount of Rs. 1.62 Crore

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above
Works

a. During the FY 2021-22 total discount of Rs.
1,34,38,098 was allowed on 31/03/2022 as discount
to M/s Vipin Salt Company and Rs. 27,61,000 was
allowed as discount on 23/02/2023.

b. As per commitment letter no. File NO. 01/HO-
MKTG./Salt/2020-21/399 dated 29/05/2021 22%
discount was to be allowed to M/s Vipin Salt
company on following conditions:

- Duration of commitment
31/05/2022.
Minimum 50000 MT Sambhar Kyar Salt will be
lifted by M/s Vipin Salt or for non-lifting quantity
payment will be made during the period
01/06/2021 to 31/05/2022.
Monthly discount quantity will be given in the
next month after achieving the next month
target of lifting/payment.
Grace period of 60 days may be given to the
buyer.

01/06/2021 to

In the month of March-2021, Company
has notified prospective buyers who were
supplying salt to black salt industries
across the nation. The intent was to break
the monopoly and to have multiple
suppliers. In the process of one-to-one
meeting with prospective buyers, two
buyers viz. as M/s. Shreenath Trading
Company and M/s. Vipin Salt Company
agreed to lift sizable quantity of 50000 MT
and 20000 MT of salt at a discount of 22%
on 50000 MT and 18% on 20000 MT. The
discount was as per the promulgated
Marketing Policy of the company.

After two months of lifting, M/s. Shreenath
Trading company expressed his inability
to lift 50000 MT of salt. The other Vendor
was given an opportunity and decided that
the portion of M/s. Shreenath may be
awarded to M/s. Vipin Salt under the
same terms and conditions. Under this
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To avail the discount payment corresponding to
the shortfall lifting will be deposited by the
buyer.
Since, M/s Vipin Salt had agreed for the
enhance quantity, 18% discount will be allowed
on the lifting of April 2021 and May 2021
months also.

c. On  23/07/2021,

following  modifications in

commitment letter dated 29/05/2021 were approved
by CMD:
- Inaddition to Sambhar Kyar Salt, buyer can buy
following goods at following rates:

S. No. Salt

1 Sambhar Pan

Nawa Kyar

Devyani Salt

After inclusion of above 3 products company
has to cross the target and needs to reach
nearly 75,000 MT to 80,000 MT during
commitment period.

Monthly lifting/payment for shortfall shall not be
less than 4167 MT.

Lifting/Payment of Sambhar Kyar Salt during
the commitment period shall not be less than
50,000 MT.

d. Further modification in commitment letter dated
29/05/2021 was approved by CMD on dated
01/10/2021 whereby rate of Sambhar Pan was
changed from Rs. 1425 per MT to Rs. 1450 per MT.

e. Monthly sales (in MT) from 01/06/2021 to 31/07/2022
(including 60 days of grace period)

Month Sambhar | Sambhar
Kyar Pan
(Other (Other
Rate @ rates)
Rs.
4000/MT)

Sambha| Sambha | Nawa Kyar Devyani
r Kyar r Pan Salt

44.080

3319.40 | 0.000 0.000 0.000

0.000

2033.28 | 179.960 | 284.580 796.430

0.000

1825.51 | 317.010 | 904.050 0.000

0.000

1534.52 | 223.480 | 961.965 0.000

0.000

1787.89 | 583.160 | 1521.100 0.000

0.000

899.36 | 840.260 | 1694.895 592.710

0.000

770.52 | 708.710 | 1643.640 659.020

356.840

128.99 |[0.000 5262.910 1136.000

agreement, M/s. Vipin Salt was to lift
50000 MT of salt which was further
broken down 4167 MT per month and a
discount was to be given only after
achieving the monthly lifting target. The
below table indicates monthly lifting and
discount offered.

Authority made against | Discount offered

payment received

4,338.970 MT

4,374.462 MT

1,209.175 MT

4,226.229 MT

4,367.956 MT

1,669.035 MT

2,324.946 MT

7,774.928 MT

389.990 MT

1,747.461 MT

32,423.152 MT

From the above table, it is evident that
though on paper the figure of discount is
22% whereas the actual discount given to
buyer was 17.02% because for all those
months, when target was not achieved,
discount was not offered/ given. The
same is clearly mentioned in the offer
given to M/s. Vipin Salt Company, in the
offer letter at point no.4 of the said
commitment, monthly target of lifting was
4167 MT of salt and volume discount was
given to M/s. Vipin Salt Company only in
those months where party lifted the
targeted quantity of 4167 MT of salt in a
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489.600

0.000 136.290 290.788

0.000

0.000 0.000 1490.360

578.620

0.000 506.520 603.870

544.940

0.000 373.810 480.690

155.510

0.00 0.000 249.620 370.110

0.000

0.00 0.000 0.000 201.410

2169.590

13451.91) 2852.580| 13539.380 6621.388

. As on 31/07/2022, account of M/s Vipin Salt
Company was having a debit balance of Rs.
16,50,544 after allowing the discount of Rs.
1,34,38,098.

. As the buyer M/s Vipin Salt Company have failed
to achieve the lifting target of 50000MT for
Sambhar Kyar Salt as per commitment letter
dated 29/05/2021 and composite lifting target of
75000 MT to 80000 MT vide approved
amendments by CMD on time-to-time basis.
Therefore, company had wrongly allowed the
total discount of Rs. 1.62 Crore including
discount related to sales of April 21 and May 21
and provided undue favor/benefit to M/s Vipin
Salt Company
. Also, it has been observed that company has
sold 6621.388 MT of Sambhar Kyar Salt below the
base price of Rs. 4000/ MT at range of selling
price of Rs. 1300 to 3500 MT.

Therefore, due to inappropriate discount of Rs. 1.62

Crore given by the management of the company to

M/s Vipin Salt Company resulted in understatement

of Profit Before Tax by Rs. 1.62 Crore and

overstatement of Trade Receivables by Rs. 1.62

Crore.

month and if party failed to lift the monthly
targeted quantity, then no discount was
given to the party.

Further, please refer the point no.2 of the
commitment No0.01/HO-Mktg/Salt/2020-
21 dated.29-05-2021 wherein it is clearly
mentioned that 22% discount may be
given to M/s. Vipin Salt Company upon
lifting of 50000 MT of salt which was
further elaborated in the point No.4 “The
monthly discount quantity will be
given in the next month after achieving
next month target of lifting”. The
company has given discount to both
Vendors as per Marketing Policy of terms
and condition of the commitment. Had
M/s. Vipin Salt continued with the pricing
policy then as per clause No.v subpara viii
he would have got 22% discount on lifting
of above 25,000 MT of salt, whereas by
having commitment and following the
various point of commitment instead of
22%, we have given 17.02 % discount of
discount, therefore no favour has been
done to any vendor.

In view of the above, the commitment
letter was followed in totality hence no
undue favor was given to M/s. Vipin Salt
Company.

Company had failed to make the provision of Rs.
23,70,000 plus GST payable to M/s Chandra
Entrepreneurs Pvt Ltd towards stay charges in S-1,
S-2 and Jhapok beyond the prescribed allowed
days.

Due to non-making of provision of Rs. 23,70,000
resulted in overstatement of Profit Before Tax by
Rs. 27,00,000 and understatement of short-term
provisions by Rs. 27,00,000.

Company has made a provision of Rs.
23.70 lac which is inclusive of GST and
included in the trade payables for others.
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Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s Navkar
Impex for purchase of Salt

Company had wrongly treated the transactions with M/s
Navkar Impex. as Purchases in the books of accounts
and accordingly not deducted the TDS u/s 194C @1%
of Rs. 39,433 instead of treating the transaction as
works contract.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 39,433
resulted in understatement of Trade Payables (For
Others) by Rs. 39,433 and overstatement of Trade
Payables (For Expenses) by Rs. 39,433. It is to be
noted that the above amount does not include
liability of interest and penalty on TDS not deducted
and paid to the government. The same may be
calculated at the time of deduction and payment and
accordingly the liability may increase by same
amount.

As per GST Rules only seller is liable to
collect and pay GST to the government
(except RCM). No demand can be raised
by the tax authorities on the company due
to the any fault of contractor and any
subsequent tax recovery ( if any) can be
initiated on the contractor only. Party is
giving the bills under HSN code No0.2501

Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. against Work Order dated
01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa
Salt Refinery

Company had treated the transactions with M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. as Purchases in the books of accounts
and accordingly not deducted the TDS u/s 194C of Rs.
74,753 against payment of Rs. 37,37,662 made during
the FY 2022-2

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 74,753
resulted in understatement of Trade Payables (For
Others) by Rs. 74,753 and overstatement of Trade
Payables (For Expenses) by Rs. 74,753. It is to be
noted that the above amount does not include
liability of interest and penalty on TDS not deducted
and paid to the government. The same may be
calculated at the time of deduction and payment and
accordingly the liability may increase by same
amount. Short TDS deducted of Rs. 1.926 Lakhs as
reported in previous year independent auditor’s
report was also not deducted and deposited during
the FY 2022-23.

As per GST Rules only seller is liable to
collect and pay GST to the government
(except RCM). No demand can be raised
by the tax authorities on the company due
to the any fault of contractor and any
subsequent tax recovery ( if any) can be
initiated on the contractor only. Party is
giving the bills under HSN code No.2501
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Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s Om
Prakash Jat for purchase of Salt

Company had wrongly treated the transactions with M/s
Om Prakash Jat as Purchases in the books of accounts
and accordingly not deducted the TDS u/s 194C @1%
of Rs. 30638 in-steading of treating the transaction as
works contract.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 30,638
resulted in understatement of Trade Payables (For
Others) by Rs. 30,638, and overstatement of Trade
Payables (For Expenses) by Rs. 30,638. It is to be
noted that the above amount does not include
liability of interest and penalty on TDS not deducted
and paid to the government. The same may be
calculated at the time of deduction and payment and
accordingly the liability may increase by same
amount.

As per GST Rules only seller is liable to
collect and pay GST to the government
(except RCM). No demand can be raised
by the tax authorities on the company due
to the any fault of contractor and any
subsequent tax recovery ( if any) can be
initiated on the contractor only. Party is
giving the bills under HSN code No0.2501

Tendering procedure followed by the management
of the company

We would like to draw your kind attention to various
observations highlighted by wus in our previous
independent auditor’s report for the financial year 2020-
21 and 2021-22 wherein we had exclusively reported
the facts, circumstances and instances of inappropriate
allotment of various tenders to give unreasonable
advantage to specific vendor/parties. However, no
refinement in the same procedure was done by the
management of the company in the current financial
year also. Since, company is continuously giving the
tenders on inappropriate documents to give undue
favour to specific vendors, it seems that
management of the company is allotting the tenders
of various works and services by making a nexus

and collaboration with some particular vendors.

Even on the basis of instruction given by the Audit
Committee for conduction of forensic audit in

respect of various reply submitted by the
management on observations in previous
independent auditor’s report, appointment of such

forensic _auditor was also _done in_inappropriate

manner and allotment was provided to a firm which
was not having adequate experience of conducting
forensic audit.

The reply of observations in the particular
tenders point wise have been provided to
the statutory auditor. Company is allotting
the tenders as per the company policy.
Management of the company do not have
any personal interest and has not
received any unduly profit from the
allotment of tenders by the company.
Management of the company work
ethically and dont engage in the
malpractice. Further, it has not nexus
with any vendor and collaboration. It
might be there that some procedural gaps
would be there or procedure of
examinaion of the submitted documents
by the vendors in support of bid was not
that standard to satisfy the statutory
auditor but the management of the
company is working bonafide.

In relation to appointment of forensic
auditor, we have already replied on point
no. 11. Further, the firm appointed for
forensic auditor was the CA firm
registered with the ICAI and established
from more than 10 years and one partner
had conducted certificate course on
forensic audit and fraud detection from
the ICAIl. As per our understanding, such
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certificate is sufficient to conduct forensic
audit.

GST Tax Evasion by the invoice for
Purchases of Salt

We would like to draw your kind attention to various
observations highlighted by wus in our previous
independent auditor’s report for the financial year 2021-
22 wherein we had exclusively highlighted the fact that
management of the company is allotting the several
tenders for extraction/O&M services related to salt from
various Kyar/Plants to multiple vendors. As per
designing and nature of work described in the tender
document the same should be treated as works contract
and GST @18% should be charged by the vendor from
Sambhar Salts Limited. However, the vendors, to whom
such work for extraction/O&M of salt was allotted were
giving the invoices for sale of salt to Sambhar Salts
Limited without charging the GST as salt is covered
under exempted goods. Also, Sambhar Salts Limited
treat such invoices as Purchases of Salts or as

expenses in the profit and loss account.

taking

Management of the company is designing the
tender document for extraction of salt in a
manipulative manner and giving the framework of
the same as purchase of salt from the vendors.
Vendors are continuously issuing the GST
Exempted invoices for sale of salt under the HSN
Code of Salt to Sambhar Salts Limited and the same
is collaboratively assisting by the management of
the company for the GST Tax evasion by several
vendors in minimizing the cost of extraction/O&M.

The reply of observations point wise have
been provided to the statutory auditor.
Company is doing the accounting
treatment as per the invoices received
from the vendors. Management of the
company do not have any personal
interest if the tax evasion are there.
Company takes advise from consultants
on the matters where needs and on the
basis of that opinion, company process
the transactions. Management of the
company work ethically and don’t engage
in the malpractice. Further, it is not
collaboratively assisting to vendor.

It might be there that the accounting
treatment would not be as per the opinion
of the statutory auditor but the
management of the company is working
bonfire.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL
Company has received Nil comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
(CAG) on the Standalone Annual Financial Statements for the FY 2022-23.

Over the consolidated financial statements, Company HSL has received comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) over Significant Accounting Policies of
subsidiary company SSL for the year ended 31%t March, 2023. CAG comment and
management reply is as under:

CAG Comment Management
Reply

A. Comments on Disclosure Noted for

Compliance.
A.1 Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended 31 March

2023

During FY 2022-23, Sambhar Salt Limited (a subsidiary of Hindustan
Salts Limited) changed their Accounting Policy relating to Provision
for wastage on Salt Stocks. As per new Policy, Provision for wastage
on Salt Stocks is made @10% of the quantity produced/stored during
the financial year and @5% per annum on the opening stock whereas
old policy prescribed provision @5% of the quantity produced/stored
during the financial year and @2.5% per annum on the opening
stock. This change has the impact of decreasing the profits for the
year 2022-23 by Rs.70.26 Lakh.

However, no disclosure for the impact on consolidated financial
statements due to change in Accounting Policy has been given which
resulted in non-compliance to Para 32 of Accounting Standard (AS)-
5 (Net Profit or Loss for the period, Prior Period Items and Changes
in Accounting Policies) which stipulates that, “Any change in an
accounting policy which has a material effect should be disclosed.
The impact of, and the adjustment resulting from, such change, if
material, should be shown in the financial statements of the period in
which such change is made, to reflect the effect of such change.
Besides, the consolidated financial statements are also deficient to
that extent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Certificate on Compliance of Corporate Governance of the company for the FY 2022-
23 of M/s H Nitin & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary on Corporate Governance
is placed elsewhere in the Annual Report. Reply to the observations is as under:

Compliance of guidelines relating to independent directors, due to cessation thereof
w.e.f 20/01/2023: Tenure of all three Independent Directors was expired on 20.01.2023.
Government of India is the authority to appoint Independent Directors in HSL. All
compliances related to Independent Directors shall be complied after appointment of
Independent Directors by the Government.
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Meetings of Board & Audit Committee as per prescribed guidelines: Company is regularly
holding Board meetings. During the year, Board & Audit Committee met four times as
required, however, sometimes due to non-availability of members, meeting could not be
held on time for want of proper quorum. The same shall be taken care of in future.

Information on number of meetings of the board held during the year, composition of
committees of the board and its meetings held during the year, etc., are contained in
Report on Corporate Governance which forms part of the Annual Report is annexed
herewith as Annexure |.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Industry Structure and Developments: With planning and control, the topline and bottom
line of the company during the FY 2022-23 and the turnover had significantly improved
by 21.32% and value of production had increased from ¥ 2475.03 Lakhs to ¥ 2853.49
Lakhs during the year.

Strength and Weakness: The Company is having about 23000 acres of land at
Kharaghoda and efforts were made that Bromine and Magnesium Chloride production
could be enhanced and simultaneously the production of Rock salt was started at Mandi.
However high cost of production, old production methodology and infrastructure are
hindrance for optimum utilization of potential, so company has explored and worked out
an efficient operation methodology.

Opportunities, Threats and Outlook: Company explored modes for developing
infrastructure for commercial production of rock salt at Mandi through the Mine Developer
and operation basis under PPP mode. Further company has cancelled the contract of
GTCL for installation of Salt refinery at Kharaghoda and now company is undertaking the
completion of the project at risk and contract of the party. Company is also additionally
exploring diversification business opportunities in green energy segment in PPP mode.

Segment wise or product wise performance: The production of Bromine during the year
was 447 MT compared to 437 MT and Magnesium Chloride was 2858 MT compared to
3553 MT in previous year. The production of Rock Salt was 445 MT during the year
compared to 286 MT.

Risks Management: The Company’s core area of business is mainly related to trading
and production of salt, bromine and Magnesium Chloride. The risks involved are
predominantly market and weather conditions.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy: The Company has appointed a firm of
Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor to carry out the Internal Audit activities.
Internal Audit process is designed to review the adequacy of internal control checks in
the systems covering all significant area of the company. Company has an audit
committee which also reviews the report of internal auditors.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance: The
Company has incurred Profit of Rs 821.01 Lakhs in the current year compared to profit
of 151.71 Lakhs in the previous year.
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(viii) Corporate Social Responsibility: For the financial year 2022-23 company earned a net

profit of Rs. 8.21 crores. Company comes under purview of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, therefore necessary provisions shall be made for CSR
expenditures as per the provisions of the Companies Act. Further, company is
maintaining a hospital for all workers and general public at Kharaghoda.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the period under review, the Company had not entered into any material
transaction with any of its related parties. The Company's major related party transactions
are generally with its subsidiary, which is also a government company. All related party
transactions were in the ordinary course of business and were negotiated on an arm's
length basis and forms part of financial statement, attached as a separate section of this
Annual Report. They were intended to further the Company's interests. Accordingly, the
disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/ COURTS/
TRIBUNALSIMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There is no significant and material orders passed by regulators/courts/ tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEM:

An internal control system is formulated in the Company to ensure reliability of financial
reporting, timely feedback on the achievement of operational and strategic goals,
compliance with policies, procedures, rules and regulations, safeguarding of assets and
economical and efficient use of resources.

The internal auditor which is a Chartered Accountant firm appointed by the Company
continuously monitor the effectiveness of internal controls. The scope of internal audit
activity is well defined in the letter of appointment of internal auditors. The audit committee
met regularly and reviewed the reports of internal audit submitted by the internal auditor.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Details of Loan, Guarantees and investment as required under section 186 of Companies
Act, 2013 forms part of financial statement, attached as a separate section of this Annual
Report.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to prevent and prohibit
from any sexual harassment at workplace and redress any such grievance of woman
employees as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Nil complaints of sexual harassment received
during the calendar year 2021 and NIL complaints disposed- off during the year.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Extract of Annual Return as provided under Rule 12 of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rule, 2014) is annexed herewith as Annexure Il to this report in Form
MGT 9.

22.12 PARTICULARS OF INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 129 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,

2013 RELATING TO SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The particulars of information under proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
relating to ‘Salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiary companies’ has been
attached with the Financial Statements of the company in Form AOC-1, in pursuance to
Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary
company is placed elsewhere in the Annual Report.

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(n) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
CONCERNINGDEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The Risk Management Policy of the company has approved by the board has been
implemented. There are, however, no elements of risk threatening the company’s
existence.

No employee in the company was drawing more than ¥ 850,000/- per month or %
10,200,000/- per annum during the year.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The company is not required to have requisite number of independent directors on the
board as per the Companies Act, 2013, however under the Guidelines of Corporate
Governance of DPE dated 14.05.2010 company should have independent directors on
board and accordingly the Administrative Ministry has appointed Shri S.L. Agarwal,
Chartered Accountant, Shri H.M. Johari, Chartered Accountant and Smt. Kavita
Chaudhary as Independent Directors w.e.f 21.01.2020 for a period of three years from
the date of notification of their appointments or until further orders, whichever is earlier.
The tenure of all Independent Directors was expired on 20.01.2023..

Procurement made from Micro and Small Enterprises during 2022-23

Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) was notified by the
Government under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
which stipulates that 25% of total annual procurement of goods and services shall be
made by all Central Ministries /Departments /CPSUs from Micro & small Enterprises
(MSEs). Within this percentage, a sub-total of 4% procurement is to be made from MSEs
owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs and 3% from MSEs owned by women entrepreneurs.
The total value of procurement during the year 2022-23 is ¥ 0.54 Cr and out of the total
value procured from MSE is ¥ 0.16 Cr.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND
THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relates
and the date of this report.
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25.3

VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARD’S REPORT
The management has not voluntarily revised the financial statements or Board’s report.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES DURING THE YEAR
AND UPTO THE DATE OF FINALISATION OF THIS REPORT
CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD
(@) Shri Naresh Kumar, Deputy Secretary, MHI was appointed as Director w.e.f.
02.02.2023 in place of Smt. Parveen Gupta.
(b) Smt. Prerna Joshi, Salt Commissioner, Gol was appointed as Director w.e.f.
19.10.2022 in place of Shri Sushil K Satpute.
(c) Tenure of Shri S.L. Agarwal, Shri H.M. Johari and Smt. Kavita Chaudhary all
independent directors was expired on 20.01.2023.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Audit Committee was re-constituted on 24.02.2023:
Audit Committee as on 31.03.2023 consisted of the following Directors:
1 CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.), CMD, SSL - Chairman

2  Smt. Prerna Joshi, Nominee Director Member

3 Shri Naresh Kumar, Nominee Director Member

CONSTITUTION AND CHANGES IN COMPOSITION OF REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee was re-constituted on 24.02.2023:
Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2023 consisted of the following Directors:

1. CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar, CMD, SSL (Chairman)
2.  Smt. Prerna Joshi, Joint Director, DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner, Gol (Member)
3. Shri Naresh Kumar, Deputy Secretary, MHI, Gol (Member)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As per the requirements of section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 your directors
hereby declare that:
In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 315t March 2023,
the applicable accounting standard have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;
The Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimate that are reasonable prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of 315t March, 2023 and of the profit
and loss of the company for that period.
The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
others irregularities.
The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable laws and that such systems were adequately and operating efficiently.
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27. The web address where information required under Sec 92(3) of the Companies Act is
available on web site is https://indiansalt.com/financial-results.php
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Government of Gujarat, Rajasthan, Uttarakhand and Himachal Pradesh, in the
Company’s operational activities and development plans.

The Directors also express their sincere gratitude to all the customer of the company for
their unstinted support and confidence reposed in the company. The Directors are also
thankful to the Principal Director of Commercial Audit and Ex-officio Member Audit Board-
Il and Principle Director of Audit (Industry and Corporate Affairs), Statutory Auditors,
Internal Auditors, Bankers and all other stakeholders for their continued co-operation.

In conclusion, the Board places on record its appreciation of the individual and collective
efforts, commitment and loyalty demonstrated by all employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327
Place : Jaipur
Date : 01.11.2023
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Annexure-|

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. Company’s Philosophy:

Your Company believes that for its sustained success, it must maintain global standards of
corporate conduct towards its shareholders, customers, employees, all other stakeholders and
society in general. The Company has always focused on good corporate governance, which is a
key driver of sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation for its shareholders.

The Company believes that corporate governance is not just limited to creating checks and
balances. It is more about creating organization excellence leading to increasing employee and
customer satisfaction and shareholder value. The primary objective of corporate governance is to
create and adhere to a corporate culture of conscience and consciousness, transparency and
openness, to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve the goal of value
creation. The Company believes, it must leverage its human and capital resources to translate
opportunities into reality, create awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and
entrepreneurship at all levels.

Above all, corporate governance must balance individual interest with corporate goals and operate
within accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a sense of justice. Accountability and
transparency are key drivers to improve decision-making and the rationale behind such decisions,
which in turn creates stakeholder confidence.

Board of Directors:

The board of Directors of the company as on 31.03.2023 consists of three directors
including one Chairman & Managing Director. The brief particulars of all the Directors are
given below:

2.
21

Name of Director
(S/shri) &
Designation

Category of

Directorship

Date of Birth

Qualification

Date of
Appointment

Directorship in

other companies

Kamlesh
(Retd.),
&

Cmde
Kumar
Chairman
Managing Director

Functional Director

15.06.1969

Graduate

05.08.2020

Sambhar Salts Ltd.

Prerna Joshi, Joint
Director, DPIT cum
Salt Commissioner,
GOl

Part time official
director/
Government

Nominee

27.05.1988

Graduate

19.10.2022

Sambhar Salts Ltd.

Naresh
Deputy Secretary,
Ministry of Heavy
Industries, Gol

Kumar,

Part time official
director/
Government

Nominee

01.09.1969

Graduate

02.02.2023

HMT Watches Ltd.,
Richardson and
Cruddas (1972) Ltd.,
National Bicycle
Corporation of India
Ltd., SSL

2.2

Meeting and Attendance:

During the financial year 2022-23, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the
dates mentioned hereafter 21.07.2022, 28.10.2022, 24.02.2023 and 28.03.2023.

Name of Director

(S/Shri)

Whether
Attended
Last AGM

Board
during respect
tenure
Directors

Meetings

Category
ive| Director
of

Held [Attended

Other
Directorship
S

of

Membership of Committee
of other Boards

Chairperson| Member

66
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Cmde Kamlesh CMD (Functional
Kumar (Retd.) Director)
Parveen Gupta Part time official
director/
Government
Nominee
Naresh Kumar Part time official
director/
Government
Nominee

Sushil K Satpute Part time official
director/
Government
Nominee

Prerna Joshi Part time
official

director/
Government
Nominee

S.L. Agarwal No Independent
Director

H.M. Johari No Independent
Director

Kavita Chaudhary | No Independent
Director

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee is committed to good corporate governance with best discharge of its
assigned duties. It is informed that pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 company is not required
to constitute the Audit Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance of
CPSEs issued by Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises dated 14.05.2010 the board has constituted the Audit Committee to discharge the
duties.

3.1 Audit Committee Terms of reference:

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is constituted to assist the Board in fulfilling oversight
responsibilities and to ensure that the framework of internal control, practices, and systems are
robust.

Membership | Chairperson and Members of the Committee

The Committee shall comprise of a minimum of three Directors with independent
Directors forming a majority and majority of the members of the Audit Committee
including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand financial
statements.

One Independent Director having Financial knowledge will be appointed as the
Chairperson of the Committee by the Board.

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Committee, the remaining members present
shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.

Reconstitution




151

HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
64" Annual Report
2022-23

The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required.

Secretary

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee and attend all its
meetings.

Quorum

The quorum would be one third of the strength of the Committee or two Members,
whichever is higher.

Questions arising in any meeting shall be decided by a simple majority of votes.

A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be
competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions vested in
or exercisable by the Committee.

Frequency of
Meetings

The Audit Committee should meet atleast once in every quarter. Atleast four meetings
of Audit Committee should be held during the year.

The Chairperson of the Committee or the Chairman of the Board may each convene
meetings of the Committee at any time to consider any matters falling within this
Terms of Reference.

Duties and
Responsibilit
ies

e To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statements is correct, sufficient
and credible;
To review with management, the annual financial statements before submission
to the Board, focusing primarily on;
a. Matters required to be included in Directors’ responsibility statement to be
included u/s sec 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
Any changes if any, in accounting policies and practices.
Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by Management.
Qualifications in draft audit report.
Significant adjustments arising out of audit.
The going concern assumption.
Compliance with accounting standards.
. Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;
i. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
To review & recommend the Company’s financial policies to the Board for approval,
To examine the financial statements and the auditors’ reportthereon;
To approve and recommend the annual budget to the Board for approval.
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
To recommend to Board fee for Statutory Audit;
To recommend to Board for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment
of Internal auditors and any audit related services of the company;
To review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;
Reviewing with the management Quarterly;
To review with the management, performance of external and internal auditors,
the adequacy of internal control systems;
To review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
To discuss with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on;
To review the follow up action on the audit observation of the C&AG audit;
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Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor,
internal auditor and the Board of Directors;
To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the
Statutory auditor:
1. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
recommendations;
2. Post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
To give approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company
with related parties;
To take on record CAG Audit Report;
To exercise its powers and carry outits responsibilities as may be required from time
to time under the Whistle Blower Policy;
To address and deal with such other matters as may be delegated by the Board to
the Audit Committee and matters referred under Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
Authority The Audit Committee is empowered to do the following
i. Torecommend to Board, financial sanctions, if any, to matters pertaining to this
Committee
ii. To seek information from any employee as considered necessary;
iii. To obtain outside legal and professional advice as considered necessary;
iv. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise; and
. To investigate any activity within terms of reference, if it considers necessary.

vi. To protect whistle blowers.
Sitting fee As decided by the Board from time to time.
Review This Terms of Reference shall be reviewed as and when necessary.

3.2 Composition of Audit Committee
Audit Committee as on 31.03.2023 consisted of the following Directors:

1. Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.), CMD, HSL Chairman
2. Smt. Prerna Joshi, JD,DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner , Gol Member
3. Shri Naresh Kumar, DS, MHI, Gol Member

Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance:
During the financial year 2022-23, the Audit Committee met on 21.07.2022, 28.10.2022,
17.03.2023 & 28.03.2023.

Name of the Member | Status Category Number of
(Shri/smt.) Meetings attended

Shankar Lal Agarwal Chairman | Independent Director 2
CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar | Chairman | Chairman & Managing Director
(Retd.)
Shri Hari Mohan Johari Member Independent Director

Smt. Kavita Chaudhary Member Independent Director

Smt. Prerna Joshi Member Govt. Nominee Director
Shri Naresh Kumar Member Govt. Nominee Director

4 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 is not required to constitute the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance
of CPSEs issued by Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and
Public Enterprises dated 14.05.2010 the Board had constituted the Remuneration
Committee. Tenure of all three Independent Directors of the company was expired on
20.01.2023, therefore the committee was re-constituted on 24.02.2023.

Composition of Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2023 consisted of the following Directors:

CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar, CMD, SSL (Chairman)
Smt. Prerna Joshi, Joint Director, DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner, Gol (Member)
Shri Naresh Kumar, Deputy Secretary, MHI, Gol (Member)

4.3 Remuneration Committee Meetings and Attendance:
During the financial year 2022-23, the Remuneration Committee met on 21.07.2022.

Name of the Member | Status Category Number of Meetings
(S/Shri) attended

Shri.  Shankar Lal | Chairman | Part time Non-official | 1

Agarwal director/Independent Director
Hari Mohan Johari Member | Part time Non-official | 1
director/Independent Director
Kavita Chaudhary Member | Part time Non-official | 1
director/Independent Director

5.GENERAL BODY MEETING
5.1 The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Financial Date Time Location
Year
2021-22 27.12.2022 | 14:30 Hrs | Through VC at Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura
Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan, PIN: 302022
2020-21 30.11.2021 | 12:15 Hrs | Through VC at Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura
Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan, PIN: 302022
2019-20 24.12.2020 | 11.00 Hrs | Through VC at Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura
Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

CODE OF CONDUCT

The board in its meeting held on 30.8.2010 approved the “Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for Board Members and Senior Management” in terms of guidelines on corporate
governance in Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSESs) issued by the Government of
India. Pursuant to this Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code on an annual basis within 30 days from the end of FY and same
was placed before board. The certificate of Compliance is enclosed as Addendum to the
Directors’ Report.

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

Having regard to the financial status currently company is unable to provide formal training
to its newly appointed directors, however directors on board have been provided with an
introduction to the company’s business model, area of operations etc. Directors attend the
Orientation Program for capacity building for existing and newly appointed directors
organized by DPE.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Being a Government Company, the remuneration of functional director like Chairman and
Managing Director is decided by the Government of India. Government Nominee was not
paid any remuneration.

The independent Director is entitled to sitting fees for attending board and committee
meetings.

Details of the remuneration of functional directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
company during the year under review are provided in the extract of the Annual Return in
Annexure —II of the Directors’ Report.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION

It is always the company’s endeavor to present unqualified financial statement; however,
the Statutory Auditors has given qualified opinion in its report on Standalone and
Consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 and has
drawn attention under “Emphasis Matter”, observation under “CARO” and qualified opinion
on “Internal Financial Controls”. Management reply to the Statutory Auditors’
Qualification/emphasis matter/observations on the Accounts of the company for the
financial year ended 31t March, 2023 is furnished in the Directors’ Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Website

The company’s website www.indiansalt.com hosts information for investors and all
stakeholders. The Annual Financial statements of the company are available on the
website in a user friendly and downloadable form.

Official News releases
The company communicates with stakeholders by way of official news releases in
electronic and print media.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

A Whistle Blower Policy of the company has been approved by the Board and implemented
in the company w.e.f. 18.02.2021. In addition to this company as in—built procedure to
provide an opportunity to employees to report to the management instances of unethical
behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the company’s code of conduct.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place : Jaipur
Date : 01.11.2023
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Annexure- |l

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 315t March 2023

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN U14220RJ1958G01001049

Registration Date 12.04.1958

Name of the Company Hindustan Salts Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Private Company/ Government Company

Address of the registered office and contact | G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan, PIN:
details 302022

Telephone No.: 0141-2771448; Fax :0141-2771449
Email: information@indiansalt.com

Whether listed company No

Name, Address and Contact details of | NA

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S.No | Name and Description of main products / | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
services Product/ service company

Bromine 20111 56.63%

Magnesium Chloride 20119 4.22%

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S.No Name and address of the company CIN/GLN % of shares held
Subsidiary Company {Section 2(87)(ii)}
1 Sambhar Salts Limited U14220RJ1964G01001188 60
G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur,
Rajasthan, PIN- 302022

IV. (A) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end of the year |% Chang;|
Shareholders of the year during the
Demat [Physical |Total % of Totall Demat |Physical |Total % of Total [year
Shares Shares

A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt. 520596 | 520596 520596 20596
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp 0 0 0 0
e) Banks /FlI 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(1):- 520596 | 520596 520596 520596
2) Foreign
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g) NRIs-Individuals
h) Other-Individuals
i) Bodies Corp.
j) Banks / FI
k) Any Other....
Sub-total(A)(2): 0
Total of A= A(1)+A(2): 520596
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a)Mutual Funds
b) Banks /FlI
c) Central Govt
d) State Govt.(s)
e) Venture Capital
Funds
f) Insurance
Companies
g) Flis
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1)
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian
(ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders holding
hominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
i) Individual
shareholders holding

nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (Specify)

Sub-total(B)(2)

Total Public

Shareholding

(B)=(B)D)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
and ADRs
Grand Total 520596 | 520596 520596 520596
(A+B+C)




@ HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

64" Annual Report
2022-23

B Shareholding of Promoters
S. | Shareholder’s [Shareholding at the beginning of the year[Shareholding at the end of the year %

No | Name No. of | % of total | % of Shares No. of| % of total o of Shares chan
shares | Shares of | Pledged / shares | Shares Pledged / gein
the encumbered to of the encumbered  tosharehol
company total shares company ftotal shares ding
during
the
year
President of | 520596 520596 -

India

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Particulars Shareholding at the [Transaction during the year Cumulative
beginning of the year Shareholding during the
year
No. of% of total Increase/ No. of shares |% of total
shares |shares of the Decrease in shares of
company share holding the
company
At the beginning of the 520596 | 100 520596 100
year
Allotment - - - -
At the end of the year 520596 | 100 520596 100

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

and ADRs):

Particulars Shareholding at the [Transaction during the year Cumulative

beginning of the year Shareholding during the
year

No. of [% of total Increase/ Reason |No. of shares [% of total
shares |shares of the Decrease in shares of
company share the
holding company

At the beginning of the 0
year

2 [Allotment
3 |At the end of the year 0 0

(E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Particulars Shareholding at the |Transaction during the year Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year

No. of (% of total | Date Increase/ Reason [No. of |% of total shares of
shares |shares of the Decrease in shares the company
company share holding
Smt. Parveen - 31.10.22 | Increase Transfer 0.0002
Gupta
Shri Naresh Kumar 31.03.23 | Increase Transfer 0.0002
Smt. Parveen 31.03.23 | Decrease Transfer 0.0002
Gupta
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars Secured  Loans|Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 1241.29 1241.29
i) Interest due but not paid 2695.26 2695.26
iii) Interest accrued but not due - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 3936.55 3936.55
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
- Addition 174.11 174.11
- Reduction 2869.37 2869.37
Net Change 2695.26 2695.26
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 1241.29 1241.29
i) Interest due but not paid - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 1241.29 1241.29

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

( in
Lakhs)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager

CMD WTD [Manager
Cmde Kamlesh|
Kumar (Retd.)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in | 44.98
section 17(1) of the Income tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax | 6.67
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income Tax Act,1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total(A) 51.65
Ceiling as per the Act -NA*
* Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply vide MCA notification dated 5.6.2015
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B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Tin Lakhs)
Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director

Independent Directors Mr Shankar LalMr Hari MohanMs Kavita
Agarwal Johari Chaudhary

eFee for attending board/committee | 22000 22000 22000
meetings — Sitting Fees

e Commission

¢ Others, please specify

Total(1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

eFee for attending board/committee
meetings

e Commission

¢ Others, please specify

Total(2)

Total(B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD
Tin Lakhs)

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
CS CFO
Ms.  Sumona | Mr. Vikas
Majumdar Yadav

Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained 11.08 9.07
insection17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income Tax Act, 1961
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income Tax Act,1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
Others, please specify

Total
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VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section  of | Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal

the description | Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/Court] [ made. If any
companies Compounding  fees (give

Act imposed details)
There were no penalty/punishment/compounding of offences for breach of any section of Companies
Act against the company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 08884327
Place : Jaipur Date : 01.11.2023
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Code of Conduct-Compliance Affirmation

This is to confirm that HSL has laid down a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all the Board
Members and Senior Management of the HSL and the code is posted on the company website.
The Board and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the said Code for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2023.

For Hindustan Salts Limited

Sd/-

(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 01.11.2023
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members,
Hindustan Salts Limited
Jaipur

Dear Sir,

I have examined the compliances of conditions of Corporate Governance by Hindustan Salts
Limited (‘the Company’)for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2023, as stipulated in the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance by Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by Government
of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Department of Public
Enterprises(‘the Guidelines”).

[ have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the said Company and also examined the
relevant records and documents maintained by the Company and furnished to me for my review
in this regard.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Management of the
Company. My examination was limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof
on test basis, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanation given to me, I
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions as stipulated in the Guidelines in all
material respect except guidelines/compliances relating to independent directors, due to
cessation thereof w.e.f 20/01/2023 and Meeting of the Board and audit committee as per
prescribed guidelines.

[ further state that I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financialRecords
and it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company
and also such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For H Nitin & Associates

Sd/-

CS Nitin Hotchandani
Practicing Company Secretary
M.No.F9632,CP 11673

UDIN: F0O09632E0011895589
Date: 09.10.2023
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7 IN NDER
COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OAF r\ﬁ\ El;l:(%’ it
SECTION 143(6) (b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE com; e ALLTS
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HINDUS
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

i i alts Limited in
The preparation of consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limi

accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
(Act) is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) read with section 129
(4) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section
143 read with section 129 (4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been

done by them vide their revised Audit Report dated 29 September 2023 which supersedes their
earlier Audit Report dated 17 August 2023.

L, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2023 under section 143(6) (a) read with section 129(4) of the Act.
We conducted a supplementary audit of {he financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited
(the company) and Sambhar Salts Limited (the Subsidiary) for the year ended on that date. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and
company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. The Audit

Report has been revised by the Statutory Auditor to give effect 10 one of my audit observations

raised during supplementary audit.

In addition, I would like to highlight the following significant matter under section
143(6)(b) read with section 129 (4) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in
my view is necessary for enabling a better understanding of the consolidated financial

statements and the related audit report.

A. Comments on Disclosure

A.1 Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended 31 March 2023

During FY 2022-23, Sambhar Salts Limited (a subsidiary of Hindustan Salts Limited)
changed their Accounting Policy relating to Provision for wastage on Salt Stocks. As per new

Policy, Provision for wastage on Salt Stocks is made @10% of the quantity produced/stored
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icy
. . R ¢ whereas old policy
during the financial year and @5% per annum on the opening stock

: ial year and
prescribed provision @5% of the quantity produccd/stored during the financial Y

@?2.5% per annum on the opening stock. This change has the impact of decreasing the profits
for the year 2022-23 by ¥70.26 lakh.

However, no disclosure for the impact on consolidated financial statements due to change in
Accounting Policy has been given which resulted in non-compliance to Para 32 of Accounting
Standard (AS) — 5 (Net Profit or Loss for the period, Prior Period Items and Changes in
Accounting Policies) which stipulates that, “Any change in an accounting policy which has a
material effect should be disclosed. The impact of, and the adjustments resulting from, such
change, if material, should be shown in the financial statements of the period in which such
change is made, to reflect the effect of such change. Besides, the consolidated financial

statements are also deficient to that extent.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

bl

(Sanjay K. Jha)
Director General of Audit

(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi

Date: 9 5 0T 2023
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Revised Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Hindustan Salts Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
has carried out supplementary audit of your Company pursuant to the
Provisions of Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Comptroller &
Auditor General have issued provisional comments on Independent
Auditor’'s Report. On considering the comments, we are hereby issuing
Revised Independent Auditors Report on Consolidated Financial
Statements; hence we are replacing our original report which was issued
on 17.08.2023

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Hindustan Salts Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”)and its
subsidiary (holding company and its subsidiary together referred to as ‘“the
Group”) , which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial
statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statement give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, its consolidated profit and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

We draw attention, towards matters specified in Annexure-A on the basis of which
we are expressing qualified opinion over the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Para 1.10 (i) of Note No. 1 and Note No.é to the financial
statement regarding Retirement Benefits (Gratuity), which states that liability for
gratuity was depicted as on 31.03.2023 for 121.19 lakh in the books, but no
Investment was made as required under AS-15.

In the case of confirmed labour provision for gratuity has been made on the basis
of length of service and wages payable but not on the basis of actuarial valuation
as required in terms of AS-15.

2. Attention is also invited to Note no. 30 "Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitments to the extent not provided for", wherein liabilities for substantial
amount which -may materially affect the financial statements of the company,
on various accounts have not been provided for.

3. We draw attention to the Note No. 12 "Non-Current Investments" wherein no
provision for loss has been made in respect of the investment of Rs. 60.00 lacs
made in subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Ltd. in the books of accounts in view
of much higher net worth of the subsidiary company calculated on the basis of
the market value of fixed assets which was last assessed by the Certified Assets
Valuer in the year 2001.

4. There is a Pending Litigation going on between the company & Railway
Corporation of India regarding a Lease rent agreement. The company has taken
a land on lease in Ramnagar Unit but the company is not making any payment
to the Railways due to the dispute but the company is charging rent in its books.




@ HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

64" Annual Report
2022-23

5. We draw kind attention to Analytical Ratios disclosed in the Financial
Statements by the company in which no proper explanation /commentary was
given by the management of the company while preparing the financial
statements.

6. We draw your kind attention to Point No. 29 of Note No. 30 Other Notes of
Accounts whereby company had written off the old credit balances amounting
to Rs. 75.36 Lakhs during the FY 2022-23.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of above matters.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors'
Report Thereon

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors’ Report, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance and other Annexure to the Directors'
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. The
other information is not available as on date of signing the report, and hence we
do not report on the information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor's report thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

87
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(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the holding
company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated the financial statements, the respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to contfinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those Boards of directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process of the group.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individual or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures.
Responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
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fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal conftrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial conftrols in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in auditors'
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we indentify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with statement that we have compiled with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may be reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of Sambhar Salts Limited the subsidiary
company, whose financial statements reflect total assets of 5104.09 lakhs as at
31st March, 2023, total revenue of 4840.79 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting
to 76.23 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other
auditors’ whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and out report in
terms of sub-section(3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors’.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order’)
issued by The Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "B" a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to the
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statement have been kept
by the Group so far as it appears from our examination of those books except in
the subsidiary company as mentioned for the effects of the matter described in
the basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph at Annexure-A.

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss
and the consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements except subsidiary company as
mentioned for the effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified
Opinion Paragraph at Annexure-A.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 except AS-2 "Valuation of Inventories"”,
AS -15 "Employee Benefits" and AS-29 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets".
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(e) In pursuance to the Notfification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section | 64(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to disqualification of Directors, is not applicable to the Government
Company.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such confrols, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure "C".

(g) In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to Managerial Remuneration, is not applicable to the Government
Company.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201 4, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

a. The company has not disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements- refer note No. 30 to the financial statements.

b. The company did not have any long - term contracts including derivative
Conftracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. i The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned orinvested (either from Borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the-
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

i. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or enftity, including foreign entity
("Funding Purifies"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause [i] and [ii]
Above, contain any material misstatement.

e. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

3. As required by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure "D" a statement
on the compliance to the Direction / Sub-direction issued by the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India in respect of the holding company. The statement has been
prepared incorporating the comments of the auditor of the subsidiary company as
mentioned in this report.

For R.K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-
(Rakesh Jhalani)

Partner
Membership No.074142

Place of Signature: Jaipur

Date: 29/09/2023

UDIN: 23074142BGZFKR9835
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Annexure-A

(Forming part of independent Auditor's Report on Consolidated Financial
Statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

Basis for Qualified opinion
(Referred to in Para under "Basis for Qualified opinion"” of our report)

1. It has been observed that large balances in following cases are being
brought forwarded from earlier years. It is suggested that the matter may
be finalized and necessary adjustments be made in this regard at the
earliest:-

S. | Account Head | Particulars Amount in Rs.
No.
1 Note- 13 Amount outstanding from M/s |1,98,88,958.00/-
Long term Loans |Gujarat Tech Cell Pvt. Ltd
& Advances depicted under sub head
'‘Other loans & advances”
Capital Reserve |Amount being depicted from
last many vyears. Nature & [10,26,28,293.41/-
details not made available

2. As pointed out in the previous year's supplementary audit, the company
has not disclosed the cost formulae used for valuation of inventory / salt in
progress and accordingly AS-2 for Valuation of Inventory issued by ICAI
has not been properly complied with.

3. The numerator and denominator used for computation of various
accounting ratios have not been explained as required by the Revised
Schedule lll of The Companies Act, 2013.

4. As per the practice followed by the company, the head office on
behalf of its units  makes payments to different vendors and also receives
payment from various parties. The units make adjustment entries in this
regard in accounts of the parties as and when the relevant intimatiol1 is
received from head office. It is observed that the date of actual receipts

93
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and payments are not available with the units and thus period wise
outstanding of such parties cannot be evaluated properly from the books
of accounts of the units. Therefore, we are unable to comment on the
ageing schedule of debtors and creditors as depicted in the financial
statements.

5. The company has deducted GST TDS (as required by the provision of
section 51 and 52 of the CGST Act) in the month of March 2023 instead of
deducting the same on monthly basis. Due to non deduction of GST TDS
monthly basis, liability of GST Interest is understated by the company & the
interest has been paid.

6. The company has taken Overdraft facility from State Bank of India of Rs.
2880.00 Lakhs secured against FDR's. The Company has shown the above
loan facility in Note-9 Other Current Liabilities instead of the showing the
same in Note-7 Short Term Borrowings.

7. Long-Term Borrowings of Rs. 148.60 Lakhs (Note No. 4)

We draw your kind attention to Note No. 4 of Financial Statements whereby
nature of Long-Term Borrowings has not been sub-classified as secured and
unsecured in each case which is in deviation with the compliance of Division |
of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

8. Short Term Borrowings of Rs. 5686.45 Lakhs (Note No. 7)

We draw your kind attention to Note No. 7 of Financial Statements whereby
nature of Short-Term Borrowings has not been sub-classified as secured and
unsecured in each case which is in deviation with the compliance of Division |
of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

9. Staff and CSR Expenditure of Rs. 68.82 Lakhs (Note No. 25.4)

We draw your kind attention to Note No. 25.4 of Financial Statements whereby
the expenditure amount of Rs. 68.82 Lakhs was shown as Staff & CSR Expenses
and the amount of same was not bifurcated separately as Staff Expenditure
and CSR Expenditure. Also, the company has not complied with the Disclosure
requirement of CSR Expenditure of as per Division | of Schedule Ill of Companies
Act, 2013.

We would also like to highlight that company had made donation of CSR
Expenditure amount of Rs. 9.10 Lakhs to its holding company i.e., Hindustan
Salts Limited which is in deviation from the CSR Activities classified in Schedule
VIl of Companies Act, 2013 and the same was also not disclosed by the
company in Notes to Accounts. Also, company had an unspent CSR amount
of Rs. 18.12 Lakhs which was neither transferred to special account not
disclosed by of notes to accounts
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10. Expenditure of Rs. 95 Lakhs

We draw your kind aftention to payment of Rs. 95 Lakhs made to M/s Sanbros
Spares Pvt Ltd towards canvas roofing and the same was shown under head
CWIP. However, as per our opinion canvas roofing is only a process which stops
leakage of roofing and does not increase the life of building. Hence, the same
cannot be treated as Capital Expenditure.

Due to erroneous treatment of revenue expenditure as capital expenditure
resulted in understatement of profit before tax by Rs. 95 Lakhs and
overstatement of capital work-in-progress by Rs. 95 Lakhs.

11. Trade Receivables of Rs. 7.42 Lakh (Note No. 16)

We wish to draw your kind attention to Note No. 16, Trade Receivables of Rs.
7.42 Lakhs whereby company has not followed appropriate procedure to
obtain confirmation for their balances featured for the FY 2022-23. Also, we
have been provided with ledger of 2 parties which was having Nil balances
and the same was signed by some personnel which seems to be inappropriate
procedure of obtaining confirmation.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the reliability of such trade
receivables, due to uncertainty involved.

12. Trade Payables of Rs. 655.04 Lakhs (Note No. 8)
We draw kind attention to Note No. 8 of Financial Statements, where Rs. 206.44
Lakhs of Trade Payables are outstanding for more than 3 years.

Company has not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation of their
outstanding balances featured for the FY 2022-23 as there is no system of
seeking confirmation from such parties. Therefore, we are unable to comment
on the liability of such dues, due to uncertainty involved.

13. Contingent Liabilities (Note No. 29)
We draw kind attention to Note No. 23 of Financial Statements. The company
had not disclosed the impact of pending litigations on financial statements.

Due to absence of information and uncertainty involved, we are unable to
comment on same.

14. Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for Salt Production, infrastructure
development, extraction, haulage and transportation at SSL central stores
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including maintenance of existing salt production infrastructure (Kyar No. 9-10)
to M/s Mahadev Contractor and Suppliers. Work Order dated 22/08/2022.

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above Works

a. Sambhar Salts Ltd (SSL) floated a tender on 8th July 2022 for Salt
Production, infrastructure development, extraction, haulage and
transportation of minimum quantity (2.25 lakh MT) at SSL central stores
including maintenance of existing salt production infrastructure (Kyar
No. 9-10). Tender was opened on 19th July 2022 and subsequently High
Tendering Committee (HTC) approved to open bids for only three
eligible bidders out of five bidders.

. The bid was opened, and M/s Mahadev Contractor and Suppliers
quoted X 8.59 crore at rate of X 382.00/MT and emerged as L-1 as being
lowest bidder. Subsequently company resorted to reverse auction to
obtain better price. In the reverse auction, rate of M/s Mahadev
Contractor and Suppliers was 380.00/MT against the estimated rate of
X370.00/MT.

. Due to higher rate, Negotiations Committee was formed by the Group
General Manager (Operations) and final rate obtained was x350.00/MT.
The SSL subsequently approved a separate Rate for developments works
at X 291/MT for the five years.

. The cost was subsequently revised to X 14.42 crore at rate 641/MT
(Production Rate 350/MT+ Infrastructure Development Rate 291/MT).
The letter of intent was issued to M/s Mahadev Contractor on 22.08.2022.

. As per the Tender Document, the bidder shall have at least three-year
experience in carrying out similar nature of work (Similar nature of work
shall mean common salt production & infrastructure development
activities like Borewell construction, Desilting of area, Salt extraction,
labour contract and transportation) within seven years ending on
31.05.2022. However, we have observed that the bidder had submitted
the experience certificate of “Swastik Salt Works” which was from a
contractor without any identification number, contact number or email
id. Also, the tender committee had not done any type of verification of
genuineness and authenticity of such experience certificate.
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Further, as per Tender Document Point No. 3 “Documents Required” of
Section lll of Qualification, “In case of lease of equipment, the period of
lease must be valid till end of confract period i.e., till 30th Sept 2027",
however, the bidder had simply submitted the agreement of an
equipment and not lease agreement which was also valid Hfill
13/07/2027. However, the management of the company had requested
the bidder on 25/07/2022 to submit shortfall document i.e., “Required
Machinery and Equipment to carry out all activates development,
production ext and fran”. In response to request for shortfall documents
bidder had submitted an agreement of an equipment and not lease
agreement on Stamp Paper dated 25/07/2022 vide S. No. 1588 duly
notarized on dated 25/07/2022and also as per S. No. 2 of agreement,
the vehicle was handed over to the bidder on dated 31/12/2022.
Therefore, to get themselves technically qualified, the bidder had
submitted manipulated/fabricated documents and since the bidder had
submitted backdated agreement i.e., after the date of last date of
submission of bid, the same cannot be accepted by the management.

. However, to give undue favor to the bidder, the management of the
company had accepted the fabricated/ manipulated documents of the
bidder and considered the bidder as Technically Qualified for the bid.

. We would also like to highlight that as per Manual for Procurement of
Works 2019, the applicant should have successfully completed or
substantially completed one similar completed work costing not less
than the amount equal to 80 (eighty) percent of the estimated cost i.e.,
%X11.89 crore. However, the NIT does not have any such clause which is
in contravention of Manual for Procurement of Works 2019.

Also, as per clause 5.1 of NIT, Bidders should quote inclusive of all
applicable GST, taxes, duties, levies, insurance, transportation,
Infrastructure Developments (ID)etc., for entire scope of work. However,
the management had separately awarded the work for infrastructure
work on additional payment which resulted in excess expenditure/
undue favor to the contractor amounting to X6.54 crore.

As per Point No. 6 of Section VIl General Conditions of Contract of Tender
Document, successful bidder has to furnish Security Deposit of 3% of
awarded contract value which should be remain valid for a period of 60
days beyond the date of completion of all contractual obligations of the
supplier. However, we have observed the following:-
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Bidder had submitted the SD of Rs. 23.62 Lakh only against
total work order of value of Rs. 14.42 Crore instead of SD of Rs.
43.26 Lakh which resulted in short receipt of Security Deposit of Rs.
19.64 Lakh.

Also, the FDR submitted by the bidder as Security Deposit is valid
for a period of 1 year i.e., till 05/09/2023 only. However, as per
Tender Document the security deposit should be valid Hill
29/11/2027.

. During the period from 01/09/2022 to 31/03/2023 no goods were
supplied by Mahadev Contractors and Suppliers. As reported to us, no
civil work is started by the bidder fill now. In absence of required civil
work as shown in bid documents or inadequate experience of M/s
Mahadev Contractor and Suppliers (clearly seen from fake experience
certificate of salt production submitted at the fime of bidding) no
production was done. During the FY 2022-23 around 20517.292 MT of Salt
production was done which was extracted from Kyar 9-10 between the
period Sept 2022 to Dec 2022 for which additional Rs. 104.10 per MT was
additionally paid to the bidder.

To encourage the GST tax evasion management of the company had
issued the work order for Purchase of Salt, however, work includes
infrastructure development, salt production, extraction, haulage and
transportation and even main raw material i.e., water for production of
salt is also provided by the company. Hence, it is covered under works
contract which attract GST @18%.

. As per point no. E of work order dated 22/08/2022, it is mentioned that
presently salt is exempted from GST, however if any GST gets applicable
in future, then it will be borne by SSL. It is not clear that if fax is imposed
on salt will be borne by SSL or any GST tax liability arises due to
classification of work order as works contract will be borne by the
company or the bidder.

. Also, the company had highlighted the fact that “Classifying the
contract as works contract will fail the entire purpose for company to
award the tender for achieving higher business from enhanced salt
purchase and sale”.

The above contention of company apparently exhibits that
management of the company is interested to do the GST Tax evasion by
classifying the tender for salt production as Purchases of Salt instead of
works contract.
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On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and observations
of such documents, prime facie it seems that the Tender for Salt Production,
infrastructure development, exiraction, haulage and transportation at SSL
central stores including maintenance of existing salt production infrastructure
(Kyar No. 9-10) to M/s Mahadev Contractor by the management of the
company to give the inadvertent assistance to a particular vendor by avoiding
all the rules and regulations prescribed under Manual for Procurement of Works
2019.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on
Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

15. Deficiency in allotment of Work for Engagement of Chartered Accountants
Firms for Compilation of account of Sambhar Salts Limited for the FY 2022-23 to
M/s AJRG & Associates (Further converted to M/s AGRS & Associates)

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above Works

. EOI for aforementioned work was floated by the company, however, no
record was available where the same was published or how the
infimation was sent to the prospective bidders. Last date of submission
of bid was 23/06/2023.

. Two bidders i.e., M/s AJRG & Associates (Further converted to M/s AGRS
& Associates) and M/s Khandelwal Rakesh & Associates have
participated in the aforementioned bid.

. As per technical documents submitted by the bidders, we have
observed that both the bidders have submitted dissimilar duly signed
EOI. EOI was provided by the company to the bidders.

. Scope of Work is also different in the EQOI's submitted by both the bidders.

. As per Quadlification Criteria mentioned in Tender Document “Bidder

must have 5 years of experience after its registration”, however the same
qualification criteria were not mentioned in the EQOI submitted by the
other bidder.
During verification of Technical Documents, we have observed that
both the bidders have simply submitted an Application Format
containing basic details only duly signed by CA. Ruchi Gupta/ Ruchi
Goyal for M/s AJRG & Associates and CA. Rakesh Khandelwal for M/s
Khandelwal Rakesh & Associates.

. We have scrutinized the documents submitted by the bidders and
observed the following:-
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Qualification
Criteria as per
Tender
Document

M/s AJRG
Associates

M/s Khandelwal
Rakesh & Associates

Firm must have
registered office
in Jaipur District

Documentary proof
office in Jaipur District
was not submitted

Documentary proof
office in Jaipur
District was not
submitted

Registered with
ICAlI and have
PAN and GST

Registration

Evidence of
registration  with
ICAli.e., Firm Card
or Firm
Registration
Certificate not
submitted by the
bidder

Copy of PAN Card
not submitted by
the bidder

Copy of GST
Registration  not
submitted by the
bidder

- Evidence of
registration  with
ICAli.e., Firm Card
or Firm
Registration
Certificate not
submitted by the
bidder
Copy of PAN Card
not submitted by
the bidder
Copy of GST
Registration  not
submitted by the
bidder

Minimum
experience of 5
years after its
registration

Documentary of
date of registration of
firm was not
submitted by the
bidder

Even the bidder had
not mentioned the
PAN No. of the firm in
Application Firm

Documentary of
date of registration of
firm was not
submitted by the
bidder

Have at least 3
years of
experience  in
compilation  of
accounts

Bidder had
submitted

documentary
evidence in respect
of 3 vyears of
experience in

not
any

Bidder
submitted
documentary

evidence in respect
of 3 vyears of
experience in

had not

any
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compilation compilation of
accounts accounts

Even after all the above deficiency in technical documents of bidders,
both the bidders have been technically qualified by the Committee and
financial bids were opened.

After opening of financial bid M/s AJRG & Associates were awarded the
work at Rs. 50,000 per month for 3 months and the same was extended
on quarterly basis for further 3 quarters. Also, provision of extension was
not available in EOI.

On scrutiny of documents it was also observed that the envelope in
which the Technical Documents was submitted by both the bidders
does not contain any addressing authority i.e., envelope was not
addressed to any official and is blank. Also, envelope does not contain
any name from whom the same was received i.e., Name of bidder on
envelopes who submitted the Technical Documents was not mentioned.

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and
observations of such documents, it seems that the Tender for Engagement
of Chartered Accountants Firms for Compilation of account of Sambhar
Salts Limited for the FY 2022-23 to M/s AJRG & Associates by the
management of the company without any technical documents/fallacious
documents of the bidder as set out in the EOI to give the inadvertent
assistance to a particular vendor by avoiding all the rules and regulations
& by making collusion with some specific bidders.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on
Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

16. Deficiency in allotment of Work for Stock Audit/ Physical Verification of
Fixed Assets/ Physical Verification of Spare Parts of Sambhar Salts Limited
for the FY 2022-23 to M/s AGRS & Associates / AJRG & Associates

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above Works

. NIT of the aforementioned work was not available on record.

. Also, it was not clear how the communication was sent to the
prospective bidders.

. No technical parameters and eligibility criteria were available on record
for floating such NIT if any.
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d. Financial bids of only 2 bidders namely M/s AGRS & Associates and M/s
Namit Vatsa & Co. were received by the company through single
emadail(Financial bids of both bidders were attached in a single mail L1
bidder) -on-email id amit.jha@indiansalt.com and
sunil.bhandari@indiansalt.com under CC to ajrgassociates@gmail.com
from email id “gupta ruchi31@yahoo.in”.

. Finally, the work was allotted to M/s AGRS & Associates.

As per offer letter dated 28/03/2023 given to M/s AJRG & Associates (CA
Ruchi Gupta), physical count of stock of raw salt, refined salt and WIP at
Sambhar, Nawa &Gudha, Physical Verification of Fixed Assets and
Physical Verification of Spare Parts as on 31/03/2023 to be done by the
firm. However, as per Physical Verification Report submitted by M/s AGRS
& Associates (converted name of M/s AJRG & Associates), it has been
mentioned that the M/s AGRS & Associates have provided assistance in
the work of physical verification and the physical verification was on
sample basis only.

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and
observations of such documents, it seems that the Allotment of work for
Stock Audit/ Physical Verification of Fixed Assets/ Physical Verification of

Spare Parts of Sambhar Salts Limited for the F. Y. 2022-23 to M/s AGRS &
Associates / AJRG & Associates by the management of the company
without any technical documents/fallacious documents to give the
inadvertent assistance to a particular vendor by avoiding all the rules and
regulations & by making collusion with some specific bidders. Also, the
management of the company had not considered malpractice done by
the L1 bidder in acquisition of the respective work of physical verification.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on
Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

17. Deficiency in allotment of Work for Forensic Audit of Sambhar Salts
Limited to M/s AGRS & Associates.

Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above Works

. NIT of the aforementioned work was not available on record.

. Also, it was not clear how the communication was sent to the
prospective bidders.

. No technical parameters and eligibility criteria were available on record
for floating such NIT if any.
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d.

Open Financial bids of only 3 bidders namely M/s AGRS & Associates,
M/s Vishal Gupta & Co and M/s Bansal AV & Associates were received
by the company on dated 21/11/2022, 21/11/2022 and 19/11/2022
respectively.

. Finally, the work was allotted to M/s AGRS & Associates

No other documents were available on record.

. It was surprising that the management had allotted the work of forensic

h.

audit without floating the NIT, Technical Criteria’s and Eligibility of bidder.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on
Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

18. Allotment of work for leak proofing and strengthening of existing roofs
to M/s Sanbros Spares Private Limited

a.

b.

d.

Work of Rs. 4,12,14,800/- was allotted to the aforementioned bidder
without verification of experience certificates submitted by the bidder.
Partial work of Rs. 95,00,000/- was executed by the bidder in the month
of Feb 2023 and requested for new sites for completion of remaining
work. However, vide letter no. 01-Works/2022-23/2157 dated 02/03/2023
GM (Works) had refused to give the remaining sites stating the reason
that aforesaid work was required to be completed before the rainy
season which could not be executed from your site on time, hence, the
effects of the rain on the work could not be checked. Therefore,
remaining sites will be provided after upcoming rainy season.

. In the month of June 2023 several complaints related to roof repair

conducted by M/s Sanbros Spares Pvt Ltd was received from users of
buildings. On receipt of such complaint letter no. 07-Works/2022-
2023/540, 541, 5578, 5579 dated 04/07/2023 was also issued to M/s
Sanbros Spares Pvt Ltd. No repairment was done by the bidder up to the
date of audit.

No penalty was imposed on delayed completion of work and improper
execution of work by the bidder.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on
Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

19. Undue favor to M/s Vipin Salt Company in granting discount of Rs. 1.62
Crore
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Brief Facts, Information /Observations of the above Works

. During the FY 2021-22 total discount of Rs. 1,34,38,098 was allowed on
31/03/2022 as discount to M/s Vipin Salt Company and Rs. 27,61,000 was
allowed as discount on 23/02/2023.

. As per commitment letter no. File NO. 01/HO-MKTG./Salt/2020-21/399
dated 29/05/2021 22% discount was to be allowed to M/s Vipin Salt
company on following conditions:

Duration of commitment 01/06/2021 to 31/05/2022.

Minimum 50000 MT Sambhar Kyar Salt will be lifted by M/s Vipin Salt or for
non-lifting quantity payment will be made during the period 01/06/2021
to 31/05/2022.

Monthly discount quantity will be given in the next month after achieving
the next month target of lifting/payment.

Grace period of 60 days may be given to the buyer.

To avail the discount payment corresponding to the shortfall lifting will
be deposited by the buyer.

Since, M/s Vipin Salt had agreed for the enhance quantity, 18% discount
will be allowed on the lifting of April 2021 and May 2021 months also.

. On 23/07/2021, following modifications in commitment lefter dated
29/05/2021 were approved by CMD:

In addition to Sambhar Kyar Salt, buyer can buy following goods at
following rates:

S. No. | Salt Rate per MT
1 Sambhar Pan 1425.00
2 Nawa Kyar 2050.00
3 Devyani Salt 2700.00

Afterinclusion of above 3 products company has to cross the target and
needs to reach nearly 75000 MT to 80,000 MT during commitment
period.

Monthly lifting/payment for shortfall shall not be less than 4167 MT.
Lifting/Payment of Sambhar Kyar Salt during the commitment period
shall not be less than 50,000 MT.

. Further modification in commitment letter dated 29/05/2021 was
approved by CMD on dated 01/10/2021 whereby rate of Sambhar Pan
was changed from Rs. 1425 per MT to Rs. 1450 per MT.

. Monthly sales (in MT) from 01/06/2021 to 31/07/2022 (including 60 days
of grace period)
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f.

Sambhar Sambhar Nawa Kyar | Devyani Sambhar Sambhar
Kyar Pan Salt Kyar (Other | Pan (Other
Rate @ Rs. | rates)
4000/MT)

3319.40 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.000 44.080

2033.28 179.960 284.580 0.00 796.430 0.000

1825.51 317.010 904.050 0.00 0.000 0.000

1534.52 223.480 961.965 0.00 0.000 0.000

1787.89 583.160 1521.100 0.00 0.000 0.000

899.36 840.260 1694.895 0.00 592.710 0.000

770.52 708.710 1643.640 0.00 659.020 0.000

128.99 0.000 5262.910 0.00 1136.000 356.840

682.05 0.000 136.290 0.00 290.788 489.600

160.77 0.000 0.000 0.00 1490.360 0.000

204.31 0.000 506.520 0.00 603.870 578.620

105.31 0.000 373.810 0.00 480.690 544.940

0.00 0.000 249.620 0.00 370.110 155.510

—| =] === [0 N[O NDN|W[IN]|—

0.00 0.000 0.000 0.00 201.410 0.000

13451.91 2852.580 13539.380 0.00 6621.388 2169.590

As on 31/07/2022, account of M/s Vipin Salt Company was having a
debit balance of Rs. 16,50,544 after allowing the discount of Rs.
1,34,38,098.

. As the buyer M/s Vipin Salt Company have failed to achieve the lifting

target of 50000MT for Sambhar Kyar Salt as per commitment letter dated
29/05/2021 and composite lifting target of 75000 MT to 80000 MT vide
approved amendments by CMD on time-to-time basis. Therefore,
company had wrongly allowed the total discount of Rs. 1.62 Crore
including discount related to sales of April 21 and May 21 and provided
undue favor/benefit to M/s Vipin Salt Company.

. Also, it has been observed that company has sold 6621.388 MT of
Sambhar Kyar Salt below the base price of Rs. 4000/ MT at range of
selling price of Rs. 1300 to 3500 MT.

Therefore, due to inappropriate discount of Rs. 1.62 Crore given by the
management of the company to M/s Vipin Salt Company resulted in
understatement of Profit Before Tax by Rs. 1.62 Crore and overstatement of
Trade Receivables by Rs. 1.62 Crore
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20. Company had failed to make the provision of Rs. 23,70,000 plus GST
payable to M/s Chandra Enfrepreneurs Pvt Ltd towards stay charges in S-
1, S-2 and Jhapok beyond the prescribed allowed days.

Due to non-making of provision of Rs. 23,70,000 resulted in overstatement
of Profit Before Tax by Rs. 27,00,000 and understatement of short-term
provisions by Rs. 27,00,000.

21. Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s Navkar Impex for purchase of
Salt

Company had wrongly treated the transactions with M/s Navkar Impex. as
Purchases in the books of accounts and accordingly not deducted the TDS
u/s 194C @1% of Rs. 39,433 instead of treating the transaction as works
contract.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 39,433 resulted in
understatement of Trade Payables (For Others) by Rs. 39,433 and
overstatement of Trade Payables (For Expenses) by Rs. 39,433. It is to be
noted that the above amount does not include liability of interest and
penalty on TDS not deducted and paid to the government. The same may
be calculated at the time of deduction and payment and accordingly the
liability may increase by same amount.

22. Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Lid. against
Work Order dated 01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa Salt
Refinery Company had treated the transactions with M/s MFB Geotech Pvt
Ltd. as Purchases in the books of accounts and accordingly not deducted
the TDS u/s 194C of Rs. 74,753 against payment of Rs. 37,37,662/- made
during the FY 2022-23.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 74,753 resulted in understatement
of Trade Payables (For Others) by Rs. 74,753 and overstatement of Trade
Payables (For Expenses) by Rs. 74,753. It is to be noted that the above
amount does not include liability of interest and penalty on TDS not deducted
and paid to the government. The same may be calculated at the time of
deduction and payment and accordingly the liability may increase by same
amount.
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Short TDS deducted of Rs. 1.926 Lakhs as reported in previous year
independent auditor’s report was also not deducted and deposited during
the FY 2022-23.

23. Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s Om Prakash Jat for purchase of
Salt

Company had wrongly treated the transactions with M/s Om Prakash Jat as
Purchases in the books of accounts and accordingly not deducted the TDS
u/s 194C @1% of Rs. 30638 in-steading of treating the transaction as works
contract.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 30,638 resulted in understatement
of Trade Payables (For Others) by Rs. 30,638, and overstatement of Trade
Payables (For Expenses) by Rs. 30,638. It is to be noted that the above
amount does not include liability of interest and penalty on TDS not deducted
and paid to the government. The same may be calculated at the time of
deduction and payment and accordingly the liability may increase by same
amount.

24 Tendering procedure followed by the management of the company
We would like to draw your kind attention to various observations highlighted
by us in our previous independent auditor’s report for the financial year 2020-
21 and 2021-22 wherein we had exclusively reported the facts,
circumstances and instances of inappropriate allotment of various tenders
to give unreasonable advantage to specific vendor/parties. However, no
refinement in the same procedure was done by the management of the
company in the current financial year also. Since, company is continuously
giving the tenders on inappropriate documents to give undue favour to
specific vendors, it seems thatmanagement of the company is allotting the
tenders of various works and servicesby making a nexus and collaboration
with some particular vendors.

Even on the basis of instruction given by the Audit Committee for conduction
of forensic audit in respect of various reply submitted by the management
on observations in previous independent auditor’s report, appointment of
such forensic auditor was also done in inappropriate manner and allotment
was provided to a firm which was not having adequate experience of
conducting forensic audit.
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25. GST Tax Evasion by taking the invoice for Purchases of Salt

We would like to draw your kind attention to various observations highlighted
by us in our previous independent auditor’s report for the financial year 2021-
22 wherein we had exclusively highlighted the fact that management of the
company is allotting the several tenders for extraction/O&M services related
to salt from various Kyar/Plants to multiple vendors. As per designing and
nature of work described in the tender document the same should be
treated as works contract and GST @18% should be charged by the vendor
from Sambhar Salts Limited. However, the vendors, to whom such work for
extraction/O&M of salt was allotted were giving the invoices for sale of salt
to Sambhar Salts Limited without charging the GST as salt is covered under
exempted goods. Also, Sambhar Salts Limited treat such invoices as
Purchases of Salts or as expenses in the profit and loss account.

Management of the company is designing the tender document for
extraction of salt in a manipulative manner and giving the framework of the
same as purchase of salt from the vendors. Vendors are continuously issuing
the GST Exempted invoices for sale of salt under the HSN Code of Salt to

Sambhar Salts Limited and the same is collaboratively assisting by the
management of the company for the GST Tax evasion by several vendors in
minimising the cost of exiraction/O&M.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on
Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

For R. K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-

(Rakesh Jhalani)
Partner
Membership No.074142

Place of Signature: Jaipur
Date: 29/09/2023
UDIN: 23074142BGZFKR9835
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"Annexure-B"

Formin rt_of In ndent Auditor's R rt n nsolidat
Fi ial St | f Hindus Salfs Limited for 1 led
31st March. 2023

(Referred to in Para 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date).

With Reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor’s

Report to the members of the company on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 315t March 2023, we report the following:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
following company incorporated in India and included in the consolidated
financial statements, have unfavorable remarks, qualifications or adverse
remarks given in their reports under the Companies( Auditor’'s Report) Order,
2020(CARO):

S. Name of the | CIN Holding Clause number
No. Entity Company/ of the
Subsidiary respective
CARO report
which is
unfavorable or
qualified or
adverse

Hindustan U14220RJ1958GOI001049 | Holding i(a).(b),(c)&(d),
Salts Limited i(a), ii(c)&(d),
ix(a), xiv(a),
xx(Q)
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Sambhar U1422RJ1964G0OI001188 | Subsidiary 1(b).(c)&(d).

Salts Limited 2(a), 8, 9(q),
14(a), 20(q)

For R. K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-
(Rakesh Jhalani)

Partner
Membership No. 074142
Place of Signature: Jaipur
Date: 29/09/2023
UDIN: 23074142BGZFKR9835
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ANNEXURE-C

Forming part of the Independent Auditor's report of even date on
the Financial Statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year

ended on 315t March 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") -

(Referred to in Para 2 (f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of our report of even date).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Hindustan Salts Limited, Jaipur, ('the Company') as of 31st March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financlal
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').

These responsibllities include the design, in1plementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's polices, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
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internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Conftrols and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Om audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial
Conftrols over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing, and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal- financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or fimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatement of due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting to future periods are
subject to risk that the Internal Financial Conftrols over Financial Reporting
may became in adequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
audit, the following material weaknesses have been identified as at March
31, 2023:

a) The company has no proper policies and procedures for periodical
physical verification of fixed assets and inventories of the company. During
the year under consideration no physical verification of fixed assets has been
conducted by the company. The company's internal control over existence,
completeness, valuation & allocation of fixed assets is not operating
effectively. As reported to us, physical verification of inventory was not
conducted at any unit.

b) The internal audit of the Company is being carried by the independent
firm of Chartered Accountants and looking to the size, nature and volume of
tfransactions, the same needs to be strengthened.

C) The corporation lacks an appropriate control system for obtaining third
party balance confirmations for various advances & liabilities. Further, the
corporation does not reconcile the periodic balances with the confirmations,
which could potentially result is material misstatement of the financial
statements & may lead to fraudulent activity resulting in financial losses. The
corporation’s internal control over existence, completeness, valuation &
allocation of fixed assets is not operating effectively.

d) The Corporation has no comprehensive model for internal control over
financial reporting incorporating risk assessment, control process and gap
tracking along with the description of objective, process and risk associated
thereof, as per the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.
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e) The internal control system for identification & allocation of overheads
to inventory was also not operating effectively. These could result in material
misstatements in the corporation’s assets & liabilities, inventory & expense
accounts balances.

f) The corporation’s internal control system lacks formal reconciling the
balances of the banks/ third parties, which could potentially result in material
misstatement in regard to carry forward of balances in the financial
statements.

e) The corporation’s internal control system of accounting on real time
basis is not operating.

h) The corporation’s internal control system with regard to matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph to the Independent
Auditor's Report for the FY 2022-23 is not operating effectively.

])  The company lacks in obtaining third party balance confirmations for
various advances & liabilities and accordingly does not reconcile the
periodic balances with the confirmations, which could potentially
result is material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual
or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

In our opinion , to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the material
weaknesses described above on the achievement of objectives of the
control criteria, the company has maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st
March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of
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For R.K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-(Rakesh Jhalani) Partner
Membership No.074142

Place of Signature: Jaipur

Date: 29/09/2023
UDIN: 23074142BGZFKR9835
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Annexure-D

ing_po ndependent A i Rer idated
Financial Statements of Hindustan Salis Limited for the vear ended on
31st March. 2023

Compliance to the Directions u/s 143 (5) of the Act bv the
Compiroller & Auditor General of India

(Referred to in Para 3 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements")

In continuation of our Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements
of Hindustan Salts Limited(“The Company”) dated 17.08.2023, we have
revised the Directions and Sub-direction under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 applicable for the year 2022-23 on the basis of
provisional comments issued by the office of Comptroller & Auditor General
of India, as under:

Particulars Auditors’' Reply Impact on
Financial
Statements
Whether the companyHolding Company is INo impact
has system in place tomaintaining  accounting on
process all thelfransactions through Tally |financial
accounting Software at all its units i.e. |statements
transactions through ITKharagodha Unit, Mandi
systeme If yes, thelUnit and Ramnagar Unit as
implications ofwell as at its Head office.
processing of
accounting

fransactions outside 1T} sypsidiary Company is not

system on the integrityhaving the system in place
of the accounts alongto  process all  the [Nof

with the financial accounting  transaction [ascertainable

through IT system however
Accounting Entry being
done through Tally ERP 9.

Implications, if any,
may be stated.
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Whether there is any
restructuring of any
existing loan or cases
of waiver/ write off of
debts/loans/ interest
etc. made by alender
to the company due
to the company's
inability to repay the
loane If vyes, the
financial impact may
be stated. Whether
such cases are
properly accounted
fore (In case, lender is
a Government
Company, then this
direction is also
applicable for
statutory auditor of
lender company).

As informed to us, there is
no case of restructuring of
any existing loan or waiver/
write off of loan / interest to
the company by lender to
the holding company.

In respect of the subsidiary
company, Sambhar Salts
Limited, There is no
restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver /
write off of debts/ loans/
interest etc. made by a
lender i.e., Hindustan Salts
Ltd. Holding company to
the company due to the
company inability to repay
the loan.

No impact
on
financial

statements

Not
ascertainable

Whether

(grants/subsidy)
received / receivables
for specific schemes
from Cenftral/State
Government  or  its
agencies  were

properly

funds

Accounted for/ utilized
as per its terms and
conditionse  List  the
cases of deviation.

Based on the information
available and according
to the information and
explanations given to us,
the company has not
received any

Specific  schemes from
central / state agencies
during the year.

No adverse
impact on

Financial
statements.
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However, the holding
company has received
grant for payment of
pension to ex-employees
of salt department.

Subsidiary Company is nof|Not

received / receivable the|ascertainable
fund for specific scheme
from Central Govt.& State
Agency except plan
scheme, for payment of
pension of ex salt
department employees
through Hindustan Salt Ltd.
Holding Company and
which was properly
account for and utilized as
per its term and condition

For R. K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-

(Rakesh Jhalani)
Partner
Membership No. 074142

Place of Signature: Jaipur
Date: 29/09/2023
UDIN: 23074142BGZFKR9835
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Consolidated Financial
statement




HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023
CIN: U14220RJ1958G0I1001049

(' in Lakh)
Note | FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
PARTICULARS No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHARE HOLDER'S FUND
(a) Share Capital 2 5,205.96 5,205.96
(b) Reserve & Surplus 3 (909.40) (2,858.80)
(C) Money Received Against Share Warrant - -
2. SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING
ALLOTMENT - -
3. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4 ~ 1,241.29
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities S5 74.81 103.35
(d) Long Term Provisions 6 377.78 408.05
4. CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Short Term Borrowing 7 1,241.29 -
{b) Trade Payables 8
(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro
enterprises and small enterprises 101.26 89.71
(B) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other
than Micro enterprises and small enterprises 598.85 758.56
(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 3,388.58 3,318.14
{d) Short Term Provisions 10 380.46 20.50
TOTAL 10,459.59 8,286.76
B. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible
Assets 11
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 2,455.26 2,574.63
(ii) Intangible Assets 0.33 0.40
{iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 226.51 22.71
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development - -
(b} Non Current Investments - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 76.02 29.19
{d) Long term Loans and Advances 12 201.62 201.62
{e) Other Non Current Assets 13 341.27 275.20
3,301.01 3,103.75

L X1




(‘% in Lakh)

Note | FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON

PARTICULARS No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
2. CURRENT ASSETS
{8) Current Investments - -
(b) Inventories 14 1,702.95 1,347.24
{c) Trade Receivables 15 7.42 67.81
(d) Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 4,799.15 3,468.32
(e) Short Term Loans and Advances 17 485.20 248.94
{f) Other Current Assets 18 163.86 50.70
7,158.58 5,183.01
TOTAL 10,459.59 8,286.76
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1to 30 -
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
{Vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Naresh Kumar) (CMDE Kamlesh Kumar(Retd})
Company Secretary G.G.M.(F&A}) Director Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 10043608 DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For R K Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002759C

{(Rakesh Jhalani)
Place : Jaipur Partner
Dated : 17-08-2023 Membership No. 074142

N RN



HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
CIN: U14220RJ1958G0I1001049

\ 21

(¥ in Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT | FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF THE END OF
CURRENT PREVIOUS
PARTICULARS REPORTING REPORTING
Note PERIOD PERIOD
No. 2022-23 2021-22
REVENUE :-
I Revenue from Operations 19 7,435.65 6,603.01
I Other Income 20 870.19 594.34
III Total Income 8,305.84 '7,197.35
IV EXPENSES :-
Cost of Materials Consumed 21 3,376.83 1,858.96
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 117.22 1,176.14
Less: Inter Company Purchase - -
Changes in inventories of
Finished Goods 22 -401.41 260.85
works in progress -95.33 -103.08
Stock in Trade - -
Employee Benefits Expense 23 1,117.46 849.85
Finance costs 24 241.25 270.73
Depreciation and amortization expense 426.19 362.12
Other expenses 25 1,309.89 1,147.54
Total Expenses 6,092.10 5,823.11
V PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND
TAX (III-IV) 2,213.74 1,374.24
VI EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 206.50
Prior Period income (Expenses) /Adjustment Net 26 6.71) 60.70
VII PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND
TAX (V-VI) 2,207.03 1,228.44
VIII EXTRAORDINERY ITEM
IX PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2,207.03 1,228.44




(¥"_in Lakh)

FIGURES AS AT | FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF THE END OF
CURRENT PREVIOUS
PARTICULARS REPORTING | REPORTING
Note PERIOD PERIOD
No. 2022-23 2021-22
X Tax Expenses
Current Tax 303.00 20.50
Deferred Tax {46.83) {29.19)
XI PROFIT(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM
CONTINUING OPERATION (VII-VIII) 1,950.86 1,237.13
XII PROFT (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUING
OPERATION (VII-VIII) - -
XIII TAX EXPENSES OF DISCONTINUING
OPERATIONS - -
XIV PROFIT {(LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATION (AFTER TAX)(XII-XIII) - -
XV PROFIT(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD(XI+XIV) 1,950.86 1,237.13
Adj of unrealised Profit in Closing Stock - -
Adj of Minority Interest 451.94 434.16
XVI PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,498.92 802.97
XVII EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE: 27
Basic EPS (in %) 374.73 237.64
Diluted EPS (in %) 374.73 237.64
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1 to 30
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

(Vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Naresh Kumar) (CMDE Kamlesh Kumar(Retd))

Company Secretary G.G.M.(F & A)

Director

DIN 10043608

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For R K Malpani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002759C

(Rakesh Jhalani)

Place : Jaipur
Dated :17-08-2023

AN B

Partner
Membership No. 074142




HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2023

CIN: U14220RJ1958GOI001049

{ ¥ in Lakh)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before Tax and Extraordinary Items 2,207.03 1,228.44
A Adjustments for
Depreciation 427.78 363.80
Capital Reserve (1.48) (1.57)
Provision for Income Tax (303.00) (20.50)
Provision for Deffered Tax
Provision for Leave Encashment & D.C.R.G. (30.27) (43.89)
Interest Expenses 241.25 270.73
Other non current assets (66.07) 126.52
Interest Income (268.68) (103.98)
Profit From Fair Price Shop -
B Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,206.56 1,819.55
C Change in working Capital
Increase in  Short Term Borrowings 1,241.29 -
Decrease in Trade Payables (148.16) 298.95
Decrease in Other Long Term Liabilities (28.54) (6.41)
Increase in Other Current Liabilities 70.44 259.77
Increase in  Short Term Provision 359.96
Increase in Inventories (355.71) 148.91
Decrease in Trade Receivables 60.39 (14.27)
Increase in Short Term Loans and Advances (236.26) 232.58
Decrease in Other Bank Balances (FDR) 2,222.37 (1,892.42)
Increase in  Other Current Assets (113.16) (4.57)
D Cash generated from operations 5,279.18 842.08

E Adjustments for direct tax paid

F Net Cash Flow from Operative Activities

G Cash Flow from investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets & Capital W.1.P.

Interest Income

1y

5,279.18 5,279.18

(512.12)

268.68

842.08 842.08

(630.88)

103.98




( & in Lakh)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Security Deposits - {243.44) {526.90)
H Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from long term borrowing (1,241.29) (60.00)

Shares Capital Received
Interest Expenses
I Net changes in Cash and Cash equivalent
J Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of Fin. Year*

K Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the Fin. Year*

(241.25) (1,482.54)
3,553.20
578.22

4,131.42

(270.73)  (330.73)
(15.54)
593.76

578.22

1. Cash Flow Statements has been prepared on indirect menthod as per AS-3

FDRs of .3221.11 lakh pledged with SBI, Jaipur, Kharaghoda and Mandi (previous year "%95.68 Lakh With SBI))

AALEN WL NIV L AGOAD AU WALLL AL, MGG AL VIVHO YUGL N J U ANRELD) GUIW LIV W VU A VLU TGRS PELUEL WLl

PNB(Previous year "¥583.50 lakhs) towerds securities for OD Loans

Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the Fin. Year

As per Cash Flow Statement 4,131.42 578.22
Includs the FDR more then 12 Months 667.73 2,890.10
Total as per Note 16 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,799.15 3,468.32
Sd/- Sd/- 8d/- Sd/-
(Vikas Yadav) {Sandeep Kumar Tak) {Naresh Kumar) (CMDE Kamlesh Kumar(Retd) )
Company Secretary G.GM(F&A) Director Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 10043608

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For R K Malpani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002759C

(Rakesh Jhalani)
Place : Jaipur Partner
Dated : 17-08-2023 Membership No. 074142

RS

DIN -08884327




1.1

NOTE NO. - 1: - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR
ENDED ON 315t MARCH, 2023.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Hindustan Salts Limited
(the Company) and its subsidiary, Sambhar Salts Limited (the subsidiary).
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following
basis:-

(i)

(i)

(i)

(b)

The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of
like items of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses, after fully
eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and
unrealised profits or losses as per Accounting Standard (AS) 21 -
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.

The Financial Statements of the subsidiary consolidated are drawn
upto the same reporting date of the Company, i.e. 315t March, 2023.

The excess of the Company’s portion of equity of the subsidiary as at
the date of its investment over the cost of its investment is treated as
Capital Reserve on Consolidation. The excess of cost to the Company of
its investment in subsidiary over the Company’s portion of equity as at
the date of investment is treated as Goodwill on Consolidation.

Minority Interest in the net assets of Consolidated subsidiary consists
of:

The amount of equity attributable to the minorities at the date of
Financial Statements of the subsidiary for immediately preceding
period for the basis of consolidation.

The minorities share of movements in equity at the date of Financial
Statements of the subsidiary for immediately preceding period for the
basis of consolidation.

Minority interests’ share of net profit for the year of consolidated

subsidiary is defined and adjusted against the profit after tax of the
consolidated company.
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1.2 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Name of Subsidiary Country of Ownership in %
Company Incorporation
Current | Pervious
Year Year
SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED INDIA 60% 60%

The Company has acquired the subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Limited
in the year 1964 and it is impracticable to draw the Financial Statements of
the Subsidiary Company for the year 1964. Hence Financial Statement of
the Subsidiary for immediately preceding period issued for the basis of
consolidation.

1.3 OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
historical cost convention on the basis of going concern, with revenue
recognised and expenses accounted for on accrual system of
accounting.

2. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of Financial Statements requires estimates and
assumptions which affected the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of the reporting period. The difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period
in which the results are known or materialised.

3. INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into Current and Non-Current Investments.
Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or market value. Non-
Current Investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution in
value is made only if such decline is other than temporary in the
opinion of the management.

4. CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS CURRENT AND
NON CURRENT

All assets and liability are classified as current or non-current as per
the companies normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in
schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 Based on the nature of

%




products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalent, 12 months has been
considered by the company for the purpose of current ~ non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

. VALUATION OF INVENTORIES/SALT IN PROCESS

(1) Stores & Spares are valued at cost or net realisable value
whichever is lower except otherwise mentioned.

(i Raw materials and packing materials are valued at cost or net
realisable value whichever is lower except otherwise mentioned.

(1if) Released material and scrap is valued at estimated realisable
value and Assets (Scraped) is valued at book value.

(iv) Loose tools those exceeding 2. 750/- added during the year.
Loose tools costing T 750/- or less purchased during the year
are charged to the revenue under respective heads.

(v)  Salt, Bromine stocks and Work in Progress are valued at
cost/Net Realisable Value whichever is lower.

. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at
bank and on hand and short term deposit with an original maturity of
12 months or less, and maturity more than 12 Months are shown in
other bank balances which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

. RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Revenue / Income and expenditure / cost are generally accounted on
accrual basis as they are earned or incurred. Revenue from sale of
goods recognized when the significant risk and reward of ownership
has been transfer to the buyer.

. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTION

The expenditure in foreign currency is accounted for at the rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Any income or expenses on
account of exchange rate difference either on settlement or a
transaction is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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9. PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL TRADE RECEIVABLES AND
ADVANCES

Trade Receivables and Advances outstanding for more than 3 years
are reviewed at the close of the year and provision made on case to
case basis in case of uncertainty in the realisation of outstanding
amount, in the opinion of the management.

10.

(i)

(i)

(i)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Pension

The Payment of Pension with regard to pensioner charges for
the staff absorbed in the company from Salt Department is
being paid from the Grant-in-Aid received from Department of
Heavy industries, Govt. of India, New Delhi and is passed on to
Pension Fund Trust.

Gratuity

Gratuity is administered by a separate irrevocable Trust which
has taken a L.I.C. Policy covering all the eligible employees
except Agarias - Company's piece-rate workers, and eligible daily
paid workers in whose case the liability is provided as per the
payment of Gratuity Act-1972. No liability is provided for
gratuity in respect of work charged staff for the period prior to
the formation of the Company. Demands made by the Trust
including the Annual Renewal Premium of the L.I.C. Policy after
taking 1st October of the year are charged to Statement of Profit
& Loss.

Leave Encashment

Liability for leave due upto end of the accounting year has been
provided on the assumption that such benefits are payable to all
employees at the end of the Accounting Year.

Expenditure incurred on VRS are being written off in five years
in equal instalment.

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Fixed Assets are valued at historical cost on consistent basis
and are net of refundable taxes and levies wherever applicable.
All cost relating to acquisition of fixed assets till commissioning
of such assets are capitalized.
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(i)

(ii1)

Depreciation on fixed assets is being provided consistently on
written down value method over useful life of assets specified in
Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 and 100% depreciation
has been provided on the assets costing ¥ 5,000/- or less
acquired during the year.

In subsidiary company, Depreciation on Gudha Jhapog Dam
has been charged on straight line method (SLM) in 40 years as
per decision dated 26-09-1980 of Board of Directors

12. BORROWING COST :

Borrowing costs that are attributable to acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

13.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Intangible assets that are acquired by the company, which have
defined wuseful life, are recognized at cost. Subsequent
measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly
attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the assets
ready for its intended use.

DERECOGNITION

An intangible assets is derecognized when no future economic
benefits are expected from their use or upon their disposal.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are
determine by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying of intangible assets and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

\%20



(i) AMORTIZATION

Cost of software recognized as intangible assets is amortized on
written down value method over a period of legal right to use or
3 years whichever is less. Other intangible assets are amortized
on straight line method over a period of legal right to use or life
of the related plant whichever is less.

14. GRANT-IN-AID

Grant-in-aid received / sanctioned during the year from Cess Fund
against Completed / Capital / Development work is transferred to
Capital Reserve Account except as otherwise stated. In that case the
depreciation on such subsidised assets is being charged to Capital
Reserve and Statement of Profit and Loss in the ratio of Grant in aid
received and cost borne by the Company.

Against Kacha works is directly credited to Profit & Loss Account.in
subsidiary

The Payment of Pension with regard to pensionary charges for the
staff absorbed in the company from Salt Department is being paid
from the Grant-in-Aid received from Department of Heavy industries
Govt. of India New Delhi and is passed on the Pension Fund Trust.

15. PROVISION FOR WASTAGES ON SALT STOCKS

Physical verification of salt heaps on accurate and reliable basis is not
feasible because of the irregular shapes of salt heaps. Actual deficit /
wastages are adjusted in the accounts of the financial year in which
the heaps are finally cleared. However, provision for wastages @10% of
the quantity produced / stored during the financial year and @ 5% on
the opening stock of the year is made in respect of salt heaps not
finally cleared during the year. In Subsidiary the provision are made
for wastages @10% of the quantity produced/stored during the
financial year and @5%per annum on the opening stock in respect of
heaps not finally cleared after adjusting the excess provision if any on
heaps finally cleared during the year.

The holding co is outsourced its production facility & does not carry
any inventory of manufacturing item accordingly policy in the
Company & its subsidiary as per AS 21 applicable.
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16. APPORTIONMENT OF COMMON CORPORATE OFFICE
EXPENSES

(i) There is a common Chairman & Managing Director for
Hindustan Salts Ltd. (Holding Company) and Sambhar Salts Ltd
(Subsidiary Company). In the absence of any specific mention in
the terms of his appointment as regards sharing of the
remuneration the same is apportioned between the two
Companies in the ratio of 25% and 75% respectively.

(i) The Corporate Office common expenses, depreciation and
interest (including Chairman and Managing Director's
remuneration) and receipts have been apportioned 25% between
the holding Company and 75% in its subsidiary Company
(Sambhar Salts Ltd.).

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

In respect of the transactions pertaining to the period prior to the
current accounting year, the Company follows the practice in
conformity with the Accounting Standards.

18. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development cost (other than cost of fixed assets
acquired) are charged as an expense in the year in which they are
incurred.

19. TAXATION

(i) Current Income Tax is determined on the basis of taxable
income computed in accordance with the provision of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(if)  Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between taxable
and accounting income / expenditure that originates in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
period(s). Deferred Tax Asset is recognised on the basis of
virtual / reasonable certainty about its realisability as
applicable.

20. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT
ASSETS

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation and
measurement are recognised when there is present obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow
of resources. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed
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in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities, if material, are
disclosed by way of notes.

21. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect
method prescribed in Accounting Standard on 'Cash Flow Statement”
(AS-3) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.
The cash flow are reported using the indirect method where by profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transaction of non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals or part on future operating cash receipt or
payments and items of income or expenses associates trade with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flow from operating,
investing and financial activity of the company are segregated.

22. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date. In case there is any indication of impairment based on internal
/ external factors, an impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

23. WRITE OFF OF DEFFERED REVENUE EXPENDITURE

As per practice in vogue, the deferred revenue expenditure is being
written off in five equal annual instalments beginning from the year
in which such expenditure are incurred.

24. MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

The Disclosures on the basis of information received from supplier
regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 the unpaid amount as at the
year and together with the interest paid / payable as required under
the said Act have been made.

25. PRELIMINARY AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE

Expenditure incurred on projects is shown as other non-current
assets and will be charged /capitalized in the year in which it is
decided by the management to implement the project. Otherwise, in
case, the management decides not to implement / close the project,
expenditure on such project is charged to the Statement of Profit &
Loss for the year in which such decision is taken.
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(¥’ in Lakh)
FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
-2 : SHARE C.
NOTE-2: 5 F CAPITAL 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Authorised
600,000 Equity Shares (Previous vear 6,000.00 6,000.00
600,000 Equity Shares) of 21000/ - each
6,000.00 6,000.00
Issued Subscribed and paid up 5,205.96 5,205.96
520596 Equity Shares (Previous year 520596
Equity Shares) of '%1000/- each fully paid up
5,205.96 5,205.96

*(Out of above shares, 15,461 fully paid up shares allotted without payment being received in cash)

NOTE - 2.1 : Details of Shareholders FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
holding more than 5% Shares: 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
No. of No. of
Shares Held % of Holding Shares Held % of Holding
Hon'ble President of India 520,596 100% 520,596 100%
(T in Lakh)
NOTE - 2.2 : Details of number of shares FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
outstanding during the year 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Number of Number of
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 520,596 5,205.96 520,596 5,205.96
Shares Issued during the year - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 520,596 5,205.96 520,596 5,205.96

NOTE -2.3 : Share held by promoters at the end of the year I

]

I FIGUREs AS ON 31-03-2022

FIGURES AS ON 31-03-2023 % Change
during the
S No |Promotor Name ’ No of Share ’ % of total Shares No of Share % of total Shares year
1{Hon'ble President of India | 520,596 | 100 | 520,596 | 100 -
Total | 520,596 | 100 | 520,596 | 100 -

W




(% in Lakh)

FIGURES AS ON
31.03.2022

FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - 3 : RESERVES & SURPLUS } ) [ f , RE

L 31.03.2023
Capital Reserves
As per the last Balance Sheet 1,026.28 1,026.28
Addition during the year - B
Less : Adjusted During the year (Depreciation) 0.11 -
Total (A) 1,026.17 1,026.28
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
As per the last Balance Sheet (2,664.37) (3,475.03)
Add/Less:- Profit/(Loss) during the year 1,498.92 802.97
less : Adjustment during the year (Depreciation) - {8.63)
Share of Additions in Capital Reserves in Subsidiary Co. - -
Share of Dep. In Capital Grant in Subsidiary Company (0.82) (0.94)
Share of Fair Price Shop Profit in Subsidiary Company 0.01 -
Total (B) (1,166.26) {2,664.37)
Minority Interest
As per the last Balance Sheet (1,220.71) (1,654.25)
Face Value of Shares held by Minority - -
Add/Less:- Profit/(Loss) during the year 451.94 434,16
Minority Share of Additions in Capital Reserves - -
Minority Share of Dep. in Capital Grant {0.54) {0.62)
Minority Share in Fair Price Shop Profit - -
Total (C) (769.31) (1,220.71)
Surplus with Fair Price Shop - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) (909.40) (2,858.80)

(i) The Minority Interest comprises of 4,000 shares of 21,000/~ each fully paid and issued to the Rajasthan Govt. against their Royalty Rights in
terms of V.T.Krishnamachari Award and form the part of opening Minority Interest.

(ii) The whole amount of Surplus with fair price shop is related to the separate entity which is operated by the Subsidiary for the benefit of its
employees.

C-ZinLakh)
NOTE - 4 : LONG TERM BORROWINGS | f I ] J f FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ONT
i 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
UN-SECURED
Loans from Govt. of India, Ministry of Heavy Industry - 1,241.29
- 1,241.29
Loan from Government of India and Interest accrued and due on loans are subject to reconciliations and necessary adjustments.
NOTE - 4.1 : DETAILS OF GOVERNMENT LOAN (PAYABLE IN & YEARLY INSTALLMENT)
— | f FinLlakn
| } NORMAL RATE OF | PENAL RATE OF
S.NO.}PARTICULARS OF LOAN AMOUNT  C.y. PY. ; ! ; | INTEREST (%) | INTEREST ()
1| 2005.06 15000 15000 | } f | ] { 1150 14‘25?
2| 2005-06,2008-09 2009-10 2013.14 678,50 67850 | | | | | | 1250 | 15.25
3 | 2006.07 37.79 37.79 | ] | | | | 15.50 | 18.25 |
4 | 201415 7500 75.00 l | | | | 13.50 ] 16.00
5 | 201617 30000 30000 | | I | | 1150 14.00
| Total 124129 124129 | | | f | ]
l Less: Overdue Current Maturities  1241.29 1181.29 l f f { [ ’ f |
{ Balance Long Term Debts Nil 60.00 ! I f f ‘ f f j
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(% in Lakh)

NOTE - 5 : OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

FIGURES AS ON

"FIGURES AS ON

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 =
Security Deposits 74.13 102.62
Other Liabilities 0.68 0.72
Dues Payable to Govt. Departments - -
Total 74.81 103.35
(‘% _inLakh)
NOTE - 6 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
FORDCRG
Balance at the beginning of the year 196.18 245.62
Add: Provision for the year 39.24 36.99
Less: Adjustment during the year - -
Less: Payment during the year 114.23 86.43
Total (A) 121.19 196.18
For Encashment of leave
Balance at the beginning of the year 211.85 206.30
Add: Provision for the year 72.64 46.78
Less: Payments/Adjustments during the year 27.90 41.23
Total (B) 256.59 211.85
For Wastage of Stock of Salt
Balance at the beginning of the year 60.71 72.81
Add: Provision for the year 213.00 176.95
273.71 249.76
Less: Wastage on Final Clearance of heaps during the year 113.08 189.05
Less: Excess Provision Written Back - -
160.63 60.71
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per Contra 160.63 60.71
Total (C) - -
For Wastage of By-Product/Processed Salt
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.56 0.56
Add: Provision for the year - -
0.56 0.56
Less: Wastage on Final Clearance of heaps during the year - -
0.56 0.56
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per Contra 0.56 0.56_
Total {D) - .
Grand Total {A+B+C+D) 377.78 408.05

\%




(T in Lakh)

|NOTE -7 : SHORT TERM BORROWING

IIIGURES AS ON f FIGURES AS ON

| | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 N

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts

Loan from Govt of India {(Including overdue amount) 1,241.29

Total 1,241.29 -
{ %In Lakn)

NOTE - 7.1 : AMOUNT AND PERIODS OF DEFAULTS
In case of Continuing default as on the balance sheet
Date in repayment of loans and interest with respect to above
1. Period of Default 1to 16 Years
2. Amount of Default 1,241.29

loan from Govt of India and interest accured and due on loans subject to confirmation and reconciliation

NOTE -7.2 : DETAILS OF GOVERNMENT LOAN (PAYABLE IN 5 YEARLY INSTALLMENT)

NORMAL RATE OF | PENAL RATE OF
S.NO.|PARTICULARS OF LOAN AMOUNT cy. P.Y. INTEREST (%) INTEREST (%)
1 |2005-06 150.00 15000 | ! | I 11.50 | 14.25
f | ! |

2| 2005.06,2008-09 2009-16 2013.14 678.50 678.50 | | 12.50 ] 15.25
| 3 |2006.07 37.79 37.79 | ] 15.50 ] 18.25 |

4 | 201415 75.00 75.00 13.50 16.00

5 | 201617 300.00 300.00 11.50 14.00

Total 1241.29 1241.29

i . |

| Less: Long Term Borrowing Nil Nil | ! i

| | —

L | Balance Overdue/Current Maturities1241.29  1241.29 | | ‘!
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{ (% in Lakh)
1GU. [0 G
]NOTE - 8 : TRADE PAYABLES { { ] ; [ FIGURES AS ON f FIGURES AS ON
31.03.2023 |  31.03.2022
Sundry Creditors for Goods Supplied 157.97 438.42
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 331.83 221.38
Sundry Creditors for Others 210.31 188.47
Total 700.11 848.27
Trade Payable ageing schedules 2022-2023
(¥ in Lakh)
S No Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less
than1 2-3
Not Due| year |[1-2Years| Years More then 3 Years Total
1 |MSME 101.26 - - - - 101.26
2 |Others 351.78) 16.35 12.00 12.27 206.44 598.85
3 |Disputed Dues MSME - - - - -
4 [Disputed Dues :-Others f - - - f f ~j

Trade Payable ageing schedules 2021-2022

e

—
{4 [Disputed Others ; -] - 69.24 | 69.24
* In absence ol any intimation from the vendor With regard 1o their registration {Filing ol memorandom UnRder The Micro, small and Méntam
enterprises development act 2006” and considering the company has been extended credit period by the its creditors and payment being release

on a timely basis.there is no liablity towards interest on delayed payment during the yeae under the said act. thereis no outstaning interest in
this regatd brought forward from previous years.

T T i

|

(‘% in Lakh)
ENO | Particulars | | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less
than1 2-3
Not Due | year [1-2 Years| Years More then 3 Years Total
1 |MSME 89.71 - - - - 89,71
2 |Others 393.24 6.23 20.35 9.18 260.31 689.32
f }
ts Disputed Dues MSME | | - - - - -
; { | | | | |
1 T 1
i i

(Z in Lakh)
.0 FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON
BOTE 9 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES ’ I ' , I 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Interest Accrued and Due on Borrowing
Interest due on Loan from Govt of India 2,695.26
OD ~SBI a.c No.41790090894 2,708.95
Advance receipts for the portion for which value is still to
be given 350 .06 201.23
Dues Payable to Govt. Departments 44,19 8.01
Unspent Grnat in Aid for Swatch Bharat - -
Other Pavable
Liabilities for Expenses 39.52 76.27
Statutory Liabilities 42.19 105.96
Other Liabilities
Security Deposits 199.07 204.42
Others 4.60 26.99
Total 3,388.58 3,318.14
( Zin Lakh)
] fo I I | ! ? FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON‘]
BOTE - 10 : Short Term Provision | S | { ; 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022
Provision for Income Tax 303.00 20.50
Provision for Interest (GO 65.32 -
Provision for CSR Exp 12.14 -
Total 380.46 20.50
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Note 11.1 Capital work in progress (CWIP)
CWIP ageing schedules 2022-23
{_ Tin Lakh)
S No Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
Less More
CwIP than 1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years |then 3| Total
year Years
1 Project in progress 207.72 2.60 4.47 | 11.72 1 226.51
9 Projects temporaily ) . ) ) )

suspended

for capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its

cost compared

pletion Schedule shall be given

to its original plan following CWIP Com

S No Particulars To be completed in
Less More
CwWIP than 1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years |then 3| Total
year Years
1 Projects 1 - - - - -
2 Projects 2 - - - - -
Capital work in progress (CWIP)
CWIP ageing schedules 2021-22
( %in Lakh)
S No Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
Less More
cwiIp than 1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years |then 3| Total
year Years
1 Project in progress 2.76 4.47 10.56 4.92 22.71
Projects temporaily
2 - - - - -
suspended

for capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its
g CWIP Completion Schedule shall be given

to its original plan followin

cost compared

S No Particulars To be completed in
Less More
Cwip than 1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | then 3| Total
year Years
1 Projects 1 - - - - -
2 Projects 2 - - - - -
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(" Zin Lakh)

NOTE - 12 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Other Loans and Advances
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good (Refer Note 12.1) 201.62 201.62
Doubtful - N
Less: Provision for doubtful Loans and Advances - -
Total 201.62 201.62
("% in Lakh)
[NOTE - 12.1: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES E gﬁ;’:ggz‘gs ox II g‘fgggz‘gs onN ;
Amount Against Lease Rent to RLY A/c 2.73 2.73
Adv to M/s Guj. Techno Pvt. Ltd 198.89 198.89
Total 201.62 201.62
{ Tin Lakh)
NOTE - 13 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS e As oN FIGURTS A% ON
Security Deposits
Secured, considered gooéi - -
Unsecured, considered good 166.23 164.93
Doubtful - -
Less: Provision for doubtful Loans and Advances - -
Deferred Revenue Expenditure (to the extent niot written off)
Other Expenditure 173.79 29.43
Project Expenditure 1.24 80.84
Project expenditure pending allocation/Capitalisation - -
Total 341.27 275.20
(¥ inlLakh)
NOTE - 14 : INVENTORIES FIC:;;R;S;BSZ;N FIG;Jll‘tgss. ;:zgf

(As taken valued & certified by the Management)

STOCK & STORES (At Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is less

a. Raw Material

b. Work In Progress 529.17 433.84
Less : Provision for wastage - -
Total 529.17 433.84
c. Finished Goods (Refer Note No 14.1) 1,078.57 777.10
d. Stock in trade
e. Stores, stationary & Spare Parts 84.22 125.44
f. Loose T'ools {at depreiated value } 0.56 U.56
g. Others - -
1. Release Material 10.30 10.30
2. Packing Material - -
3. Assets Scrap 0.13
Total 1,702.95 1,347.24

\1a



( % in iLakh)

FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - 14.1 : INVENTORIES 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 7

Stock in Trade {At cost or Net Relisable value whichever is less |
a. Bromine (At Cost) - B
Less: Provision for wastage - -

Total (A) - -
b. Salt 1,138.08 672.03
Less : Provision for Wastage 160.63 60.69
Adj of Unrealised Profit in Closing Stock - -
Total (B} 977.45 611.34
c. Processed Salt 101.39 166.03
Less: Provision for Wastage 0.28 0.28
Total {C) 101.11 165.75
d. Bye-Product MGCL 0.28 0.28
Less: Provision for Wastage 0.28 0.28
Total (D) - -
€. Work In Progress - -
Less : Provision for wastage - -
Total (E} - -
I. Stock of Fair Price Shop 0.01 0.01
Less : Provision - -
Total {F} 0.01 0.01
Tota] (A+B+C+D+E+F) 1,078.57 777.10

(i) Release Material includes stores, spares and other fixed assets which are no longer usable and are released/scraped in respective vears and transferred 1o
release material at book value. During the year Assets Scraps having book value of Nil are transferred to Release Material in Hand. Sale Proceeds of disposal of
release material are shown as sale of scraps under the head other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, its also includes a sum of '20.03 lakhs
{previous year "0.03 lakh) being the estimated realisable value in respect of unserviceable material/Scrap lying in stores at Kharaghoda as the book value of
these items are not ascertainable. The necessary adjustment will be made as and when these items are disposed off/utilised.

(i} Physical Verification of General Stores, materials at site, released materials was carried out during the year.

(iii) No provision for losses, if any, on the slow moving items laying in General Store has been made in the books and the same was shown in the inventory
(Amount undetermined). In the opinion of the management the current value of slow moving item is more than the value taken.

(iv) In Subsidiary :No provision for losses if any on the slow moving items amounting to "¥17.71 lakhs (previous year '214.84 lakhs) lying in General Store has
been made in the books and the same was shown in the Inventories at cost. In the opinion of management the current value of siow moving items is more than
the value taken.

( ZinlLakh)

NOTE - 15 : TRADE RECEIVABLES FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

a. Secured, Considered Good 7.42 43.81
b. Unsecured, Considered Good - 22.00
c. Doubtful - 25.07
7.42 92.88
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts - 2507
Total 7.42 67.81

During the year the Company has adjusted the amount ol old Tecevables amounting to I.NIL Takhs {Previous Year NIL lakhs) against the provision, as these
amount could not recovered in spite of best efforts in the opinion of the management of the company.

Trade Recelvables ageing schedules 2022-2023

( ZinlLakh)
S No Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less 6 23
Not Due than 6 {months-|1-2 Years Years More then 3 Years Total
Months | 1 Years
1 {Undisputed Trade Receivables
Consider Good 7.16 0.26 7.42
2 {Undisputed Trade R bi
Consider Doubtful - - - -
Less 6 23
Not Due than 6 |months-|1-2 Years More then 3 Years Total
Years
Months | 1 Years
1 |Disputed Trade Receivables
Consider Good -
2 Disputed Trade Receivables
Consider Doubtful
Trade Receivables ageing schedules 2021-2022
( ZinliLakh)
S No Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less 6 23
Not Due than 6 [months- 1-2 Years More then 3 Years Total
Years
Months | 1 Years
1 |Undisputed Trade Receivabl
Consider Good 28,20 5.89 3.82 71.76 21.14 67.81
2 |Undisputed Trade Receivabl
Consider Doubtful - - - - 25.07 25.07
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(Xin Lakh)

NOTE - 16 : Cash & Cash Equivalents

FIGURES AS ON

FIGURES AS ON

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Balance with Bank:-

Balance in Current Account 192.83 110.08
Balance in Term Deposits* 3,826.62 453.06
Cash on Hand 0.65 0.77

Cheque in Transit 41.05 -
Other Bank Balance :-FDR more then 12 month 667.73 2,890.10
Others (Securities of Staff, Contractors & Others) 70.27 14.31
Total 4,799.15 3,468.32

** FDRs of "23221 lakh pledged with SBI, Jaipur, Kharaghoda and Mandi {previous year '395.68 lakh with SBI) towards security for OD Loan.
FDR of '210.01 lakhs pledge with SBI, Sambhar (Previous vear 39.65 lakhs) and FDR of "3610.30 lakhs pledge with PNB(Previous year "I583.50

lakhs) towerds securities for OD Loans

NOTE - 17 : SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

FIGURES AS ON

FIGURES AS ON

s s " s o P
(Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for value to be received) 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Other
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good (Refer Note 17.1) 485.20 248.94
Doubtful 61.08 84.62
485.20 333.56
Less: Provision for doubtful Loans and Advances 61.08 84.62
Total 485.20 248.94
(" Zin Lakh)
NOTE - 17.1 : Other Loans & Advance FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON
{Unsecured, Considered good) 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Others
Advance to Staff 4.55 .46
Deposit with Govt. Semi Govt. Bodies 0.53
Income Tax Deducted at Source (C.Y.} 22,52 38.53
Income Tax Deducted at Source {P.Y.) 34.39 19.52
TCS 2022-23 0.20 0.03
Receivable TDS on GST 0.33
Receivable TDS on 194 O 0.33
TDS Receivable on hire charges on company land 51.85
TDS receivable on rent on P&M 58.75
TDS receivable on sale of Bromine 1.11
Security Deposit - -
Advance Income Tax 21-22 125.00 10.00
Others 186.17 264.49
Total 485.20 333.56
{ in Lakhy
NOTE - 18 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Prepaid Expenses 41.05 7.29
Interest Accrued on Term Deposits 122.80 43.41
Total 163.86 50.70
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2023

(" ¥ in Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
NOTE - 19 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Sale of Products (Refer Note No. 19.1) 7,435.65 6,603.01
TOTAL 7,435.65 6,603.01 -
{" Zin Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
NOTE - 19.1 : SALE OF PRODUCTS PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Common Salt
Indigenous 4,793.29 4.730.65
MGCL 123.54 165.03
Processed Salt
Indigenous - -
Bromine.# 1,657.61 1,432.03
De-Brominated Bittern - -
Operational Income From Salt refinery 2.50 -
Operational Income From Solar .- 342.71
Operational Income From Bromine Plant - 516.00 275.30
TOTAL 7,435.65 6,603.01
{'%in Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
NOTE - 20 : OTHER INCOME PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 . 202122 &

Interest income
Interest Received on FDR 264.60 100.76
Interest Received from Others 4.08 3.22

Qther non-operation income {Neg)

Excess Provision Written Back 2.42 .
Misc. Receipts 59.75 188.91
Rental Income from Plant & Machinery - -
Facility Charges 0.23 1.29
General Store (Goods) . 1.42
Rent Received 3.89 3.90
Land Licence Fees 1.57 0.65
Ground Rent receipt & salt heap 13.23
Sundry Cr. Balance Written Off 328.19 74.00
Tender Cost receipts 0.20 0.40
Packing & Forwarding - 0.04
Profit on Sale of Assets - 12.32
Penelty receipt on sale of scrap throu MSTC 0.06
Penalty Received on Encrochment 3.45 0.52
Recovery on Account of Electricity and Power 40.48 17.68
Wastages on Final Clearance of heaps Written Back 113.08 189.05
Sale of Scraps/Released Material and profit on assets 34.96 0.10

TOTAL 870.19 594.34

(i} In Subsidiary : Other income/adjustment includes .NIL on account of penalty & forfeiture of Security
Deposit , T.NIL on account of sale of scrap, assets and released material , 2.53.65 Lakhs on aj/c of
Receipt from Tourism Activities,? NIL on a/c of Faciliation Fee (previous years ¥14.88 lakhs and ¥155.10
lakhs,¥14.98 Lakhs & "% NIL respectively).

(i) In Subsidiary : Other receipts (Includes Sales,Transfer and adjustment of Fixed assets,
Surplus,Unserviceable and dead stock articles etc.

b



(" ¥in Lakh)

FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF FIGURES AS AT
NOTE - 21 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED CURRENT THE END OF
REPORTING PREVIOUS
PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 ° 2021-22
Manufacturing Expenses
Manufacture & Excavation Expenses of Salt 948.03 524.12
Manufacture of Bromine 1,629.37 645,94
Manufacture of Processed Salt including iodisation 23.04 9.24
Manufacture of Rock Salt - . 36.89
Manufacture of Refined Salt -GSR 31.86 167 33
Manufacture of Refined Salt -NSR 196.96
Compensation & Land Revenue - 1.32
Manufacture of MGCL 119.50 92.65
Purchases of Black Salt Powder 1.94 2.78
Purchases of Common Salt 30.64
Purchases of Refined Salt 39.43 88.47
Purchases of Refined Salt-NSR 37.38
Repair to Machinery - 2.16
Lease Rent 5.50 5.50
Electricity & Power Charges 263.08 254.56
Running & Mtc of Loco and Diesel Shunter 50.10 28.00
TOTAL 3,376.83 1,858.96
(% in Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF FIGURES AS AT
NOTE - 22 : CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF CURRENT THE END OF
FINISHED GOODS & W.I.P REPORTING PREVIOUS
PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Opening Stock
Salt
Common Salt 672.03 925.05
Processed Salt 166.03 173.86
Bye-Products 0.28 0.28
Bromine - -
MGCL -
Work-in-Progress 433.84 330.76
. Total 1,272.18 1,429,95
Closing Stock
Salt
Common Salt 1,138.08 672.03
Processed Salt 101.39 166.03
By Product 0.28 0.28
MGCL , -
Bromine -
Work In Progress 529,17 433.84
Total 1,768.92 1,272.18
Grand Total (496.74) 157.77
Finished Goods (401.41) 260.85
works in progress (95.33) {103.08)
Stock in Trade - -

Value of closing stock arrived of after adjusting the amount of stock of salt written off at

kharaghoda & ramnagar

AR



(% in Lakh)

FIGURES AS AT

THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
NOTE - 23 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
) 2022-2023 2021-22
Salaries, Allowances & Other Benefits
Salaries & Allowances 826.51 628.05
Death Cum Retirement Gratuity 45.45 59.72
Employer's Contribution (PF & DLI) 118.22 110.06
Group Gratuity Insurance Premium 77.75 13.05
Bonus 22.65 25.52
Staff Welfare Expenses 7.65 13.41
Workman Compensation 0.03 0.04 -
Other Expenses 19.20 -
TOTAL 1,117.46 . 849.85
(" Tin Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT
NOTE - 24 : FINANCE COSTS THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 - 2021-22 “
Interest To Government of India 239.43 370.54
Interest To Bank 1.81 0.17
Interest To Others 0.01 0.02
TOTAL 241.25 270.73
(‘% in Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
NOTE - 25 : OTHER EXPENSES PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Administrative Expenses (Refer Note No. 25.1} 476.21 476.29
Auditors Expenses (Refer Note No.25 2) 4.33 3.88
Township Expenses and Other Social Overheads
{Refer Note No. 25.3) 163.53 69.76
Selling & Distribution Expenses (Refer Note No. 25.4) 201.63 316.10,
Legal and Profession Exp. (Refer Note No. 25.5) 27.81 0.68
Amounts/Stores Written Off (Net) 122,11 14.52
Income Tax 7.75 79.36
Penalty on JCB Tax - 0.02
Provision & wastage
{Refer Note No. 25.5) 213.00 176.95
General Stores Written Off 3.04 -
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts and Advances 74.83
Penalties/Fine Including demurrage, Demand on TDS -
Research & Development 15.54 9.97
Renewal of gun License 0.11
TOTAL 1,309.89 1,147.54

g



{2 in Lakh)

FIGURES AS AT

THE END OF FIGURES AS AT
NOTE - 25.1 : ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES CURRENT THE END OF
REPORTING PREVIOUS
PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 8.23 6.40
Printing and stationery 3.67
Postage Telegram & Telephones 7.48 5.44
Rent Expenses 7.08 6.20
Rates & Taxes 3.63 3.78
Entertainment and Business Promotion 1.06
Insurance Charges 3.77 6.63
Guest House Expenses/Circuit House 8.37 4.50
T.A. to Directors 8.02 2,72
Office Expenses/OEM 26.56 50.76
Running & Mtc. of Vehicle 8.55 8.41
Medical Insurance 4.23
Repair & Maintenance of Buildings 36.66 37.44
Repair & Maintenance of Plant & Machinery 151.85 164.73
Maintenance of P. Way 74.82 86.96
Amount weritten off
Other Repairs 122.23 92.32
TOTAL 476.21 476.29
FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF FIGURES AS AT
NOTE - 25.2 : AUDITORS EXPENSES CURRENT THE END OF
REPORTING PREVIOUS
PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Payment 1o Auditor
As Audit Fee 3.06 2.35
As Tax audit fee 0.38 0.30
As TA/DA Expenses 0.54 0.89
As Other Capacity 0.35 0.35
TOTAL 4.33 3.88
{'% in Lakh)

FIGURES AS AT

THE END OF FIGURES AS AT
NOTE - 25.3 : TOWNSHIP EXP AND OTHER SOCIAL CURRENT THE END OF
OVERHEADS REPORTING PREVIOUS
PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Township Expenses
Maintenance of Building/Roads 29.30 23.54
Sanitation o 14.55 10.41
Accomodation Exp. 23.70
Water Supply 10.53 12.79
Mte. Of Electricity 1.35 0.35
Depreciation 0.03 0.03
Total (A) 79.46 47.12
Less: Receipts
House Rent 15.41 12.10
Ground Rent - 2.49
Water Supply 0.93 0.60
Total (B) 16.34 15.19
Other Social Overheads
Salaries & Allowance of Hospital Staff 68.82 27.79
Reim. Of Medical Exp. And Cost of Medicines & Medical
contingencies 20.13 10.78
Depreciation 0.08 0.09
CSR Exp. 12.14
Others 0.31 0.08
Less: Hospital Receipts 1.07 0.91
Total (C) 100.41 37.83
Total {A-B+C) 163.53 69.76
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(‘% in Lakh)

FIGURES AS AT

THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
NOTE - 25.4 : SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Packing & Forwarding/Dispatch Charges 125.57 156.87.
Loading and unloading 0.11
Advertisement & Publicity 6.84 1.96
Discount & Commission 67.53 156.17
Other Expenses 0.31 1.10
Business Promotion 1.27
TOTAL 201.63 316.10°

FIGURES AS AT

THE END OF
CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
NOTE - 25.5 : LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL CHARGES PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22
Legal Exp. 26.63
Other Payment to Trust Auditor 0.07 -
As GST Audit Fees 0.12 0.12
Internal Auditor Remuneration
As Audit Fee 0.36 0.46
As TA/DA Expenses ] - 0.10
Forensic audit 0.63
27.81 0.68 |
(‘% in Lakh)
FIGURES AS AT
THE END OF
NOTE - 25.6 : PROVISIONS & WASTAGES CURRENT FIGURES AS AT THE
REPORTING END OF PREVIOUS
PERIOD REPORTING PERIOD
2022-2023 2021-22 .~
For Wastages on Stock of Salt
Normal Provision on Salt Stock Required 160.62 60.70
Add: Wastages determined on clearance of heaps 113.08 189.05
Add: Excess Provision found on Final clearance of Heap - -
273.70 249.75
Less: Opening Balance 60.70 72.80
213.00 176.95

In Subsidiary : Wastages of 15427.499 MT salt valueing ¥ 113.08 lakh found during the year has been

adjusted subject to investigation/approval of Appropriate Authority.
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(" in Lakh)

NOTE- 26 : PRIOR PERIOD
INCOME/(EXPENSES)/ADJUSTMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

FOR THE YEAR 2021-22

RECEIPTS | EXPENSES

RECEIPTS | EXPENSES

Manufacture & excavation charges
Salaries, Allowance & Other benefits
Administrative Expenses

Excess Provision Written Back on Final Clearance
of heap

Excess provision written back
Township & other Social Overheads
Selling & Distribution Exp.

Other Expenses/Adjustment
(Including for deficit of Salt)

Rent Received

Payment to Auditors

income tax

Receipt for salt from service contractor
Dpreciation less charged in Prev. year
Misc. Income/ Adjustment

Sales

Interest on TDR

Excess Interest Charge on Govt Loan in Earlier
Years Written Back

NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE
Less: Share of Common HO Expenses as
apportioned to Sambhar Salts Limited

NET RECEIPTS/(EXPENESES)

0.06
0.91
0.34

0.03
0.34

0.01
6.14
0.02

0.11
0.97
2.63

0.04 -

0.01 0.05
- 2.41

3.55 9.12

0.01 -

58.29 -

0.01 -

5.25 11.95

64.82 4.12

5.25 11.95

- (6.71)

64.82 4,12

- 60.70

NOTE - 27 : EARNINGS PRICE PER SHARE

FOR THE YEAR
2022-23

FOR THE YEAR

2021-22

Profit (+) / Loss (-) as per statement of
Profit & Loss (without minority interest)
usual as the Numerator (" ¥ in Lakh)

Weighted Average Number of Share
Basic Number of Shares
Diluted Number of Shares

Face value as per Equity Share
Earnings per equity share:

Basic EPS (in ¥ )

Diluted EPS (in ¥ ')

1,950.86

520,596

520,596

1,000

374.73
374.73

1,237.13

520,596

520,596

1,000

237.64
237.64
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NOTE NO. 29:- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS TO THE

EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR

A Contingent Liabilities

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

Claim of Gujarat Electricity Board for Z. 21.13 lakhs (excluding interest if
any) (Previous year Z. 21.13 lakhs) being subjudice.

Claim of N.E. Railway towards differential License Fee of Railway land at
Ramnagar Unit . 32.74 lakhs and interest if any (Previous year X. 32.74
lakhs) pending decision of the court case.

In respect of Agricultural and Non-agricultural assessment demand for X
85.64 lakhs (plus interest if any) raised by Taluka Vikas Adhikari, Patri
(Gujarat). The matter is under dispute and the Company did not received
any demand thereafter. However, subsequently demand for . 5.51 lakhs
(plus interest if any ) was raised for which the stay was obtained from the
Hon'ble High Court, Gujarat. The Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat has since
disposed of the case and directed to form a high power Committee
consisting of representatives of State & Central Govt. The dispute is still
pending with High Power Committee Now the Taluka Vikas Adhikari,
Patri has revised the claim of ¥272.80 lakhs (plus interest) (previous year
Z. 272.80 lakhs (plus interest).

Other claims lodged but not acknowledged as debt by the Company <
35.16 lakhs plus interest if any (Previous year Z. 35.16 lakhs).

Other cases in which the Company is contingently liable (amounts not
ascertainable except as and where mentioned).

Liability if any, on account of Bank guarantee amounting to ¥ 16.40 lakhs
(Previous Year % 16.40 lakhs) issued by SBI Jaipur in favour of Regional
Control of Mines, Indian Bureau of Mines. In subsidiary Bank Guarantee
amounting to ¥ 3.65 Lakh (Previous Year ¥ 3.65 Lakh ) issue by SBI
Jaipur in favour of Kota Super Thermal Power Station.

Physical verification of fixed assets and stores items along with stock
audit has been conducted by outsource agency.

(viii) Other cases in which the Company is contingently liable (amounts not

ascertainable except as and where mentioned).
(i) Claims on account of labour/service/land and other matters for the
suits pending in different Courts —amount indeterminate.
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(ix) Liability for award given by Arbitrator on 14t July 2018 of ¥ 90.10 Lakh

(Including Interest, Cost of Arbitration and watch & ward expenses of ¥
24.96 Lakh) for the office building at Sitapura Jaipur as the matter is sub

judice before honorable High Court of Rajasthan Hon’ble high court has

issued order for stay in the matter subject to deposit of 50 % of the award
in the court. Company has made due compliance of the order of Hon’ble
High Court

(B) Capital Commitments

Amount on account of contract remaining to be executed on Capital
accounts 2. 567.60 lakhs (previous year 2. 668.12 lakhs) Estimated.

Liability on Account of equity participation with H.P. Government for
Solution Mining Cum Caustic Soda Project at Mandi amounting to
43.55 Lakh (Previous Year ¥ 43.55 Lakh).

NOTE NO. 30:- ADDITIONAL NOTES

(iv)

In lieu of issue of shares by the Company to the Government of India on
its formation, possession of assets at Kharaghoda and Mandi has been
acquired by the Company, pending finalisation of formal Agreement. No
agreement has been made so far in this regard.

The company operates the single line of business / product viz. Salt,
Solar and its related activities as such segment reporting is done on a
single segment basis.

The payment made to contractor/s Gujrat Technical Cell Pvt. Ltd. (For
Kharaghoda Refinery) of ¥ 198.89 Lakh has been shown under the note
No 13 as Loan and Advances of the Balance Sheet and matter is sub-
judice in MSME Commission

In the opinion of the management, current assets, loans and advances
are based on the realizable value in the ordinary course of business and
provision for all liability, except as otherwise stated has been provided.

The details of minority interest are as under :-
(X in Lakh)

Minority Interest Amount Amount
2022-23 2020-21

As per the last Balance Sheet (1220.71) (1654.25)

Face Value of Shares held by Minority | 1000 1000

(in %)

LSy



Add/Less:- Profit/(Loss) during the year | 451.94 434.16

Minority Share of Additions in Capital | - -
Reserves

Minority Share of Dep. in Capital Grant | (0.54) (0.62)

Minority Share in Fair Price Shop Profit

Total (769.31) (1220.71)

Name of the|Net Assets i.e total assets|Share in profit or loss
entity in the minus total liabilities

As % of | Amount As % of | Amount

consolidated consolidated

net assets profit or loss

1 2 3 4 5

Parent
Subsidiaries
Indian (-)17.91 (-) 769.34 23.17 451.94
Foreign - - - -
Minority
Interests in
all
Subsidiaries
Associates
Indian (-)17.91 () 769.34 23.17 451.94
Foreign - - - -
Join Ventures | - - - -
Indian - - - -
Foreign - - - -
Total (-)17.91 (-) 769.34 23.17 451.94

(vij  The immovable property including land stands transferred from Govt. of
Rajasthan to the Company, in succession, in terms of V.T.
Krishnamachari's Award under the provisions of Rajasthan Government
Grants Act, 1961 and the position stands communicated to the
Government of India.
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(vii)

(viii)

(xii)

(xiii)

In Subsidiary, No adjustments regarding Deferred Tax has been worked
out in view of unabsorbed deprecation and accumulated losses of earlier
years and also there is no reasonable certainty for sufficient future
taxable income. Therefore, based on prudence Deferred Tax Assets have
not been created.

In Subsidiary, during the year salt value of T 113.08 (P Y. ¥ 189.05 1akh)4
has been adjusted in books.

Government of India decided to provide Grant-in-Aid to the company
vide letter no. 19-09/2005-PE-V dt.01.02.2012 for disbursement of
pension. During the current year Company has received ¥ 84.70 lakhs
(Previous Year ¥ 200.00 Lakh) as grant-in-aid.

HSL-Kharaghoda had awarded a contract to M/s. Jai Overseas Private
Limited, Ahmedabad for Operation and Maintenance of Newly
Commissioned Plants and Existing Plants at the Cost of Bidder and Sale
of Product(s) Produced from Existing as well as New Plants & Salt
Refinery and Production, Sale and Expansion of all the Plants with
related activities at Hindustan Salts Limited, Kharaghoda from 15t Nov.-
2021. Party is doing production of Liquid Bromine, MGCL on behalf of
HSL at Bromine & MGCL Plant, Kharaghoda by utilization of HSL
resources under this contract. Accordingly, processing of Liquid
Bromine & MGCL has shown as per the accounting practices, hence, the
production of Liquid Bromine & MGCL may be considered as Liquid
Bromine & MGCL production of HSL-Kharaghoda unit and during the
year Company has started the received amount of ¥0.50 Lakh per month
for Salt Refinery from Nov 22.

During the year a sum of 20.04 Lakh towards excess liability booked in
earlier year written back and shown in Prior Period Adjustment Note No
21.

During the year in HSL % 252.83 Lakh has written off from the books of
accounts and shown in books as “Sundry Cr. Balance written off “. In
subsidiary company, during the year, old credit balances of amount
payable, purchases liability, unpaid liabilities, contractor deposits etc.
has write off amount of ¥ 75.36 lakhs (P.Y ¥ 44.77 lakhs).

The company has not held any immovable property whose title deeds are
not in the name of company.
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(xiv)

During the year Property, Plant & Equipment of the company not
revalued.

During the year company has not granted loan to promoters, Directors
KMPs and the related partied (as defied under Companies Act 2013)
either severally or jointly with any other person.

Company has not held intangible assets under development.

During the year no proceeding have been initiated or pending against
the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
transaction (Prohibition)Act 1988(45 of 1988) and the rules made
thereunder

(xviii) Creation of charge has registered in the register of charges for availed

(xix)

OD Limit of ¥ 2708.95 Lakh against Sanctioned limit of ¥2880.00 Lakh
from State Bank of India

During the year company has not declared willful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or other lender

During the year company has not made any transaction with companies
struck off under section 248 of the companies Act 2013 or section 560
of Companies Act 1956.

Company has not granted and received fund from any other person or
entity including foreign entities

Company has awarded a contract through open tender to M/s Bumi
MFB Geotech Pvt. Ltd., on 13™ May, 2021 wherein complete cost of Mine
Development and Operations including obtaining clearance from
statutory authorities will be borne by MDO Company. The revenue from
the sale of Rock Salt will be shared between HSL and Contractor in the
ratio of 25.37:74.63 post payment of royalty for Rock Salt Mining and for
Edible Salt the sharing shall be in the ratio of 35.37:64.63

(xxiii) Charge of single rate of Interest on the outstanding loan amount given to

SSL by the HSL
Hindustan Salts Limited (HSL) has given loan to the Sambhar Salts
Limited (SSL) on the different rates which varies from 12.50% to
19.50% as applicable on the date, the loan was given to SSL in previous
year it has been decided that only single rate of interest i.e.12.00% be
charged from 01.04.2021. The matter was approved by the Board.
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(xxiv) Land at Mandi were leased to HSL by Central Govt. on long term basis
from 01-05-1963 onwards. The said lease was revised time to time in
1983 and thereafter in 2003 up to year 2023. In the said lease deed, a
condition has been imposed in clause 3. Annexure whereby lease rent
for land and assignment
HSL. The said lease rent and assignment fee have not been paid by HSL
from 1 Jan 2003 onwards hence a notice has been received from Salt
Commissioner Office in this regard. On the basis of show cause notice,
an amount of T. 64521 /-(Assignment Fees of 2. 48546 & Ground Rent of

%.15975/-) Paid to Salt Commissioner in financial year 2022-23.

(xxv) The company is having the land as per detail below :-

fee had to be paid to salt commissioner by

(. in Lakhs)

JAIPUR KHARAGHODA MANDI RAMNAGAR
AREA [VALUE| AREA | VALUE AREA |VALUE|| AREA |VALUE
1. Free - - 23596 702.75 | 37.92 - -
Hold Land Acres 24.54 Sq. Mtr
2. Leased | 2048 | 5.53 - - 133.116 - 4712.61 -
Hold Land |Sq. Mtr. Acres Sq. Mtr
(On licence Fee)

Further there is no encroachment in Run area in Kharaghoda unit (Gujarat),
Mandi (H.P.) and Ram Nagar (Uttarakhand).

Inspite of action for eviction of unauthorized encroachment taken by the
subsidiary company i.e. SSL the encroach land i.e. 424.80 acres is still under
encroachment. The value of encroach land cannot be ascertain as the land
has been given by Govt of India on lease basis for 99 years. As per
V.T.Krishnaachari award dated 29.04.1961. Company has not executed the
lease deed with the Govt. of Rajasthan so far. The details of land are as

under:-
S.No. | Description Land Area

A Lease Land 57600 Acres (90 SQ. Miles)

B Disputed with Govt of | 2648 Acres
Rajasthan

C Encroached Area 424.80 Acres

D Free hold land 660.35 Acres

E Disputed Area 58.24 Acres

(i} Rawan Tiba / | 16.41 Acres (Case is pending with Court)
Sambhar Lake
(ii). Beg Shed Sambhar Lake | 18.12 Acres (Case with railway Jodhpur
{iii). Sahidpur Gudha Salt 23.71 Acres pending for correction in Nawa
court)
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58.24 acres of land which is disputed in other name but possession with
company. Out of 2648 Acres of land, 292 Acres of land was allotted to
the other parties by Govt. of Rajasthan. The value of land assessed by
M/s Protocol Valuer Pvt Ltd, Assets Valuers as on 31-03-2021 is %
3756.02 Crore in case of lease land and ¥ 504.38 Crore in case of free
hold land.

(xxvi) The balance of Trade Receivable, Trade Payable, Loans and Advances,
Salt Department and Other Government Departments are subject
to confirmation and reconciliation if any. Loan from Government
of India and Interest accrued and due on loans subject to
confirmation and reconciliations and no payment against loan
along with the interest was made since 2005 except ¥ 12.21 Lakh
paid in 2009.

In Current year company has paid ¥ 28.69 crore for the interest
upto 31-12-2022.

(xxvii) An amount related to Capital Reserve of ¥ 0.11 Lakh related to
Kharaghoda unit has written off and adjusted in depreciation.

(xxviii) There were receivable amounts which were due to be received since
long, however, despite persistence grave efforts, no amount was
recovered and few parties are not traceable. Further, some of the
retired employees from which amount is to be recovered has
shifted from their last known address and now no information is
available to contact them. Meanwhile, company has written off the
amount of ¥39.08 lakh, however, the management is continuing
the efforts to recover the amount. If the amount is received in
future, then it will be considered as income for that respective year.

(xxix) In subsidiary company during the year, old debit balances of Store
purchase advances, Misc Advances, debtor of salt etc. has write off
amount of ¥ 3.04 lakhs (P.Y 2.1.21 lakhs)

(xxx)  In subsidiary company during the year, Project expenses amount
of 2.79.71 lakhs and Pre fabricated office (CWIP) % 3.32 lakhs has
write off ( P.Y. % NIL)

(xxxi) In subsidiary company, During the year provisions has made for

Provision for doubtful debts 2. 13.75 lakhs for 15 parties (P.Y. 2
NIL).
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(xxxii) In subsidiary company, Provision for doubtful advances amount of

2.61.08 lakhs (SPA-Pandian Engineering %.47.22 lakhs and
Electricity charges Recoverable from m/s Chandra Entrepreneur
pvt 1td. 2.13.87 lakhs) (P.Y.NIL)

(xxxiii) In subsidiary company Provision has made for accommodation

amount of 2. 23.70 lakhs (P.YZ.NIL)

(xxxiv) Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged

wherever considered necessary to make these comparable with
current year's figures.

(xxxv) Figures are rounded off to lakhs of rupees with two decimal places.
(xxxvi) Details of significant accounting ratio are mentioned below: -

S.No. | Ratio Formula As on | As on | Diff. Remarks
31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022
1 Current Current 1.21 1.24 0.81 Due to Loan
Ratio Assets from GOI
/Current regrouped.
Liability
2 Debt Equity | Total 0.44 0.53 -16.98 | Due to
Ratio Liability payment of
/Shareholder interest to
Equity GOI
3 Debt Earning 11.91 6.88 73.11 | Due to
Service available for increase in
Coverage debt service sales and
Ratio / Debt decrease in
Service interest
4 Return on PAT / 0.76 0.72 5.56 | Due to
Equity Shareholder increase in
Ratio Equity profit &
shareholder
Equity
5 Inventory Revenue 4.88 4.64 5.17 | Dueto
Turnover from increase in
Ratio operation / turnover
Average
Inventory
6 Trade Net Credit 0 1.17 100
Receivables | Salts /Av.
Turnover Receivable
Ratio
7 Trade Net Credit 0 1.66 100 | Dueto
Payable Purchase increase in
Turnover /Av. Payable Credit
Ratio purchase
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8 Net Capital | Revenue 6.08 -9.26 -165.77 | Due to
Turnover from increase in
Ratio operation/Av profit and
. Working average
capital working
capital
9 Net  Profit | PAT/revenue 0.26 0.19 36.84 | Due to
Ratio from increase in
operation profit
10 Return on | (PBIT/Capita 0.62 0.43 44.19 | Dueto
Capital I Employed) increase in
Employed profit and
capital
employed
11 Return on | Income from 0 0 0 -
Investment | investment/
weighted
average
investment
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
{Vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Naresh Kumar) (Cmde. Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Company Secretary GGM (F&A) Director Chairman and Managing Director

DIN-10043608

DIN-08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For R K Malpani & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002759C

(Rakesh Jhalani)
Place : Jaipur Partner
Dated : 17-08-2023 Membership No. 074142
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDM",:;\['\(“)IT:
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON T'HE FIN YED x{
STATEMENTS OF HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED -
MARCH 2023

, o -1ts Limited in accordance with
The preparation of financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited in 5y
ct) is the
B : s anies Act, 2013 (Act) 15
the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companics Ac .
. inted by the
T - . S S ; itor appointed DY
responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Aud pp

. : 29 (5) of the Act is responsible for
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act Is 1€Sp

P - : > i 3 of the Act based on
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 o

s : : S iti ascribed under section
independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing presc

i i /ise it Report
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Rep

: : it Re ate st 2023.
dated 26 September 2023 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 16 Augus

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 under section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried
out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and company personnel and a selective

examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revisions made in the statutory auditor’s report to give effect to two of
my audit observations raised during supplementary audit, I have no further comments to offer

upon or supplement to the statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(S. Ahuadim

Principal Director of Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi

e 13007 2008
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Revised Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Hindustan Salts Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
has carried out supplementary audit of your Company pursuant to the
Provisions of Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Comptroller &
Auditor General have issued provisional comments on Independent Auditor’s
Report. On considering the comments, we are hereby issuing Revised
Independent Auditors Report on Standalone Financial Statements; hence we
are replacing our original report which was issued on 16.08.2023

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Hindustan
Salts Limited (“The Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as
at 31 March 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information hereinafter referred to as "the Standalone Financial
Statements”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statement
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the
manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their standalone state of
affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2023, its standalone profit and its
stfandalone cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We draw attention, towards matters specified in Annexure-A on the basis of which
we are expressing qualified opinion over the standalone financial statements.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl) together with ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
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under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Para 1.10 (i) of Note No. 1 and Note No.6 to the
financial statement regarding Retirement Benefits (Gratuity), which states
that liability for gratuity was depicted as on 31.03.2023 for 18.27 lakh in the
books, but no Investment was made as required under AS-15.

In the case of confirmed labour provision for gratuity has been made on the basis
of length of service and wages payable but not on the basis of actuarial
valuation as required in terms of AS-15.

2. Attention is also invited to Note no. 30 "Contingent Liabilities and
Capital Commitments to the extent not provided for", wherein liabilities for
substantial amount which -may materially affect the financial statements of
the company, on various accounts have not been provided for.

3. We draw attention to the Note No. 12 "Non-Current Investments" wherein
no provision for loss has been made in respect of the investment of Rs. 60.00
lacs made in subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Ltd. in the books of accounts
in view of much higher net worth of the subsidiary company calculated on
the basis of the market value of fixed assets which was last assessed by the
Certified Assets Value in the year 2001.

4. There is a Pending Litigation going on between the company & Railway
Corporation of India regarding a Lease rent agreement. The company has
taken a land on lease in Ramnagar Unit but the company is not making any
payment to the Railways due to the dispute but the company is charging
rent in its books.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of above matters.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report
Thereon

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors' Report, Management Discussion and Analysis,
Report on Corporate Governance and other Annexure to the Directors' report but
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does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. The other
information is not available as on date of signing the report, and hence we do not
report on the information other than the standalone financial statements and
auditor's report thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the standalone financial position, standalone financial performance
and standalone cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of standalone financial statements by the Directors of
the holding company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the standalone the financial statements, the respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
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the Board of Directors either intfends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Boards of directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process of the group.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individual or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures. Responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of infernal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such
conftrols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
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may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying fransaction and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we indentify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with statement that we have compiled with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may be reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order)
issued by The Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "B" a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow
statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 except AS-2 "Valuation of
Inventories”, AS -15 "Employee Benefits" and AS-29 "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets".

(e) In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued
by the Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section | 64(2) of the Companies Act,
2013 pertaining to disqualification of Directors, is not applicable to the
Government Company.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such
conftrols, refer to our separate Report in Annexure "C".

(9) In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015
issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section 197(16) of the
Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to Managerial Remuneration, is not
applicable to the Government Company.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
201 4, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
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explanations given to us:

a. The company has not disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements- refer note No. 30 to the financial
statements.

b. The company did not have any long - term contracts including
derivative Contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d.i  The management has represented that, to the best of ifs
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from Borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) bythe Company toor in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the-
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entifies identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

ii The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Purifies"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub clause [i] and [ii] Above, contain
any material misstatement.
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e. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

3. As required by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure "D" a
statement on the compliance to the Direction / Sub-direction issued by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India in respect of the company.

For R.K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountanfts
(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-

(Rakesh Jhalani)
Partner
Membership No.074142

Place of Signature: Jaipur

Date: 26/09/2023
UDIN: 23074142BGZFKD7000
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Annexure-A

(Forming part of independent Auditor's Report on Standalone Financial
Statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended on 31st March, 2023
Basis for Qualified opinion
(Referred to in Para under "Basis for Qualified opinion"” of our report)

1) It has been observed that large balances in following cases are being
brought forwarded from earlier years. It is suggested that the matter may be
finalized and necessary adjustments be made in this regard at the earliest:-

Account Head Particulars Amount in Rs.

Note- 13 Amount outstanding from M/s |1,98,88,958.00/-
Gujarat Tech Cell Pvt. Lid
depicted under sub head "Other
loans & advances"

Long term Loans &
Advances

Capital Reserve | Amount being depicted from
last many years. Nature & details

not made available 10,26,28,293.41/-

2) As pointed out in the previous year's supplementary audit, the company has
not disclosed the cost formulae used for valuation of inventory / salt in progress
and accordingly AS-2 for. Valuation of Inventory issued by ICAI has not been
properly complied with.

3) The numerator and denominator used for computation of various accounting
ratios have not been explained as required by the Revised Schedule Il of The
Companies Act, 2013.

4) As per the practice followed by the company, the head office on behalf of
its units makes payments to different vendors and also receives payment from
various parties. The units make adjustment entries in this regard in accounts of
the parties as and when the relevant infimatiO11 is received from head office. It
is observed that the date of actual receipts and payments are not available
with the units and thus period wise outstanding of such parties cannot be
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evaluated properly from the books of accounts of the units. Therefore, we are
unable to comment on the ageing schedule of debtors and creditors as
depicted in the financial statements.

5. The company has deducted GST TDS (as required by the provision of section
51 and 52 of the CGST Act) in the month of March 2023 instead of deducting
the same on monthly basis. Due to non deduction of GST TDS monthly basis,
liability of GST Interest is understated by the company & the interest has been
paid.

6. The company has taken Overdraft facility from State Bank of India of Rs.
2880.00 Lakhs secured against FDR's. The Company has shown the above loan
facility in Note-9 Other Current Liabilities instead of the showing the same in
Note-7 Short Term Borrowings.

For R. K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountanfts
(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-
(Rakesh Jhalani)

Partner
Membership No.074142

Place of Signature: Jaipur

Date: 26/09/2023

UDIN: 23074142BGZFKD7000
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"Annexure-B"

Formin rt of In ndent Auditor's R rt_ on Standalone Financial

2023

(Referred to in Para 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date).

We have revised the Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to
the member of Hindustan Salts Limited (“the company”) on the financial
statements for the year ended 31t March 2023, dated August 16, 2023 on the
basis of provisional comments issued by the office of Compftroller & Auditor
General of India.

Report on Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2020 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) of the Hindustan Salts Limited (“the company”)

We report that:

i. (a) (A) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not maintained reasonable records showing particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipments.

(B) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has
not maintained proper records of intangible assets.

(b)As explained to us, the company has no written policy and procedures for
physlcal verification of the Property, Plant & Equipments at reasonable
intervals. Property, Plant & Equipments have not been physically verified by the
management No comment therefore can be made on discrepancies, if any.
However, physical verification was conducted on Sample Basis only.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per
records examined by us, we found following discrepancies in fitle deeds of
immovable properties. The details of such discrepancies are as under:-

(1) Freehold property at Kharagodha Village, District- Surendar Nagar,
(Gujarat) Area 23596 Acres - '24.54 lakh. However, as per records of Property,
Plant & Equipments maintained at the unit the total land area is 23449 acres.
The details of land holding as provided to us are as under:-
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Particulars Area

Run side land 22768 Acres

Village land 326 Acres

Miscellaneous land 25 Acres

Land acquired back by Govt. 330 Acres

Total 23449 acres

(2) Title documents in relation to Run side Land which is under salt
manufacturing area were not provided to us. It has also been explained that
the state Govt of Gujarat has disputed the above land as lease hold in place
of free hold land and claim of 272.80 lacs on account of agriculture and non-
agriculture assessment has been raised. The matter is presently sub-judice.

(3) Title documents in form of copy of 7/12 for land measuring about 132 acres
are available on record. The name of owner of property is mentioned as
"Hindustan Salts Woks, Kharagodha" instead of "Hindustan Salts Limited"

(4) Title documents in respect of freehold property at Mohal Khaliyar, Mandi
having Area of 702.25 sg. mir. Rs37.92 Lakh were not made available.

(5) Leasehold Property at Maigal Salt Works, Gum Mines, Drang Mines,
Himachal Pradesh having area 133.116 Acres. A photo copy of lease deed
executed on 31.08.2007 in the name of Hindustan Salts Limited is available and
no other document was provided by the company to verify the fitle in the
name of the Company. Out of above, title documents in respect of land
measuring 74 acres at Gum, were not available on records.

(6) Leasehold Property at Ramnagar, District Nanital, with area of 4712.61 sq.
mtr. Original title documents were not made available for verification.

(d) As explained to us, Company has not revalued any of its property, plant &
equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

(e) According to information and explanation given to us, no proceeding have
been initiated or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2023 for
holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made there under.

ii. (a) According to information and as explanation given to us, company has
no procedure and policy for verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, during the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits of
against Fixed Deposits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks
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or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; the subbmission
of quarterly returns or statements is not applicable to the company as per the
agreement of banks or financial institutions.

ii. (a) During the year the company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 however the company has given loan to its subsidiary company Sambhar
Salts Limited in previous years having outstanding balance as on 31.03.23 of Rs.
5835.05 Lakhs.

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loan prima-facie are not
prejudicial to the company's interest.

(c) In respect of loans of Rs. 5835.05 Lakhs to subsidiary company, Sambhar
Salts Limited, no regular recoveries have been made of principal or of interest.
There is no proper schedule of repayment of principal and interest. The
company has also given advances in nature of loan to its employees which are
recovered regularly together with interest if applicable as per company policy.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the company to subsidiary, the total
outstanding amount of principal and interest as on 31.03.2023 is Rs. 5835.05
Lakhs i.e. principal Rs. 3576.50 Lakhs and interest Rs. 2258.55 Lakhs which is
overdue by 90 days. The company has not taken necessary steps for recovery
of loan along with interest from its subsidiary company Sambhar Salts Limited.

(e) During the year the company has not renewed or extended any loan or
granted any fresh loans to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same
parties.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment during the year.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given us,
the company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grants of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securities as applicable.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and rules framed there under.
Hence, reporting under clause (v) is not applicable.
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vi. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us,
maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the company. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(vi) is not applicable.

vii. (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of books of accounts and records, the company has been
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, custom
duty, cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the
records of the company examined by us, there is no dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty or value added tax outstanding on
account of any dispute.

viii. According to information and explanations given to us, there were no
tfransactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the income tax act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Hence, reporting under clause
3(viii) is not applicable.

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
any financial institution or bank except default in repayment of loan to
Government of India (including interest of 2869.37 lakh). Repayment of
interest to Government of India has been made by the Company in
month of March of Rs. 2869.37 lacs. The Principal amount is still unpaid
by the company of Rs. 1241.29 lakhs.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or Government or any government authority.

(c) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,
term loan is applied for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and
based on the record of the company examined by us, fund raised
on short ferm basis have, prima facie, not been used for long term
purposes by the company.

(e) During the year the company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company, during the year, has not raised any loans on the pledge of

securities held in its subsidiaries.
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X. (a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and by way of term loans during the
year.

(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of share or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

xi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) No report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

(c)According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle
blower complaints were received by the compm/1y during the year (and upto
the date of this report) and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the order
is not applicable.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under this
Clause is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company's fransactions with its related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, wherever applicable. The
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a) The company has an internal audit system. Internal audit of the
Company is being carried by the independent firm of Chartered Accountants
and looking to the size, nature and volume of transactions, the same needs to
be strengthened;

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit were
considered by us.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered info any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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xvi. (a) In our opinion and as per information's & explanations provided to us,
the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934(2 of 1934).

(b) As explained to us and as per information the company has not conducted
any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.

(c) As per our information and as explained to us, the company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India.

(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the group and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable.

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year
covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company
during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
board of directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material certainty exists as on the date of
the of the audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) It is observed that the provisions of CSR is applicable to the Company for
the year, however the company has made provisions for the amount of Rs.
1214000/-. and has not spent applicable amount on any of CSR activity.
Therefore there are unspent amounts towards corporate social responsibility
(CSR) on other than ongoing projects which is transfer to a fund specified in
schedule VII to the companies act in compliance second proviso to sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the said act.

(b) There amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
companies actis Rs. 1214000/-, pursuant to any ongoing project, has not been
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tfransferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section
(6) of section 135 of the said act.

For R. K. Malpani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 002759C)

Sd/-
(Rakesh Jhalani)

Partner
Membership No. 074142

Place of Signature: Jaipur

Date: 26/09/2023
UDIN: 23074142BGZFKD7000
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ANNEXURE-C

Forming part of the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the
Financial Statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended

on 315t March 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") -

(Referred to in Para 2 (f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of our report of even date).

We have audited the internal financial conftrols over financial reporting of
Hindustan Salts Limited, Jaipur, ('the Company') as of 31st March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financlal
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').

These responsibllities include the design, inlplementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's polices, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit.